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SENATOR RICHARD J. CODEY (Chairman): Good morning. We would like 
to get started. The purpose .of today's public hearing is to inve.stigate the over

crowding of our State, county, and city institutions. This hearing is being con
ducted by the Senate Corr.rnittee on Institutions, Health, and Wel'fhre. Our first 

h','-)\-' 
witness this morning is Mr. William Fauver, Commissioner of ~nc Department of 
Corrections. Mr. Fauver. 

/"1 
W ILL I A M H. F A U V E R: Thank you, Mr. Chair~:an. I have distributed 
some material to the Committee, al1d I would like to talk abi2Jut that, as well as 

/i 
the magnitude of the problem He are facing. I would like <to say that I 

am pleased the Committee is having this type of hearing b~.~jause the recognition 
of the problem has been slow in corning throughout the Stati,e. I know, both 
myself and the people in the counties appreciate the oPPo,~'tuni ty to be heard. 

I would also like to invite the Committee,; or any of the aides, 
to visit any of the institutions. Please £ee1 free to C~ll on any of our staff that 
you may need now or at a later time. And, I am sure the>same invitation will 
be extended from the county people, so you can see the iristitutions, firsthand. 

The material I have given you includes a .brief opening statement, 
and I would just like to extract from that. I will try to b~ fairly brief on 
a very long subject, and then respond to any questions you may have. 

In the statemen~ I say that during the last year both the State and 
the county institutions have experienced serious and ever-increasing overcrowding 

problems. Both the county and the State facilities are op,erating well beyond 
the capacities for which they were designed. Ii 

Now, the initial question is how did we geQ there? How did we 
get to this problem? I think there are basically threeJ{~imary reasons for this. 

, "I One is the effect of the new Criminal Code which calls for longer periods of time 

to be served. The second is the Parole Act of 1980. And'cthe third is the speedy 
trial system, which has put more people into the system. So, basically, it boils 
down to more people corning in and staying for longer periods of time and less 

people going out. That is a combination which we in corrections, both State and 
county, have had to deal with unilaterally for a long period of time. 

The effects of the Code are most easily seen on the charts that 
I have given you in. this material. If you open to page two, it demonstrates that 
the total commitments have risen, from two years ago to now, from a 6,000 figure 

to 8,900. Now, this means that those numbers are actually committed to the State 
institutions. These are adult males. Part of the big problem facing us right 

now is - if you look at the chart to the left - the waiting list in the county 
jails. As you can see from that, in a period of about a year it has gone from 
200 to 1077 in January, and as we sit her'1)today it is over 1100~ 

The next column shows the .. number of State inmates that weJ:'e trai • .:;ferred 0 

iI out into county jails. We sent people oUt into the counties to see if there actually 
was bed space that could be utilized for State inmates. Under the Executive Order 
I have the authority to transfer people to these counties, and this is the number 

that has b.een transferred out primarily in on1~ two counties -- Sussex and Mercer. 
These were the only two where there was anYoroom •. Now, that does not mean that 

, 0 

on any given day, in the court's report or in their oWil reports in the counties, 
thEil;'e p,ren't.any beds there, but we have not shifted people where there are one 

or two beds for many reasons. They might be far from the. county of their origin, 

and it may also be the fact that they have to go to court and the county transportatipn 
Gosts become involved -:.., and the £act that we, particularly in the shore counties 

1 



in the summer, have an influx, and we wanted to leave some bed space for them. 

The basic problem boils down to the commitment of medium-maximum 
security beds. Now, I don't mean this to be critical of the Criminal Code. I 

think the Criminal Code is doing exactly what it was intending to do: it is getting 

the violent offenders off the street and into the institutions. The problem is 
just that there isn't space to keep them. 

In that regard, I will submit to you some articles for your information. 
The e are newspaper clippings, going back to 1976, in which the Department was 

asking for more bed space. This was a tough issue to convince people of -- that 

this was really going to happen. Some of the Department's f.';'gures were seen as 

self-serving in our projections -- that, for example, it i3 a Department and we 

were trying to create more of an empire by building more bed space. I think tha.t 

the opponents of prison construction were listened to; an4 as you will see from 

the clippings that I will submit to you, that definitely is a problem, because 

even with the 1980 bond issue, we are not, at this point, under construction in 

Camden with the State prison. One of the reasons for that delay has been the 

site and the fact that the money would not be approved for the bond issue until 

the site was decided upon. This got bogged down in committees, particularly in 
Capital Planning, and was really resurrected by the Legislature because after the 

vote was "no" in that particular Conunittee on the bond issue, the Assembly Committee, 
with Assemblyman Otlowski, asked to have hearings on that, and then the bill was 

further pushed and sponsored by a co-sponsor, Senator Hirkala, from this Committee, 

and it went through. So, we were able at that point to convince the legislators 
that there was a problem, but it was late in coming. 

Now, the graphs on the next two pages, if I may call your attention 
to them, show the commitments and the types of people that are coming in. Just 

to summarize, 70% of the current inmates in the prison system are committed for 
violent crimes, and those crimes show on the chart on page 3. 

Probably one of the most serious effects of the overcrowding has 
been the imposition of mandatory sentences. That shows on page 4, which indicates 

that so far there have been 806 people -- these are male adults sentenced to 

the State Prison System on mandatory sentences, for which there is an ineligibility 

for parole. There is no time worked off on that sentence. This is a very large 

percentage. This is better than one-quarter, and it continues to rise. So, some 

of these figures, as you can see -- 8% of these have mandatory minimums for 20 

years or more -- meaning they are ineligible, up until that point, for release. 

On the last page of this hand-out are the releaSeS to parole from 
the institutions, and the dotted line is the prison complex. The youth complex 

is indicated by the top line. Youth, in this cas~means indeterminate sentences 
rather thar the determining prison sentences. The youth complex sentences, as 

you can see, have decreased from what they were normally. The prison complex 

is roughly about what it has been traditionally. There has been about a 30% decrease 
in those paroles. 

The projections that the Departmenj: made were that the effects 
of the Criminal Code would hit us in about the' sp:hng of 1981, or about 18 months 

" 

after the inception of the Code, and that was because people we!i~' going to be 

sentenc~d anyway and would be doing the first part of their sentence, but the 
., 

extra length of stay wouldn't be recognized for about 18 months. Those projections 
were, at times, also questioned and it turned out to be right on the money; in 

fact, more severe than the Department, for the most part, projected.. 
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This is basically where we are and how we got here. I would now 

like to take a minute to discuss some of the things that are being done. 

'rhc Department has created, since the inception of the Governor's 

Executive Order, in June of last year, a number of beds within the system, and 

also temporary kinds of beds. I would like to run over those with you, and then 

tell you some of the problem with them. Now, this is on another set of material, 

page 3. The first page says, "County Jail Populations", which I will get to in 

a minute. 
The new bed space is created at the top of the third page, which 

is an un-numbered page, and it shows 370 beds created within the system. It shows 

28 at Mercer County; 32' in Sussex; 40 in Trenton Psychiatric, which is another 

wing that was taken over at the State Hospital; and an additional 25 in community 

placements. Ant~cipated beds show, in February of '82, things that were just 

done. One is in effect, that is the Yardville Gynm, which was converted into 

a dormatory to house 60 inmates,. and the Bordentown Chapel, which is not ready 

h ' month. Th~s will enable us to take another yet but which will be in effect t ~s ~ 

60 inmates. 
Following on down, within the next three to six months the transfer 

of the Juvenile Reception Unit from Yardville to Jamesburg picks up another 29 
M h 1 t Add~t~onal trailers have been ordered beds, and that will take effect on arc s. ~ ~ 

for, and site work is being done at Annondale and Leesburg to pick up the number 
shown there, another 128. Then, the bottom two are the two where we would pick 

up the mOHt, and I would like to give you an up-date on that. 
The first one men·tioned is the Mid-State Correction Center at Fort 

Dix, with a capacity of 500. The Department and the State, for a number of years, 

have tried to get the use of Fort Dix from the military, and it was only the mo~t 

recent request, toward the end of last ye'r, that this was okayed. Since the 

general approval was given, the Department and the Attorney General's office have 

been in negotiation with the Department of Defense, the Department of the Army, 

f th ' Th have been problems to work out as far as access, as far as or ~s use. ere 
security at the building, which the military wants to be sure of before they will 

allow us access. 
The latest is that we are supposed to pick up the contract in final 

form from the Army on Friday -- tomorrow -- and our estimates are that--- Well, 

first let me backtrack a minute. The military will let us occupy the building 

once we have additional fencing and razor wire put up around the building, and 

additional towers. Our estimates on this are roughly 45 to 60 days; they are 

from contractors. Once that is done, we can start to put inmates into the facility 

and then fix up what has to be done inside at a later date. So, that is why I 

think the three to six months at the top of that, as far as the projection is 

concerned, is real. 
The fourth item on the page, and the next large number, is Trenton 

State Prison renovations. The completion date for nOW,E?r phase one of the Trenton 

Prison renovation, is June or July of this year. At tha~~oint, it had been our 

intention to tear down the old wings of the prison ~- to destroy them because 

d of the r easons for the bond issue for replacement was because they were so 01. One 
of the age of the fadility. At this point, we are going to have to tear down 

one of the wings because it conflicts with the further renovation of Trenton 

Pnison, but we do intend to keep two wings open while this ,kind of emergency exists, 

which will give us another three hundred beds. That total would mean within 
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the system and within the State facilities and the county facilities, fifteen 

hundred some odd beds would have been created since the Executive Order went into 

effect; the first one was signed in June by Governor Byrne. 

This would address the issue of the backup in the counties, which 

is, right now, at 1100. The problem that I foresee is that that is going to continue 

to grow. To give an analogy, when the Governor agreed to the Executive Order, 

we were backed up about 400 and something in the county jails. The bed spaces 

that we have added, as of right now, well exceed that, and, yet, the backup in 

the county jails has climbed to 1100, and our projections are that it will continue 
to climb. 

The need is in the medium-maximum security bed spaces. There is 
some room at our minimum security units, as there is room at some of the counties 

that run minimum security units. The question then becomes one of policy, or 

change in criteria to put people in these minimum security units thc~ are not 

now put there. You know, liberalizing rules to be able to do that, or regulations 

to be able to do that, is a possibility, but it has to be weighed against 
our professional judgments as to track record with the types of offenders and 
the dangers that might present to the community. 

On the county issue, the counties listed on the next page have 
taken trailers also, which the State has purchased, but there are problems with 

the counties installing them. .Although most counties have been interested, the 

urban counties have problems with trailers, just on placing them. They don't have 

a spot. Hookup costs and installation costs are high. So, so far there are only 

four counties that are involved, and they are listed: Bergen, Essex, Middlesex, 

and Ocean, with 160 beds. The only stipulation we put on the use of the trailers 

was that they be for inmates; they couldn't use them for administration purposes 
or for other things, but just to help inmates; and, they are currently in use 
in these counties. 

Above that on the page, you see the number of counties that have 
come in and cooperatively, with the money out of the bond issue-- And, let me 

backtrack a minute on that. The 1980 bond issue included $30 million for construction 

of the prison in Camden and $30 million for county construction aid. The advantage 

to the State was evident. Here it gives a number of State inmates that can be 

kept in the local county, that the counties would agree to keep, and would meet 

the criteria that a number of penologists have set forth on putting people as 

close to home as possible to maintain family ties, etc. The advantage to the 

county is" evident in that this is money that comes in above their caps and many 

of these counties are either under court order to close or court order for construction 

of facilities or renovation of facilities. So, I think this is a start and a 

step in the right direction. But, the 270 beds listed here will hot be available 

until the construction or the rencvation work is completed in the listed counties. 

I think for the first time, out of that bond issue, there was an 
attempt to address the problem as a statewide problem and not just as a state 

problem and county problem separate. I hope that this is a forerunner of things 

to come, both in this and in other areas, such as probation, parole, juvenile 
detention, etc. 

NoW, the county backup is demonstrated. on page one, which shows 

what the capacity of that county jail is on the left, and what the county jail 

popUlation is in the middle, and then the number of those! inmates in that jail 
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that are state prisoners. 

The removal of the state p:r:·.isoners f th' '1 rom e J;;'u s is a top priority of the Governor's. He d ' 
ma e comm~tments to. that during the campaign and has indicated 

that as a priority. I WOuld point out tha~ even with the removal of the state 

inmates, the counties Would still be overcrowded, so it doesn't completely eliminate 
the problem. There are problems there that; shOUld be addressed, hopefully, on 

a cooperative nature. But, as an example, 1 will just pick one of these. The 

first one is Atlantic. When we say managE!a,b1e population, it is basically what 
the county people have agr ed d th f' 

e upon, an e ~gures they have submitted to the courts throuqh 

of 186, 
the APC, and the Department concurs with. So, they show a manageable popUlation 
a population on February 9th of 270, 72 of wh' h ' , 

~c are ~n-pr~son cases. And, then 
it runs down. The largest number is Essex County. Probably the "three severest 

in nUmbers would be, just because of the percentage of overcrowding, Paf;q:lic, Union, 

and Crunden. So, as you can see from this, if our plans for those othe~ additional 
900 beds baSically come to pass by the summer, we Would wipe this out for all 
intents and purposes, but my Concern is that;t t'll 
count will still continue to grow. 

aside from just prison construction 

great and I don't think that if the 

• s ~ continues to grow -- the 
So, I think other things have to be done, 

because the cost of prison construcr.ion is 

trend continUes, even if there were money 
't ' , we JUs can t, practically, build fast enough to meet these kinds of needs. 

You have material, which was also submitted. It is the Task Force 
Report from December. It was formed by Governor B 

yrne to come up with immediate 
kinds of solutions. Some of these things have been implemented. Most of them 

have not been, and part of that has just been because of the transition into a 

new administration, with the Governor taking some time to look at material supplied 
to him by the Department, and 

I am sure by others, as to proposals and sugge~tions 
about how to do that. But, I know that the Administration will be coming out 
fairly quickly w;th a I' • po ~cy on how to address these issues. 

What I have presented to you is baSically what we have done so 
far, and what we are intending to do, unilaterally. It addresses the 
issues, but not really the long-term ones. I think 
on policy will be developed very shortly. 

immediate 
that kind of a position paper 

There are a couple of things I Would like to address because they 
have come up in the past. One is on the issue of double ceIling. I have been 

Opposed to double-ceIling at State institutions, recognizing very well that the 

counties are double-ce11ing, and in many cases more that double-ceIling. The 

only institution in which we are double-ceIling in the State is in Trenton Prison. 

In the other institutions we have tried to avoid it by trying, for example, putting 
trailers at Rahway to house an additional 80 men behind the wall there. This 
gives us medium security bed space, but it also does not 
It ,is my professional opinion that to do otherwise __ to 

of spaces -- would really lead to major disturbances 
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is the kind of balance that has to be st.ruck all the time, and the kind of decision 

th:lt has to be made. It is really not :(s simplistic as saying, "there is a building", 

or, "there are rooms here," or, "tj.lere is a warehouse here. to take over and put 

a fence around." That doesn't cut it, ahd \vould cause, again in my opinion , problems. 

I' think that basically on that issue, our judgment and our track record over 

the last ten years speaks for itself. 
The other issue I would like to address is one that we hit at times 

about planning and the Master Plan that was done prior to the new criminal code 

being enacted. I don't think that the Department has ever given up on that Master 

Plan that was written, but it did call for a lot more community based facilities 

for inmates. I think the new Criminal Code in itself, with a tightening of the 

sentences, is a clear indication that that is really not what people want. They 

d h 11 I d no better luck in establishing want people away from them, an we ave rea y la 
community home programs than we have with starting with prisons trying to get 

prisons sited. So, I think it;r,:an be expanded on. I think it is being thrown 

out at times as an answer toat is really n0t an answer. 
So, on the planning issue, I think that at times the Department's 

planning was really not that the Department wasn't planning -- and I think our 

ability to handle some of this shows that 've have -- it was disagreement with 

the Department's plans, couched in terms of not planning rather than saying, "we 

disagree with what you are doing or with what you are planning to do." 
What I have tried to do is to highlight a problem. As I have indicated, 

we have been cognizant of this for at least five to six years, and we have tried 

to do something about it, with limited success. I think the things we have done 

internally, which could not have been done without the cooperation of the counties, 

despite the fact that I know the situation they are under and the complaints they 

have with us and with the fact that they are stuck with that part of the problem, have helped 

the counties and the State, by the accommodations that have been made. to survive 

to this point. We certainly intend to give it our best shot and continue, but 
I think we have to go further than just surviving and I would hope this Committee 

would address some of these issues with longer term qoals, because if we create 

all this bed space and alleviate the county problem by July, as an exrunple, and 

the rate of commitment continues, and the rate of parole continues, we will be 

right back here and we will have run out of miracles to perform to create this 

space. 
Finally, I would just like to say that I, or my staff, would be 

glad to return when you have heard other testimony to answer any questions you 

might have, or to forward any other information you may wish. I will be glad 

to try and address anything you might need. Thank you. 
SENATOR CODEY: Thank you. Senator McManimon. 
SENATOR MC MANIMON: Based on the statements that the Cownissioner 

made in the latter part of his presentation, I am going to ask a very direct question. 

Do you sincerely feel that this truly a realistic approach in your planning, based 

on the fact that you know you are being §ulJjected to 70% commitments to State 

Prisons -- a 70% increase? 
COMMISSIONER FAUVER: I think it is realistic in the sense that 

I think the bed spaces will be available. What I think doesn't show in this 

and maybe I should have addressed this briefly is that the reason we have been 

able to absorb that big increase is because we have moved prison caSes into the 
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youth institutions, and it is becoming, in a sense, unclear as to what is a prison 

and what is a youth institution because there are so many prison cases in the 

buildings. Frankly, we don't have any alternative but to do that, but I think 

that even from the sense of the court's perspective, when they sentence someone 

to an indeterminate sentence, they have already decided that person is not as 

severe -- if you will, for lack of a better word -- a criminal, and they are giving 

him that type of sentence with the idea that he is eligible for parole right away, 

and he should be involved in programs. Also, they make a judgment as to whether 

he has improved himself. It becomes increasingly difficult to provide any of 

those things if prison cases continue to fill up those institutions. So, I think 

that is a problem, but the bed space -- I feel comfortable in saying we will have 

the bed space on these dates, or within those dates, or I wouldn't have presented 
it, because it would just be speCUlation then. 

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Fauver, it seems to me that what we have today 
in our state prisons is a very bad situation that is only going to get worse, 

and I am not sure that we are prepared to handle it from what I see at the present 
time. It also seems to me that the State has taken its problem and made 
it the counties' problem, and now the counties are taking the problem apd making 

it the cities problem. I don't know whether it is going to explode in the next 

few days or in the next few months, but it seems that it is rapidly reaching that 

kind of potential. I seem to feel we have to do something immediate, and it doesn't 

seem to be here today -- that answer to doing something immediately. 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, the answer to the immediate is only 
a fraction of the answer. I mean, there are only several hundred beds we can 

create iwnrnediately, as I indicated -- and by ~mmediate I mean within the month. 

I think for too long basically it has been looked at as a correction 
problem. It is not. You know, we do not in that sense, nor do the county jails, 

control the intake into the prisons. We do not control sentencing, nor do we 

control the exiting through paroles. 'Both of those areas have to be looked at, 

as well as increasing the bed spaces. In the plans that are being formulated 

through the Governor's office, or the ideas that are being talked about I should 

say, and the plans that are being formulated at this point, some of that will 

address the immediate problem. Whether there are othe steps -- whether it is 

going to be other trailers or other types of things like that, modulars put down 

somewhere -- I am not certain that decision has been made. But, they are immediate. 
Trailers can basically be installed in four to six weeks. 

SENATOR CODEY: Okay. But, as seasons change and it gets warmer, 

I would assume you will have more prisoners. There is more crime committed, so 

it is going to continue to get worse, and we have to address the prdblem immediately 
becaUse it is severe. I went through Essex County Jail and I saw 80 people in 

a space that shouldn't accommodate more than 12, at best. You could feel the 

tension and you could see the situation that was coming within that space. 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes. I am certainly aware of that. I think 

aside from just the increase in the commitments -- .because generally there are 

more crimes in the warmer weather -- the living condititions are tougher in the 

warmer weather because of the humidity and the heat factor within the buildings. 

There is no question about that. That is why this figure is estimated at a June 

or July date, because we wanted to try to have these moves made before we really 
got into the middle of the summer. 
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I think the other thing with the counties, as I indicated/the 

State inmates are not the only problem. In some coun~ies there would be con

siderable overcrowding without the State inmates. I am sure, given their drothers, 

today they would say, "Well, great, let us live wit:t that. We want to deal with 

that." But, the point is, in any county there are a good number of pre-trial 

inmates. I know the Administrative Office of the Courts, through the Chief Justice, 

has asked the judges to look at that to see if changes can be made in bail. There 

have been changes made. I don't think that it can just be done unilaterally --

and when I say unilaterally, I mean both within the county and the State system. 

As you indicated, it is spilling down into -- particularly in Newark -- the City 
lockups because there is a blockage at the top. 

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Fauver, would you agree that the Camden site 

is three to four years away? 
CO~lISSIONER FAUVER: Yes. I would say three years at best. 

SENATOR CODEY: I have heard that we are so overcrowded that we 

have guards making $45 thousand and up, based on overtime. That is not an uncommon 

situation. Do we have the capacity to train people? When we house these inmates, 

do we have cnough guards availablc? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, I would like to comment on the first 

thing. I don't believe that to be true. It is almost inconceivable that someone 

could make that kind of money as a line officer. Now, if you are talking about 

a supervisory officer, they could do it. I would say that the most severe ~roblem 

with overtime, without a doubt, is in Trenton and Rahway. The problems are not 

just numbers of staffing, they are the conditions under which they have to work 

that cause more absenteeism than other places and a greater turnover. There is 

a training academy that trains both for State and the county. It does an adequate 

job in the training, but it is not geare~ to handle the numbers of people that 

go through the system, both State and county. There is a backup of quite a few 

officers waiting to go through the academy. Under Civil Service regulations, 

they cannot become permanent until they go through.. But, the training is behind. 

In some cases people are on the job a year and one-half before they can get to 

the academy. It is kind of a like a Catch 22 because the places where they need 

the training the most, which would be the maximum security places, is where they 

generally tend to be the shortest and where they really don't feel comfortable 

in freeing people up to go, or if they do free them up to go, they may wind up 

working overtime, forcing people to work to cover them. 

I think that in raw numbers of officer coverage,. within the institutions 

with the kinds of numbers -- the kind of inmate numbers they have -- in there 
now, I wouldn't say they were short to any great degree. Our request, eVen in 

this year's budget, does not reflect much in the way of requests for additional 

officer coverage. 

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Fauver, one more question -- your document 

on new State bed spaces.--

cOMMJ.SSrONIm 1"AUVER; YtU:l. 

SENATOR i,CODEY: (continuing) --you have listed. additional community 

placements. Cah you just describe for me what that means? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Additional community placements mean that 

in this case we have a couple of half-way houses of our own that are run by the 

State, where we place people prior ~o -- like nine months prior to their release. 

8 

i 
\ 

, r 

The additional spaces that we picked up here were through contract 

with Volunteers of America, who run these types of homes, and the New Jersey Association 

of Corrections. These are the two prime sponsors, and we contract with th,em to 

take State inmates. That is the additional number that was put out in the last 
six months of the last calendar year. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you. Senator Bassano, do you have any questions? 

SENATOR BASSANO: Commissioner, can you hear me? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR BASSANO: First of all, let me thank you for being here 

today. We certainly appreciate that. I would like to know with regard to the 

1572 new beds that we are talking about for prisoners in our State, where do you 

anticipate those prisoners coming from? Are they going to come out of the county 

institutions, or are they going to come from some of the State institutions that 

are presently overcrowded, or will the majority of those beds be filled by additional 

people who are being sentenced under our new penal code? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, first, they will not be filled to reduce 
the populations at the State institutions. The priority will be to reduce the 

county jail backUp. The actual transfers may be from, for example, a Leesburg 

to the Fort Dix site rather than from a county to Fort Dix. But, the intent will 

be to take in, let's say, 100 people in a given day from the counties, no't to 

say that we are at over-capacity at Leesburg and we are going to get down to capacity 

by using those facilities. We have managed at the capacities we are at and we 

will maintain those capacities' and get the reduction from the county. 

Now, the other purt, as to the sentencing under the new Code, as 
I indicated, these plans-- I think that was part of the thrust of Senator 

Cody's remarks about even if this-all happens, that is now; but there are still going 

to be more people coming in because of things that were stated and because of the Code. 

Again, it is projection on that, basically. I don't know the raw figures --

ho~ much that will go up from a backup of 1100. But, it has gone from a backup 

of four hundred and about seventy-five in June, to eleven hundred in January. 

Now, at the same time, I want to point out that the State has taken in a good 

number of people in this time. We have taken in over 2,000 people, and closer 

to 3,000. So, it is not that they are not coming in, but it is just that the 

numbers are so great. 

SENATOR BASSANO: Based upon the 1572 figure that we have here, 

approximately how many of those beds will be made available for people who are 

presently in county institutions? Can you give us an idea as to how many of those 

beds will be utilized for county people? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes, all them will be utilized. But, the 

county backup will continue because if Essex County shows 160 today, the plan 

would enable us to take that 160. I don't know how many more in addition are 
going to be added on to that. 

SENA':('OR BASsANo: I think I am still not getting the ahswer that 

I am looking for. Of the 1572, obviously some of those people are going to come 

out of Leesburg or out of some of the other State institutions. Of that number, 

how many people that are presently State prisoners that are being housed in county 

facilities will come out of the county? That is the basic figure I am looking 

for. ·1 understand that"overcrowding still exists, but what can we. look for," 

at least in the form of temporary relief from the State as soon as those beds 
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are made available? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, again, I think I am answering you. 

You can look for all of that bed space to be made available for the counties --

the total number of beds -- because, as I indicated, if we move the people from 

Leesburg, it would only be because we think they fit better in the Fort Dix setting, 

not to relieve the overcrowding in Leesburg. If Leesburg's count is 1,000 today, 

when these bed spaces are open, Leasburg will still have a population of 1,000. 

What I am saying is, the county people won't go to anyone specific institution. They will 

come in and be classified to wherever we think they belong. But, the bed space 

would be the bottom figure -- it would be the 957, realistically. 

SENATOR BASSANO: On-- Excuse me? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: I'm not sure I am being clear. My aide says 

I am not, so I accept her word for it. The count in the State institutions would 

go up by this figure. In other words, if we have 7,000 in now, we would have 

8,000 in, and that would mean that 1,000 would come out of the county. It would 

not be-- The purpose of this is not to reduce our popUlations at all. It is to 
aid the county. 

When I say aid the county, there are inmates -- the county is 

aiding us by keeping them. But, I mean, to relieve that pressure on the county, 

that is the purpose. 

SENATOR BASSANO: So, what you are saying to me then is that Leesburg, 

if it is housing "Xli number of prisoners, will continue to house that number? 

COMMISSIONER FAU\~R: That's correct. 

SENATOR BASSANO: It is just that if you move someone out from 

Leesburg to a new facility, you are going to replace that person from Leesburg 

with someone out of one of the county institutions? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: That's correct. 

SENATOR BASSANO: On the Camden site, once that facility is in 

operation, do you feel that will be a permanent solution to our problem, at least 

on the State level, or do you feel we are going to, based upon the statisti~s 

you have, still have a need for additional beds in the State? 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: I don't think it will meet it on the State 

level, because one of the things with Fort Dix is, right now the contract with 

the Federal government is for three years, and whether there will be options on 

that is debatable. We are trying to, but it is up to them whether they will let 
us or not. 

The other thing is, there are eyacuation plans in that in case 

of any kind of national emergency. We would then have to vacate. So, I don't 

think we can count Fort Dix as a permanent facility by any stretch of the imagination. 

So, therefore, Camden would just kind of offset the Fort Dix loss if, in fact, 

there is a loss. Our projections are that we are going to need more bed space. 

I am not sure, sitting here, whether I would say that means more prisons. It 

may. It may mean -- you know, if there are any changes in legislation, fo." example, 

it could affect it. If there cq:e changes in the' rates of parole it could affect 

it, and we may not need them. It is not the only answer, but if things continue 

with nothing else changing, yes, we are going to need additional bed space. 

SENATOR BASSANO: Thank you. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fauver. 

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Thank you. 

SENATOR CODEY: Our next witness will be Mr. E.dwin Stier, Director 

of the Division of Criminal Justice. 
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E D WIN H. S TIE R: Good morning, Senator. 
SENATOR CODEY: Good morning. 

!1R. STIER: I am appearing here this morning on behalf of the Depart

ment of Law and Public Safety, headed by the Attorney General, who, as of course 

you know, is the State's chief law enforcement officer. 

What I would like to do is to address the problem, primarily from 

the view of law enforcement. You have, of course, just listened to Bill Fauver, 

who is describing to you the conditions in the system from the point of view of 

the Corrections community. As I will point out to you in my remarks, we have 

now, and have for some time, been working very closely with the Corrections corrununity 
to deal with the problem we are now facing in our institutions, which in our judrnent 

has reached crisis proportions. 

The reason we are working together is because we have recognized 

that the problems of prison overcrowding are really not separate problems. Historically, 

we have dealt with the problems of prison overcrowding and crime as separate problems. 

The law enforcement community, when defendants were convicted and sentenced to 

incarceration, stopped considering what the impact of that incarceration was going 

to be on the Corrections system. The Corrections people worked independent of 

the law enforcement community to deal with their problems in their institutions. 

I think the Legislature has historically dealt with the problems 

of crime and the problems of prison overcrowding as separate problems. We now 

have come to the conclusion that they are really not separate problems; that they 

are interrelated and that you cannot deal with one without the other. In effect, 

what ,,,e are now faced with 'is balancing competing social interests. On the one 

hand we have crime and public safety to be concerned about -- ever increasing 

demand for longer sentences of incarceration, removal of criminalS from the community, 

particularly professional, repetitive criminals who, statistically, are responsible 

for a large proportion of the violent crime that we face. And, on the other hand, 

we are faced with the problem of rising costs of incarceration, not just the 

dollar and cents costs of incarcertaion, but the social costs of siting institutions 

finding the space within our State to house the inmates. 

Over the past several years, we in law enforcement,and the people 

in the Corrections system, have been trying to wrestle with this balance -- have 

been trying to help to strike this balance -,- and have been trying to make adjustments 

in what each of us is dOing to find the ultimate answer and the ultimate balance 

between how much public safety we can provide, an~ at the same time, how much 

of the cost of incarceration the community can bear. I assure you that from our 

experience we have not found any quick fixes. I anI not going to tell you I have 

an answer to that prob1e~, that I can tell you either where that ba1ahce should 
be struck, or how we can address our current crisis situation in our institutions. 

I can tell yoti something about what we h'ave done and how we perceive 

the situation as reaching this level, and try to make some predictions about where 

We go in the future, at least from a law enforcement point of view. 

First of .a11, we have to recognize that in fact we have had rising 
crime rates in this State, as we have had across the country over the past several 

years" The most recent crime statistics -- irhe Uniform Crime Report for 1980 -

indicate that crime in New Jersey, as it has been across the county, is up 10% 

over the prior year. Violent crime in New Jersey is up 21%, as compared with 

13% acroSs the country. Non-violent crime is up 9%, as it is across the country. 
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And, the st9.:t·~t:tihg statistic is that 83% of all the indexed crimes -- that is, 

those crimes that are generally considered most serious violent crimes, and serious 

property crimes -- are not cleared by arrest. That is, those crimes go unsolved, 

and the six month statistic for the year 1981 suggests that the rates are continuing 

at the levels that have been established in prior years. So, even if we did nothing 

but solve crime at the rate at which it has been solved over the years, even if 

we did nothing to improve our efficiency in law enfo~cement, the numbers of people 

who would be apprehended, prosecuted, convicted, and sent to institutions would 

increase, simply by virtue of the fact that we are dealing with more crime. 
But, we have made adjustments. The Legislature has made adjustments 

and law enforcement has made adjustments in an attempt to use the criminal justice 

system to stem the increasing rate of crime in this State. The Criminal Code, 

which was enacted a couple of years ago by the Legislature, is generally viewed 

I think this i.s true not only in law enforcement but in the judicial system --

as a more harsh system of punishment than prior criminal law. That's a shift, 

by the way, from its origin~l intent. If you go back into the legislative history 

of the Code, I think you will find that one of the/primary elements in the code 

as it was originally proposed was the presumption against incarceration in an 

attempt to reduce the numbers of people who were going to institutions. During 
the development of the Code in the legislature, because we were beginning to experience 

a rapid rise in crime rates and because of very strong public sentiment in favor 

of meeting those crime rates with harsher punishment, the sentencing provisions 

of the Code shifted and now we have a Code which is generally considered to, at 

least with respect to the more serious crimes, have within it a presumption in 

favor of incarceration. Generally, the penalties for violent crimes -- first 
and second degree offenses -- have been increased. Categories for extended terms 

have been broadened; that is, there are more lengthy sentences on repeat offenders 

imposed under the sentencing provisions of the Code than were imposed under prior 

criminal law. 
One important provision which I think deserves to be highlighted 

seems to have had the effect of shifting the sentencing of those convicted for 

first, second, and third degree offenses away from county jail and into State 

institutions. That is, s,tatistically, there appears to be a more rapid increase 

in the number of people sentenced to State prison than to county jails. I think 

the reason for that -- at least the one we have speculated abou~ and tried to 

analyze empirically - is that prior to the enactment of the Code, a sentencing judge 

had the discretion to serttence anyone c9nvicted for most offenses, including violent 
crime, from zero time in prison up to the maximum, which was either three or seven 

years, generally. Under the sentencing provisions of the Code, that discretion 
has now been restricted, and for a first, second, or third degree conviction, 

the choices that a. sentencing judge has include sentehcihg for the st~tutory term, 

which is either 10 to 20 years, or 5 to 10 years, or, in the alternati.ve, probation. 

And, the only way he can place a defendent into a county institution :6.or one of 

those sentences is by imposing a period of incarceration as a conditioI~ of probation, 

and the code,limits that to six months. Previously, a judge could sentenc:e someone 

to county jail for up to a year for a majority of these offenses; now, he can 

only sentence someone to a county jail for up to six months.. We believe! that 

restriction has shifted the prison population to a great extent from the county 

jails, \\There they had previously been going for up to a year, to the State prisons, 
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which has led to the serious problem we are encountering at the State level. 

In addition to the original provisons of the Code, we have had 

several amendments, as you well know: a three-year mandatory, minimum sentence 

for possession or use of a gun in connection with certain crimes; parole ineligibilit~ 

extonding to every kind of offense under the Code, of up to one-half the sentence 

that is imposed. We find that provision is used very heavily by sentencing judges, 

even more heavily than the extended term provisions for repeat offenders. 

In addition to the Code, law enforcement has responded over the 

last several years to public demand to do something about crime. We have, in 

all but two counties in this State, full time prosecutors' offices, which every 

year become more efficient and more experienced at handling the case load which 

runs through their offices. We are in the process of automating the case management 

system in every prosecutor's office and every court in the State. Together with 

the Supreme Court, a year and one-half ago we launched a speedy-trial program. 

As of that time, that is, the beginning of the speedy-trial program, it took an 

average of a year for a case to get from arrest through trial disposition -- an 

unconscionable delay between the crime and the imposition of a penalty. The present 

goal of the speedy-trial program, weare confident we are going to meet 

th e reduction of that period of time to 180 days, and there are goals beyond 

that for succeeding years. 

A number of experiments are going on in the counties at speeding 

up the system. For example, in Hudson County, where we have a central processing 

system for everyone who is arrested in the county -- they are all brought before 

one judge -- a number of cases are disposed of right there, in that court room, 

on the day the defendant is brought before the judge for his initial appearance • 

I think the speed record that was achieved is something like two hours between 

the commission ofa crime and the imposition of a sentence in one case in Hudson 

County under that system. Of course, we don't achieve th,at in every case, but 

the point is that a number of measures have been taken allover the State to speed 

up the system. Of course, the more you speed it up, the n~re people are going 

to corne into the system, at least until we catch up with the backlog. 

We have career criminal programs operating throughout the State 

which target repeat offenders, particularly those who are prone to commit violent 

crimes, and fast-track those cases. So, those cases are moved more rapidly and 

longer sentences are sought. 

We have an arson program which has resulted in more convictions 

for that offense. And, generally we have made efforts, and are continuing to 

make efforts, to improve the quality of police services allover the State in 

an attempt to solve more crime, more rapidly. 

We recognize though, that along with efforts to speed up the system 
,J 

and improve our efficiency, we have an obligation to weed out those cases that 
... 

don't belong in th~ criminal justice system. So, each prosecutor has a screening 

system -- an intake system -- where cases are reviewed immediately upon entry 

into the prosecutor's office, and on th~ average, about 60% of the criminal complaints 

that are filed are either dismissed or/down-graded so they can be handled in muniCipal 

court. So, all of those arrests are iot pro'cessed ultimately through the Grand 
~ . 

Jury and trial, with the potential for the imposition of a prison sentence. 

I~. addition, pre-trial intervention programs are in operation throughout 

the State and a special procedure, similar to PTI, is in operation with respect 

to drug cases, so that minor drug offenses don't have to go through the system, 
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and can b.e disposed of in a suspended proceeding, where over a period of time, 

if the defendant hasn't engaged in other criminal activity, he is then released 

and his record is expunged. 
When you analyze who is going to prison, I think you will recognize 

that the solutions are not those that have been freely discussed, at least at 

the initial stages of our recognition of the problem -- that is, the assumption 

that we can let out some of the petty offenders that are clogging up the prison 

system does not seem to hold up when you analyze the State prison population. 

Statistics show that a}?proximately 60% of the people who are going to our State 

prisons are violent offenders, people who are sentenced for violent crimes. Twenty

five percent of the people who are going to our institutions are property crime 

offenders, but when you analyze that statistic you realize that 60% of those 

60% of the 25% which are property offenders -- are convicted of burglary. Again, 

that is the kind of offense that I think most people believe deserves harsh sentences. 

And, even when you analyze those offenders who are in prison for either non-burglary 

property crimes or some other offense where we might feel that something other 

than a prison sentence ought to be imposed, we have to examine the record of each 

of those defendants before we reach a final conclusion, because you may find that 

a defendant who is convicted of a white collar offense may have a record for violent 

crilne and may, based on that record, be a candidate for incarceration in the State 

prison system. 
In addition to what we have tried to do in the criminal justice 

system, we have worked very closely with Bill Fauver and other members of the 

Corrections community to try and address the problem. The statistics I have given 

you have been generated as a result of a joint analysis of the crime statistics 

and incarceration statistics which were done by the Department of Corrections 
and the Department of Law and Public Safety, with direct participation by the 

courts. Obtaining Fort Dix as a temporary relief was a joint effort in which the 

Law Enforcement community participated -- Attorney General Smith was very instrumental 

in persuading the Administration to overcome the objections from the Pllntagon, 

and finally agree to providing Fort Dix to help relieve our problem. ~he Kugler 

Commission was established and has filed a report, which I am sure you have, making 

several recommendations, the most important of which, of-course, was that some 

kind of a legislatively enacted safety valve has to be created in order to relieve 

the pressure, if these trends continue, if there is no aba.tement, and :t.f we simply 

run out Of space. 

We have worked with the courts to try and reduce the population 

in the county jails of pre-trial detainees, trying to weed out from the county 

jails, to relieve pressures on those institutions, those who can safely be placed 
back on the street. Accelerated bail hearings are being h.eld allover the State. 

The assignment judges have received instructions from the Chief Justic~~ to review 

jail population on a regular basis and initiate bail reduction hearings as early 

as possible. 

We are working on the problem l but obviously \'/e cannot solve the 

problem ourselves -- that is, law enforcement and corrections. We have now reached 

the point where the matter has to be dealt wi.th legislatively. How the Legislature 

deals with it is something that I am not about to suggest. But, I can make one 

observation, and that is that the entire problem, not just the problem in the 

correction system, not just the problem of overcrowding in a particular county 
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or a particular city, has to be addressed, but the entire problem has to be addressed 

the entire problem of balancing the need of a community for public safety and 

for the most effective law enforcement we can provide, and at the same time the 

need for humane treatment for those who have been sentenced to incarceration. 

Thank you. 
SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Stier. Are there any questions? 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: One tQinq that concerned me, Mr. Stier, was the 

fact that you stressed the concept of balancing the competing agencies with respect 

to the cost of incarceration, and also the cost of public safety. It is apparent 

that you are doing a hell of a job because people are being incarcerated. But, 

you reflected that in the count~ sentences used to be for a year and now they 

are six months -- I mean, they are incarcerated in the county for six months and 
then they are forwarded on to the State, they become a State burden. If we were 

to go back to the intitial intent and then put the burden on the county, we would 

have the same or a similar problem with the county that we are presently having 

with the State. 

MR. STIER: I am not suggesting that that is an answer, except 

to this extent: if a judge is faced with the alternative of sentencing a defendant 

either to a pE'riod of incarceration for five to ten years, let's say, for a second 

degree offens(', or placing him on probation and sentencing him to a county jail 

for up to six months, he !:lay feel that the sentence of up to six months is inadequate, 

and statistically this appears to be the way sentencing judges are behaving. He 

may feel that six months is not enough time in an institution, and his only other 

option is to then sentence the defendant to five years. If he had more discretion 

to sentence to a county institution for, let's say, up to one year, he might feel 

that one is adequate. So, although the defendant would go to a county jail --
and it is true that for that period of time we wouldn't have solved the problem 

he would stay for a shorter period of time; he would stay for only a year rather 

than the five years, or whatever the period of time he would actually serve would 

be, but it would problably be a shorter period of tj~e. So, the net result over 

a longer period of time would be reduction of prison populations. 

Judges do not seem to be using that: option of sentencing to a county 

jail for six months as a condition to probation. They seem to be taking the option 

of sentencing to State Prison for a more lengthy period of time. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Well, the reason why I brought that to your attention 

was, just recently our own County Executive went on record stating that he just 

can't handle any more. It is also apparent that other counties are having the 

same basic problem. I asked the commissioner -- Commissioner Fauver -- if this 

plan that they are presenting on the projected new beds is truly realistic. I 

am very much concerned about the fact that I don't think it is. Fort Dix is only 

going to be utilized as a stop-gap measure. You made a statement here and you 

gave us the facts, and if anyone should khow, you shoUld know that 60% of those 

State prisoners are presently in there for violent crime. Now, what would Fort. 

Dix be used for? We are using youth centers and other things to accommodate these 

prisoners, so I am beginning to won~er if We do have to bite the bUllet and bring 
the facts out instead of us starting something now only to have it obsolete again 

in three years, and you will be right back here again before. us. 

MR. STIER: I agree with you. All we have been talking about in 

t~rms of increasing bed space are a series of stop-gap measures, to try to solve 
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the present problem of overcrowding. Every indication that we see is,'with that race 

to incarceration under the current sentencing provisions of the code, and given 

the crime rate in the ~tatef and given our rate of solving crimes, those statistics 

will increase: more people are going to go to prison for longer periods of time, 

and as soon as we relieve the present problem, the problem is going to begin to 

build again. I don't know the answer, but I suggest the answer is not simply one 

of dealing with the question of providing more bed space, and it is not simply 

letting more people out of institutions. There has to be an analysis of who is 

going to jail, whether those people are going to prison for the length of time 

they ought to go, and what the cost of that is to the public. Only after you 

consider all those factors can you make an intelligent judgment, it seems to me, 

about whether the answer is in increasing the bed space in the institutions or 

in reducing the numbers of people going into those institutions. 

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Stier, you mentioned in your testimony about 

getting more State prisoners due to sentencing under the new Penal Code, correct? 

MR. STIER: Yes. 

SENATOR CODEY: Well, it seems to me that the situation we are 

in is that a prisoner is a prisoner and he is caught up in the system, whether 

he is in county or in state, and that really has no bearing at this point because 

of the overcrowding. 

MR. STIER: Can I respond to that, Senator? 

SENATOR CODEY: Sure. 

MR. STIER: The only point I wanted to make on that score -- and 

I agree with you 100% -- is that the county and state systems have to be viewed 

as a whole. We have to look at the entire prison population of the State in order 

to understand the problem and begin to deal with it. My only point about making 

a distinction .between a county sentenced inmate and a State prison sentenced inmate 

is that you also have to consider not just the number of people going in but the 

length of time for which they are sentenced. One way to relieve prison population 

is not to send fewer people to prison but to send them there for shorter periods 

of time. And, the one provision of the Code that I was talking about, and th~t 

I wanted to call you attention to, seems to have had the result of people going 

away for longer periods of time than they might otherwise be sent away for if 

there were greater discretion provided to a sentencing judge. That was the only 

point I wanted to make on that. 

SENATOR CODEY: You also mentioned to Senator McManimon, in answer to 

one of his questions,about the effects of longer sentencing and the cost, and whether or 

not it is justified -- I guess it is justified and that we want to do that. I 

can remember reading, just recently, that the odds are that if you are born and 

live all your life in a large American city, you:r:: .. chances of being murd~red are 

greater than an American combat soldier's were in World War II. So, it seems 

to me that the. fear the public has here is justified. They want criminals away 

for longer periods of time, and I think on the bond issue you have seen that is 

their philosophy. They are willing to pay for it, as long as we do it the right 

way. 

MR. STIER: /)'1y own views, of course, are based on my experience 

in law enforcement. I believe we have to respond to the problem of crime by demonstrat

ing that punishment is going to be swift anc1 severe, and that society is not going 

to tolerate the kind of lawJ.essness that we have witnessed over the past several 
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years. I think that if we maintain that posture and if we provide the resources 
to SUpport that kind of approach, that we will eventually turn the corner. We 

are not going to do it alone in law enforcement. I don't think that law enforcement 
is going to solve the problem, any more than law enforcement is responsible for 

the creation of the problem, but I think that law enforcement has an important 
role to play in trying to contain the 
most effective 

problem of crime. I think that we can 
if the philosophy that I just described is continued, yes. 
SENATOR CODEY: Okay. 

be 

SENATOR BASSANO·. Based up k 1 d on your now e ge of the criminal justice 
system, in dealing with the new Pe 1 C d d h 

na 0 e an t e projections the new Penal Code 
is giving off with regard to th b f b d h c num er 0 est at are going to be needed in 
the futUre, what do you see as the need for the State' f 

o New Jersey to have facilities 
additional bed facilities -- to meet our needs? What 
being? - do you see that number as 

MR. STIER: I wish I could give you an answer on that. I have 
seen proJ'ections that with~n two ye '11 d d b • ars we w~ nee ou le the bed space we have. 
I don't know how valia those projections are. I don't know how realistic they 

are. There are variables that make it very difficult to project a specific number. 
I would have to-- I couldn't ' , t 1 

g~ve you an ~n e ligent answer to that that I would 
I can tell you that given the current trends and the rates 

the bed space which is being projected will be inadequate to 

be satisfied with. 

that we have seen, 
handle what we see coming down the pike. 

SENATOR BASSANO: It makes it rather difficult for this Committee 
to try to make recommendations to the LegislatUre to look to the futuro when the 
future is so black in th th t ' 
we are moving in. 

e sense a we Just don't have any idea as to what direction 

MR. STIER: I was offered the resources of our Department to work 
with the Legislature, with your Committee, to try to make those projections. I 

don't think this is something that we alone are going to be capable of forecasting. 

I think it is something we would have to come up with jointly. We do have the 

numbers. We do have the raw data, and we would be more than hap.py to work with 
the staff of the Committee to try and g~ve you th 'f 
an intelligent projection. 

• e ~n ormation you need to make 

SENATOR BASSANO: I would hope that you would do that, because 
it would make our job a little easier also. 

MR. STIER: Certainly. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Stier. 

Our next witness is Mr. Anthony Fuccello, President of the Association 
of Wardens. Mr. Fuccello, good morning. 

ANT H 0 N Y F U C C ELL 0: Good morning. I apologize for not having 
anything prepared to hand to your Committee. I appreciate the opportunity to 

be here today on behalf of the County Jail Wardens. We have approximately 12 

to 15 county jail wardens represented here today, along with the sheriffs who 
have charge of the county jails. 

I have heard statistiqs spoken of here this morning that reflect 
our predicament of overcrowding in the county jaiis, but statistics don't really 

do our situation that much justice, There are a lot of people problems that go 

with ovC'rcrowdinq in county jailR, an.d probably that will be tho main focuS Df 
my testimony here today_ 

It is an established fact, of course, that we are overcrowded. 
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Approximately 70% of our 26 county institutions are beyond their rate of capacity 

at this point. The range of that overcrowding is between 81% and 201%. As Mr. 

Fauver has said, there are approximately 1,000 inmates in county jails that are 

beyond our rated capacities, of which 1100 are really state prison inmates awaiting 

transfer into the state prison system. 
Our numbers began to climb approximately one year ago, and have 

been climbing at approximately the rate of 2% per month since a year ago today. 

Overcrowding in jails can have a very devastati~geffect on the people required 

to live and work in those institutions, especially the pre-trial status 

in the county jails. Inmates are extra hyper~ they are overactive. Their condition 

is unsettled: they don't know what is happening to them~ they don't know what 

is happening to their familiesi they don't have that peace of mind of knowing, 

"I have six months to serve", or "I have six years to serve." Consequently, they 

are in a continuous hyperactive state. When you begin to overcrowd people who 

are in this hyperactive state, there is a literal lack of personal space. People 

can't stretch out. They can't get away from the people they live with, day in 

and day out, and in that hyperactive state there is a lot more aggression, there 

are a lot more fights, there is a lot more bickering and stealin~ from each other, 

etc. 

Merely by multiplication, th~ problems that we normally encounter 

in county jails are multiplied by our higher numbers. There is more contraband 

corning into the institutions. There is more sexual activity in the institutions. 

There is more noise. There are more complaints. There is more discipline -

just more of everything because of the high numbers. Our essential services are 

taxed beyond their limits -- medical services, food services, social services, 

and education. Visits are restricted, necessarily; so is recreation. This causes 

concern with inmates/that they don't have the opportunity to release their frustrations. 

Consequently, the system feeds on itself and they become more hyper, more overactive, 

more aggressive. 

As a result of all of this, our staff is subjected to stress that 

is beyond description. They are more Prone, because .of this stress, to accident, 

they are more prone to illness, they are more prone to sicknesses that cause them 

to go off the job. When they are off the job we must fill these spaces with overtime. 

That means somebody else is working more. Consequently, there is more stress, 

more sickness, and more illness, and, again., the system feeds on itself. 

Our staff gets short-tempered. They begin to write more charges 

against inmates. And, again, it feeds on itself. 

What do we do with the people we don't have room for? What do 

we do with the people who go beyond our rate of capacity? Well, if we are lucky, 

we can double-bunk -- and I say that with tongue in cheek, of course. If we can't 

double-bunk, we begin to use classroom space and dormitories -- we create doDnitory 

situations -- we begin to use recreation rOOmS,or hallway's, and they start sleeping 

on the floor.. When we use classrooms, or recreation areas, that takes programs 

away from us, and, again, tb"ese programs are designeq. to relieve some the frustration, 

and without that, we have more of the same -- more fights, etc. 

One thing that you must bear in mind is that not all county jails 

are built the same, and it is quite possible for one county jail that is at 110% 

of capacity to be able to pandle that llO%~ another Gounty with the same figure 

could in no way handle it. It depends upon where you have to put your people. 
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If you have to put them in classrooms, if you have to use gymnasiums, you are 

compounding your problem by taking away those program areas. County jails --

as has been mentioned -- should not operate beyond 90% of their rate of capacity. 

You need that 10% to move people around, to separate people who cannot be with 

each other by reason of the fact that they are co~defendants, or they may be 

in there for assaulting each other and they need to be separated. And, if you 

have disciplinary problems, you need places to lock people up. So, you need that 

10% room in your jail just to move people around. 

I would like to draw an analogy if I can between overcrowding and 

a drowning man -- a person who is a non-swimmer and who is in water. The non
swimmer in water can drown in six feet of water~ he doesn't need twenty feet. 

So, it doesn't matter if it is 200% or 110%, it depends on who you are and what 

your physical plant is, and you could be in the same situation. 

What are the solutions? I don't know, and I don't believe our 

county jail people really know what the solutions are. To over-simplify a very 

complicated problem, we need to either loosen up some of the cells that we have 

in the St&te by releasing -- early releases, etc. -- those offenders who are not 

of an assaultive nature, or we need to build more cells. It is as simple as that, 

from a simplistic viewpoint. I will leave it to people who are more intelligent 

than I am, or who are more experienced in this field than I am, to corne up with 

the solid answers. I believe my colleagues will stand by me when I say that we 

keep so busy on a daily basis, just trying to keep our heads above water, that 

we don't have time to sit back, reflect, and think of long term, or even short 

term, solution~ beyond tomorrow. 
As I said, there are approximately 12 to 15 counties represented 

here today, and I realize they are not on your agenda, but I am sure they would 

be willing to corne forward and speak if you wanted to hear some particular problems 

of other areas. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fuccello. You are also the warden in 

Mercer County? 

MR. FUCCELLO: Merc~r Oounty, yes. 

SENATOR CODEY: It would appear that your situation is not nearly 

as bad as some of your collegues. 
MR. FUCCELLO: In terms of percentage of numbers, no. We are bouncing 

around 120%, but we are one of those institutions that doesn't have the luxury 

of double bunking. Our physical plant does not allow us to do that without some 

major construction work being done. We are one of the ones who have to use program 

space. We are taking classrooms and making dormit.ories out of them. Our next 

step is going to be using the gymnasium. Again, that is not a desirable thing 

to do. 
SENATOR CODEY: Do you feel that your colleagues have expressed 

the acuteness of the problem to yo~ that these county institutions themselves 

are ready to explode? 
MR. FUCCELLO: Yes, they have to some degree. My heart goes out 

to Passaic County in particular, who recently experienced a population of over 

200%. Because he is facing such sheer numbers, he doesn't get to our meetings 

that often, so he can't really relate that kind of information to me. Again, 

maybe you might want to ask Passaic County some questions directly. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fuccello. 

MR. FUCCELLO: Thank you, Senator. 
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SENATOR CODEY: 

of the Atlantic County Jail. 

J 0 S E P H WAG N E R: 

Our next witness will be Mr. Joseph Wagner, Warden 
Mr. Wagner. 

I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak 
today. I want to be brief, but I want to talk to you about what it is like in 

the county jail since I have been the warden of the Atlantic County Jail. 

The county jail, today, has 255 inmates. We have 186 beds. That 

means the rest of the people are sleeping on matresses on the floor. It is that 

simple. Sixty of the people in our jail belong in State Prison. According to 

the statute, they are to be held only 15 days in the county jail and then they 

are to be transfer.red to the State. That is a very good statute, because the 

difference between a person who is sent to State prison and a person who is to 

be held in a county jail is great. It is not the same as putting one person here 
or one person there. 

If a person is awaiting trial, that is the type of person that 

was intended for a county jail -- a detention facility -- until their speedy trial 

can be held. A person awaiting trial doesn't know what is going to happen. He 

doesn't know if he is going to be convicted. He doesn't know vlhat the future 

actually holds. We do hold people for six months, or under a year, who have been 
sentenced, but that is still less than a year. 

However, the day a person is convicted and especially the day this 

person is sentenced to State prison, I would ask you to take just a few moments 

yourself and think what would go through your mind if someone said: "you will 

spend the next ten years in State prison." That is the end. That is the end 

of hope. That is our most dangerous ending, right at that point. What does he 

have to lose? Ten years of his life he is going to lose. And, we are getting 

sentences of 20 years and 40 years. When you consider this, you can see it is 

not the same. A person who is sentenced to State prison should be quickly moved 

to a State facility. We have our own problems with county prisoners -- those 

sentenced to a county jail. Our prison rate has gone up there also. We used 

to have 40 to 50 people sentenced to county jail; we have 80 today. 

We have put in all the programs in Atlantic County that we possibly 
can to reduce the detainees. We have a bail unit. We have the early release, 

pre-trial intervention. We have done everything on that end of it, from the courts. 

The people I have in my jail today are violent. They should not be on the street. 

There is ~ot a warden in this room who is saying that -- that they should be released. 

But, at the same time, there are many people in this room who knew the problem back in 1974, 
when we sat on the planning commissions I and when, they cane out with their plan in 

1975, 1976, and 1977. During that time we heard 4,800 beds were going to be needed 

by the year 1990. That was reduced to 1200. All right. We have not yet built 
one. 

It is a matter of where are you going to place them? No one wants 
jail. No one wants crime. Simply put, put one in the north, one in central, 
and one in the south, but you must build. 

For those who say, "No, we don't need any more bed space;" "We don't 

need any more jail space," ask them what they want to do with these people. But, 

don't ask the wardens to let th~ sleep on the floor. It is not an easy task. 

Anyone who walks through the jail, as we should and as we do, daily, can see the 

tension. One can see the problems. If you were to talk to someone who has been 

sentenced to 20 to 40 years in State prison, you would understand why I am so 

concerned that they be moved quickly. The answers are very difficult. 
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I don't what to take up your time, I just want to let you know 

that there is a great difference between a person who is sentenced to State prison 

and a person who should be housed in a county jail. Where you find the bed space 

there are mental hospitals, there are other camps; there is space around. We 

are expecting an increase, as usual, since it is a resort community, of 40 to 60 

people during the summer months. I am now 60 over capacity. That will make it 

120. You have the figures, I am sure, and I don't want to belabor the point. 

But, we do have a problem. 

SENATOR CODEY: Senator McManimon. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Yes, I am very much concerned about that report 

and that projection back in '76 and '77, when you said 4,000 additional bed spaces were needed. 

Am I to assume that is collectively, both State and county, and not just county? 

MR. WAGNER: No, it was the Master Plan for the Department of Corrections. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Which would encompass both county and State? 

MR. WAGNER: No, just the State, State prison beds. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Just the State? I asked the question, prior 

to your speaking, of the other speakers about the realistic approach to be made 

on this bond issue, which is only projecting 1572 beds. 

MR. WAGNER: That's what came down. But, the projections in the 

meetings that we held before -- the general consensus was we would need 4,800. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: That's on the State level. 

MR. WAGNER: Yes. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: It is completely disregarding the fact that 

we have a serious problem already on the county level. 

MR. WAGNER: That's correct. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: And we know the serious problem we have on 

the State level, and the bond monies are projecting 1,572 new beds. 

MR. WAGNER: We have projected in Atlantic cou~ty -- we are about 

to build a new jail -- back two to three years ago that we were going to need 

the additional beds. 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: One other statement you made that concerned 

me very much too -- it was apparent from both Mr. Fauver and Mr. Stier -- was 

that the overcrowding situation definitely relects back on the new Code of Criminal 

Justice and the new Parole Act, and, in conjunction with that, the Speedy Trail 

Program. Now, if our already projected increase of those going to State prison 

is 70%, and you already have a figure estimated for this summer -- and you are 

just mentioning Atlantic County -- if you take the 21 counties throughout the 

State and you use the same percentage, I think basically we are going to have 

to face the reality that this whole plan is completely way out of whack. We are 

not even going to touch one part of what we should be projecting. 

MR. WAGNER: That's correct. The parole has released only half 

this year of what they did last year. 

SENATOR I-1C MANIMON: Thank you very much, sir. 

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Wagner, the Kughler Report of a couple of months 

ago -- we now have a little over 5,000 prisoners, and they projected that in nine 

years we will have close to 15,000, so you can see the numbers we are talking 

about. 

MR. WAGNER: One of the things that should be looked into for the 

immediate solution would be early release. It is a hard thing to accept, but 
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if a person is going to be released next Wednesday from jail -- from State prison 

he is not going to be rehabilitated in the next week. And, if he has done the 
major part of his sentence, that may be a quick stop-gap. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Wagner. 
Mr. Thomas Smith, Assistant Public Defender, Department of the 

Public Advocate. 
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THO MAS S MIT H: Thank you for inviting our office to participate at the .' 
hearings. As many of you know, we handle about 80 to 85 percent of the criminal calendar 

in the State of New Jersey. Of that 80 to 85 percent, you could say over 90 percent 

who are incarGerated are represenbed,by our office. So, we have an acute interest 
in problems of overcrowding ip both the State institutions and in the county institutions. 

You previously heard testimony as to facts concerning conditions in 

our county jails; and, going into those jails day-in and day-out, we see those 
problems. The overcrowding has caused the double-ceIling in cells that have been designed 
for one person. Traditional areas that we used fo:c recreation, we used for work release 
programs, we used for education, are now being used to house inmates. This has increased 
tensions and has caused us problems in providing representation to the inmates -- in 

getting space to interview them, etc. 
I am not going to take up the committee's time by telling what we call 

"war stories", but I would like to relay one story that we came across in a particular 

county jail: Two inmates were placed in a cell that was designed for one illi~ate. 

That necessitated that one inmaC!i would sleep on the bunk, and one inmate would sleep 
on a mattress on the floor. The mattress was partially under the commode; so,in 

essence, one of the inmates was sleeping under the commode. One of the inmates that 

was placed in this cell was a person who was in jail on a failure to pay motor vehicle 

fines and had a slight bail of $500.00 - both of these were pre-trial. The other 
person was in on a case of possession of CDS, less than 25 grams - possession of marijuana. 
His bail was $1,000.00. Now, the unwritten rule amongst the inmates is that seniority 
cou;nts, and if you have been in the cell long enough, you get the bunk, and if you 

huvt( been there the shorter period of time, you get the mattress. There was an 
altercation as to who had the seniority, because one of the inmates had paid part 
of his fine and had left but \'las thrown back in jail ,in the next couple of days. He 

argu~;d that he had seniority from his past time. The other inmate said, "No, your 
time.ended. It broke. I have seniority. I have been in this cell the longest period 

I', 
of ti\;tle on a continuous basis." An altercation develoPed. !I. stabbing took place. 

One Ol; the inmates allegedly stabb~d the other inmate in the kidney. So, now we 

have a', situation where we have two inmates on minor offenses; one inmate now has an 
II 

indict;~ble offense against him and ,the other inmate is seriously injured. 

\ These are the kinds of things that develop in the county jails that 
exacer}j~te problems -- the overcrowing and the tension, etc. Now, what can be done? What 
! would . like to do is pose a few qu!,!stions in areal'! I think the Committee oucrht to take a 

look at \when they deliberate on the questions of overcrowding. I am focusing basically on the 
county jails which we a~e really familiar with and with which we are involved ~n litiqation. 
I will talk about that later. 

The first area to take a look at is "bail". A number of pre-trial 

detainees are in county jails on low ba.ils. They are in on offenses of property crimes, 

thefts, motor vehicle viblations, failure to pay fines, etc., and these bails run 
anywhere from $50.00 up to one or two thousand dollars, which is a relatively low bail. 

One area which the Committee ought to look at, I suggest, is the question of whether 
these individuals can be released without this bail hanging over their head - possiblyon 
R & Rr or some form of work program, etc. so that the inmates who go to jail are people 
with high bail; people who are facing serious offenses. 

Also the mechanics of bail should be looked at. In one county, 

we have a sAtuation where if yOl,l are. going to post bond using real property, you have 

to prove that the real property value is twice that of the bail. You also have to 

go out and get an accessor to come in and do an evaluation of the value of the property, 
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and then make a report. All of this slows down the eventual release of somebody on bail 

so posf'ibly the bail mechanics should be looked at. 

I think ultimately you are going to take a look at-- Given the situation 

and given the facts that we have limited space, we are going to have to prioritize who 

we lock up - this is both pre-trial and post disposition. The Penal Code, the effect 

of the parole statute, and other things have created a situation where many more 

individuals are going to jail for longer periods of time and facing more time. We should 

take a look at the question of minor offenses - whether in fact they ought to be 

susceptible to an incarceration period, the question of whether they ought to be ~usceptible 

to bail at all. It is a question of prioritizing the kinds of offenses with the available 

space. 

Tne third area I would like to pose to the Committee is the question of 

"parole". Not so much from the standpoint of early consideration of parole - that is 

a legislative function and the Legislature took a look at that, and I think the 

present mood of this State is that the parole law should be tough. We have a situation 

where inmates,both in the county facilities dnd in the State facilities,have been 

determineti to be releasible, but they are released sometime in the future. Possibly 

we could accelerate that release both in the county facilities and in the State facilities. 

In other words, they have gone before the parole board, and the parole board says, "Yes, 

we are going to release you, but we are going to release you in one month, two months, three 
months down the road". If there is proper pre-parole planning, you should be able to 

release those inmates \.,ithin ten, fifteen, maybe twenty days of the final determination of 

the parole board. 

We also have the problem, that has been exacerbated by having State 

prison inmates in ~ounty jails, of classification. Every inmate that goes into the 

prison system is classified. He is given what is called a "goal date" as to when 

he or she can be released from parole. A number of these inmates have been sentenced 

to county facilities. The classification process sometimes does not reach them for 

substantial periods of time; therefore, they are not classified or given what we call 

a "state prison number" right away. The State Parole Board,to their credit,has made 

concerted efforts to try to get those inmates classified. We have come across 

instances where inmates have spent time in county jails and have not been classified; 

and at the point they become classified, it is determined that they were eligible for parole 
at that time or prior to that. A greater effort needs to be made to classify State 

prison inmates in the county jails. 

Finally, one of the areas that we think is somewhat exciting is. the 

questfon 6Jf the use -- I kno· .... they have a program in Monmouth County -- of releasing 

inmates or not sentencing them to county jail time in order to provide sorne form of public 
service, in essence, sentencing them to a public service. 

I am from Monmouth County and I am aware of a program which Judge Shebell 

has started in Monmouth County. I think Mayor Scioffi of Long Branch has agreed to 

participate in the program where you have a person to be sentenced before a judge who 

really does not need to be locked up but needs something, and maybe probation is not 

enough. Possibly working for a local municipality in the interim and not taking up 

bed space in the county jail would be better. I think that is an area that this Committee 

could take a look at. 
The laBt area that we have been involved in is the question of litigation. 

The Office of the Public Defender's position is that they do not like to see the 

Federal courts operate our county jails or state prisons. We have been forced, and we 
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were forced to file litigation in Union County, whereupon. we were able to achieve a 

consent decree with the County putting a cap on the number of inmates that can be 

housed in that facility - both state inmates and county inmates. In fact, this morning 

one of our attorneys was before Justice Mountain. They are having an evidentiary hearing 

on the implementation of that consent d.acree. We do not want to be put in the position 

of having to file litigatio~ because we feel that the State should control its own 

institutions. But where the institutions have become so crowded thatconstitutiona~rights 
either have been violated or about to be violated, then one of the only solutions available 
at that point is litigation. That is another area which we do not like to talk about 

we only do that as a last resort, but that is one the solution areas that we have used 
in the past. 

We have also instructed our attorneys to pay closer attention to the jail 
and to make as many bail hearings as possible so that we can get inmates that we feel 

should be on the street that can make bail. Sometimes we run into a stone wall where a 

jpdge will not lower the bail. We can make two or three bail motions and they still will 
not lower the bail. 

One or two of the things that I have talked about are really not the 
solution. It is probably a combination of both or somewhere between the two extremes 

of releasing individuals or locking them up. The correctiona policy and the penal 

policy are "out of sync. " This Legislature passed a bill which has had the effects 

of locking up more people for longer periods of time. Obviously) as we have heard today, 
there just wasn't any space for that. I would also caution the Committee to really 

pay attention to the effects of mandatory-minimum sentencing. We have not seen that 

effect yet, and that will probably exacerbate the problem even more because more and more 

of our clients are being sentenced to mandatory-minimum sentences, which means that 

Where a b~d turned over in a certain time frame, it is not going to turn over for five, 
maybe ten, fifteen, or twenty years. That will also exacerbate the problem. These two 

elements, the penal policy and correctionsl policy, must become more "in sync" so that 

if in fact the policy judgement is made by the legislature to pass new statutes which have 
the effect of locking up more individuals, then that space will be there. 

That concludes my comments and I will answer any questions. I would also 
add that if we can be of any assistance to you, we would be glad to help you in any way 
that we can. 

SENATOR COnEY: Are there any questions? (No response) 
Thank you very much .• 

MR. SMITH: Thank you. 

SENATOR COnEY: Next, we will hear from Mr. Donald Phelan, Chief of 
Pre-trial Services, Administrative Office of the Courts. 

DONALD P H E LAN: Our agency wishes to thank the Committee for the opportunity 
to share with it some of the things that we have done in the area of jail overcrowding. 
My remarks and presentations will deal almost exclusively with the county jail over
crowding issue, and some of the functions that the court has with respect to the 

operations within the system at the local level and some of things that we have done in 
the pre-trial area. 

We began to look at this problem very closely in late 1980; and in January 
of 1981, we conducted a comprehensive survey of the county jail situation. We were 

particularly interested in the categories of offenders who were detained in facilities 
awaiting trial either in the municipal courts or within the superior courts. The core 

of the information that we gathered during the survey was done through the cooperation 
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of the State Warden I s Association - Warden Fuccello made his presentation this morning -

as well as the cooperation of the individual wardens and sheriffs of the twenty-five 

local facilities. The information zeroed in on a review of the yearly higmand lows for 

the facilities covering the last decade, how the institutions handled th~ administrative 
bail and pre-trial release, and adetailed analysis of the facilities' population for 

a day selected by the facility in the month of January. The only restriction placed on 

that was the facility had to select a day - midweek - so that it would be ~ore representa

tive of an average rather than looking at a Monday, or a Friday, or over the weekend when the 

facilities were generally a little inflated. 

As I mentioned, we looked at the whole facility and concentrated primarily 

on the pre-trial population. As Warden Fuccello has indicated as well as Warden Wagner, 

the situation in the local facility is quite different than in the state facility. Their 

population is perhaps a little bit more dynamic. In the pre-trial area, there are a number 

of different classifications that the local people have to contend with - some of those 

are what we call "a whole population", which is a commitment before an arraignment takes 
place. This generally takes place in the evening or in the morning hours when courts 

are generally not in session. There is a classification called a "temporary commitment", 

which takes after the arraignment where the offender may be awaiting a scheduled hearing 

within a day or two in one of the courts. There is a commitbed population which generally 

relates to those individuals who have been arraigned in the municipal court on indictable 

offenses and the matter has been referred to the Grand J\~y. Then you have your sentenced 

population divided by those serving sentences in county institutions, inmates 

awaiting transfer to prison, and then spacial population, such as weekend offenders, offend

ers serving weekend time, work release programs, and the like. 
A further stratification was made in the pre-trial area to see how 

many were committed without bail conditions being set. Falling within this 

category were the population where a municipal court judge has the authority to set the 

bail in the first instance. The second ca~egory was where individuals were committed where 

bail had been set for some reason they could not post it. The third category was 

those committed where bail conditions had been set, but detainers had been filed 

either there was a probation revocation filed, a parole violation, or a detainer from 

another jurisdiction. And the fourth category was where an offender was committed where 

no bail had been set because the bail setting authority was not within the province of the 

municipal court. There are, under rules of the court, special categories of offenders where 

only superior court judges can set the bailor pre-trial release conditions. These are 

generally' in the more serious crime categories - first and second degree offenses. 

The overall goal of our endeavor was to isolaue possible problem areas 

by dividing and taking a look at the population and seeing if there were disproportionately 

high counts in any segments which could be viewed as problem, areas that should be attended 

to. Some of our findings I think are very informative and some of them are displayed 

on the charts. The chart that is displayed now gives the median ranking in the facilities 

- the various twenty-five facilities- some of them are not included in the January column 

because the information was not available at the time the charts were put together

however, their information has subsequently been factored in, and the percentages that 

are displayed really do not change substantially. 

In January, overall, the median was 105 percent of the rated capacity for 
the county system, broken down in a range of anywhere from 21 to 1:58 percent. You can 

see that in M~y, the median remained about the same, however, the range had increased 

between 33 and 166 percent. As of last Tuesday, a little over a year after the January 

information was collected, the median had increased to 121 percent and the range had 
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increased to 63 to 213 percent. In January of 1981, we discovered that 71.8 percent of 

the county jail population were pre-trial detainees. Sixteen percent of those were 

temporary commitments, and the remaining 84 percent were committed to waiting further 

processing either in the municipal or superior court • 

A closer look at the bail status of that population revealed the fact 

that three percent were being detained without having bail set,generally falling into the 

category of those waiting to go back to the municipal courts; 18 percent had detainers 

filed on them - bail had been set, but there were detainers filed, and if the detainers 
were not lifted, the defendant could go nowhere - seven percent were awaiting action ~n 

the superior court on the more serious offenses for bail setting purposes. 

Compared to the entire faqility., about half of the facility then repre

sented defendants who were in a pre-trial category. We also set forth some of the 

information on the sentenced population, which you can see 29 percent of the population 

were sentenced, 62 percent to county terms, 18 percent to work release programs and weekend 

sentences, and 20 percent awaiting transfer to state prison. 

The final segment of that survey included some candid observation by 

the administrators of the facilities as to what had caused the problems. I think 

generally most of those have been covered this morning, most notably among them 

the penal code, the state overcrowding situation, the general economic conditions 

related to increases in crime, and the shrinking resources available in tile health 

service system that services the county facilities, such as the drug and alcohol programs 

in mental health. 

Following our analysis of that information, we met w'ith the assignment 

judges and the Chief Justice, and discussed the situation and looked at various things 

that could be done immediately to perhaps impact on the local jail situation -

especially in the bail and the pre-trial release area. A series of recommendations were 

agreed upon and adopted by the assignment judges at the urging of the Chief Justice. 

Some of those recommendations included the following: Judges and staffs of pre-trial 

release programs were to be available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. In most 

counties there are pre-trial release staffuon call in every county. There is a list of 

emergent judges who are available twenty-four hours, seven days a week for bail and 
pre-trial release sebting purposes as well as for other court related matters. 

Emphasis was placed on trying non-indictable cases more quickly than 

it had been done in the past. The municipal judges were asked to accelerate the number 

of court schedules they had, and to try the non-indictable cases sooner than perhaps 

were scheduled in the past. Of course,we have to appreciate in this situation that the 

majority of the SOD-odd municipal courts are all part time. It is difficult for 

them to meet more frequently than they are now. A lot of them are meeting very 

frequently, and in some cases, although they are only part time, they are really 

functioning full time in their capacity. 

Another action that was taken was an immediate notification on NO Bills 

and remands from the Grand Jury so that if an offender was incarcerated in th~ county 

institution awaiting action by the Grand Jury if the Grand Jury returned a No Bill, 
there would be an immediate release. If there was a No. Bill Remand, whicI! is a downgrade, then the 
matter could go back to the municipal court. Actions were instituted to give immediate 

notification to the municipal court so that they could schedule that matter. 
The fourth recommendation which was implemented was the adoption of the 

ten p'ercent cash bail program throughout the State; and as of last month, the program 

is now operational in each one of the twenty-one counties. 

A fifth step that was 'taken was a process to immediately review bail and 

pre-trial release conditions o.f all offenders incarcerated in the county jails. Even 
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though a municipal judge may initially set the bail the day following the commitment 

to the county facility, a superior court judge now reviews the condition, and if the 

situationwarrants it, the conditions are lessened or the defendant is released in 

his own recognizance. 
The last recommendation that was made and implemented was that the 

assignment judge, himself, take a more active, closer role in the monitoring of the 

jail list and jail cases to make sure that the judiciary was doing everything that it 

should do in light of the situation. 

As a result of the action in these steps that I have outlined for the 

Committee, we have not,iced ,a significant decrease in the pre-trial population in the 

county facilities. As I mentioned, in January of 1981, the pre-trial population stood 

at 71 percent. As of last Tuesday, the pre-trial population stood at 57. percent, and 

it has been at that figure for about the last six or seven months. We have also 

noticed a slight decrease in the number of county sentences, and they have decreased 

by about three percent. Unfortunately, and I think as everyone knows and can appreciate, 
the number of state prisoners held within the county institutions has dramatically 

increased; and between January of 1981 and Tuesday of this week, there was an increase 

of one hundred and thirty-one and a half percent. Basically that is what our agency 

has done in cooperation with the judiciary. I am not sure that I can present any 

miracle solutions to the problem, but I can assure the Committee that we will continue 

to do everything within our power to help alleviate the situation and,as the others 

have indicated,.we certainly are more than willing to \'lOrk with the ,Committee in any 

way that you feel will be helpful. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR CODEY: Are there any questions? (No respcmse) 

Mr. Phelan, it would appear to me that you have been on top of the 

problem and all I can say to you is you have to keep on top of the problem because 

I am sure as you heard this morning, it is only going to get worSe. You have to do 

your part in your capacity to help it. 
MR. PHELAN: We do, and I think the judges are very sensitive to the 

problo.m. They are also very sensitive to the community; they will release those that 
meet the conditions, according to the standards that have been set forth, 

taking into consideration the seriousness of the offense, the offender himself, the 

possible consequences of the actions and all the other things that go into trying to 

predict what condition would be proper and insure the defendant's appearance when 

the defendant is scheduled to appear. 

SENATOR CODEY: It WOUldn't be a bad idea to let them go through the 

jail. 
We are going to take a recess and corne back in 45 minutes. 

(Recess for Lunch) 
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SENATOR COrEY: Our next witness will be Lucy McKenzie from the 

New Jersey Association on Correction. 

L U C Y M C KEN Z I E; Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Lucy McKenzie, Director 

of the Citizen Action Division of the New Jersey Association on Correction. The 

Association is a citizens' organization, concerned with the enormous economic, social, and 

human cause of crime in New Jersey. We have been working for more than twenty years to 

improve the effectiveness of New Jersey's criminal justice system through our Citizen 

Action Division, and to provide services to offenders and ex-offenders which will help 

them return to their communities as self-sufficient citizens through our Moral Projects 

Division. These services include: half-way houses in Trenton and New Brunswick, whose 

residents are state prisoners nearing parole, and county prisoners sentenced directly to 

the house upon conviction. 
Mr. Chairman, with your approval, I will skip some of this which tells 

you about how horrible the conditions are. I think you fully understand that. 

In answer to Senator Bassano's question quoting the task force on 

prison overcrowding, the population of the state prison complex alone, which is the maximum 

and medium secmrity facilities, will quadruple by 1990. The additional cost to incarcerate 

these people wil.l rise from 20 million to 151 million. Capital needs for bed spaces 

could be 480 million, not including the inflation factor, the renovation of existing 

substandard facilities or debt service. Th= interest on bonds alone would double the 
the 280 million fj.gure. 

Another crucial factor is the virtual impossibility of finding prison 

sites acceptable to both the state and the community involved. No one imagines that the 

State of New Jersey, faced with increasing needs and diminishing resources, will spend 

this amount of money for prisons and jails. Other solutions must be found. 

First, however, we must understand the cause of this dramatic increase 

in the incarcerated population.-- without belaboring the point, I point to the Criminal 

Code. Still to come is an additional population increase resulting from the 1981 

law, requiring both extended and mandatory terms for certain crimes involving the use 

or possession of a firearm. 

On January 31, the editors of the Bergen Record said the unsayable. 

That day's editorial stated, "There is one thing that can be done right away - repeal 

or suspend those laws that call for mandatory and minimum sentences for certain crimes. 

What has happened here is a breakdown in the system.- as shocking and as predictable 

as the collapse of an overloaded bridge or watermain. To deal with the crime wave, 

we pass tougher laws. It seemed logical and even necessary at the time, but few of 

us stop to think what would happen when these laws started putting out more prisoners 

than the system could handled. Now that day has arrived, and it is time to face a 

painful truth: until the prisons are no longer full to bursting - until the State has 

found other ways, like work release and community-service sentences to punish criminals 

we are going to have to do without mandatory sentences. It is that simple." 

The Association on Correction finds the Record's logic unassailable, and 

we support its recommendation. It is time for a reappraisal of sentencing in the cold 

light of reality. With or without the repeal or suspension of mandatory sentences, common 

sense requires that other measures be taken to deal with the emergency. The Task fiorce 

on Prison Overcrowding, whose report we support, makes the following constructive 

suggestiohs: 

First, an estimated 500 individuals are being denied parole, only because 

of the lack of suitable residential and non-residential mental health and substance 

abuse proqrams. That is more t:han the projected population of the new Camden prison. 
Every effort should be made to locate and appropriate funds for more community facilities. 
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Two, the Legislature should appropriate funds for the establishment 

of alternatives to incarceration. I am quoting from the report: "A strong argument can be 
made that if practical alternatives to incarceration are created, judges may feel that 

they can responsibly make more uee of probation. Additionally, the cost of handling 

;." ~.- < • •• 

an offender on probation or parole is much less than the expense of incarceration." 

Among the most widely used alternatives are: first, community service and restitution. 

Restitution requires the offender to reimburse the victim for damage done, while 

community service requires the offender to perform work, free of charge, for public 

and private agencies in the community. This kind of sentence can serve several purposes: 

to compensate the victim; to provide community services which otherwise would go undone; 

to link the punishment with the crime~ and, to save taxpayer dollars and relieve over

crowding. 
Good programs now exist in a few counties, but most are federally funded 

and in danger of elimination. 
Second, half-way houses. There are presently available, 190 to 200 

half-way house beds located in Trenton, Camden, New Brunswick, and Newark, with the 

State, the counties, and the federal government competing for the spaces. 

The per diem cost at a half-way house is far less than the per diem in 

the county jail. The half-way house alternative helps to smooth the transition from 

prison to life outside for the offender. A survey conducted by the Association in 

mid 1981 revealed that the operators of existing facilities are willing and able to 

expand their operations. They cannot do so, however, without assurance that the 

additional beds will be filled. 
The present state budget allows the Department of Corrections to spend 

175,000 dollars for community half-way house beds. Many other states depend heavily 

upon this alternative. Ohio has 21 half-way houses for 625 offenders, with a state 

appropriation of$3.6 million; Michigan has 2,200 offenders in 100 half-way houses 

across the state. 
Other alternatives, such as intensive supervision and house arrest, 

are, now under examination as part of a statewide study of probation initiated by the 

Chief Justice. Recommendations will be made at a June conference. 

Third, parole should be available for inmates serving less than one 

year. Legislative action is needed to implement this recommendation. 

Fourth, the Legislature should pass a statute which would permit the 

early release to prisoners nearing the end of their sentences in the event of serious 

overcrowding. Such a statute which would be triggered only by a declaration of 

emergency by the Commissioner of Corrections and the Governor, upon a: finding of serious 

and protracted prison overcrowding, would accelerate parole eligibility by 90 days. 
Eligibility would not mean automatic release - the existing standards for parole would 

still have to be ~et. Such a statute has been adopted by several other states. In 

Michigan, approximately 800 prisoners were granted early release in May, 1981, without 

adverse public reaction. 
This is a very reasonable response to the problem of the gross over

crowding. Overcrowcring is not a temporary, mildly uncomfortable condition - it 

gives rise to problems and circumstances so horrible as to be unimaginable to those who 

only read about them. The public cannot imagine the strain upon inmates and correctional 

officers which results from such conditions as now exist in many of New Jersey's prisons 

and jC'_~ls. We have no right, either legal or moral, to inflict such .conditions llPon 

the keepers or the kept. Those in the best position to know have said repeatedly that 

we are living on borrowed time. Under the circumstances, early .release seems eminately 

sensible. There is milch more to be said about overcrowding than time permits. It would 
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make the task of this Committee easier if the 120 members of the Legislature were well 

informed about the crisis in Corrections. To this end, I have suggested to the Assembly 

Majority Leader that a briefing be held for legislators with the assistance of the 

Department of Corrections and AOC, He likes the idea, and I now make the same suggestion 
to you with regard to the Senate, Mr. Chairman. 

This Committee hearing, we hope, is a sign that the State's resources 

will now be brought to bear upon the problemqf overcrowding. The Association on 

Corrections is anxious to share the information we have acquired over the past year, 

and we look forward to working with the Committee in the months to come. We thank you 

for the opportunity to share our views with you today. (See appendix for Ms.Mackenzie's full statement) 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much, Ms. McKenzie. Our next witness is 
Mr. Peter Shapiro, County Executive of Essex County. 

PET E R S HAP I R 0: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and members of the 

Committee. My name is Peter Shapiro. I am the County Executive of Essex County, 

New Jersey and,as such, I am the Chief Administrative Official responsible for the 

operation of New Jersey's largest county correction system. 

I am here today to plead for immediate relief from a situation that 

becomes more critical and life-threatening each day. I appreciate this Committee's 

understanding and concern for the problem of jail overcrowding, and particularly that 

you put this as one of your first official acts and made it such a high prIority area. 

The level of overcrowding in Essex County's Jail and Jail Annex reached 

emergency levels one year ago. In February 1981, the County sued to compel the New 

Jersey Corrections Commissioner to accept state inmates being held in the county jail, 

contrary to past procedures. At -that time, we were consistently holding a level -

this was a year ago - of 40 state inmates. Judge Arthur Blake ordered the state to 

accept its inmates initially on a scheduled basis, and thereafter, on a timely basis. 

t'lhen we had 40 state inmates, we called the overcrowding a "powder keg" situation. 

Shortly afterward, there was a major disturbance in the Jail that has not known until 

our correction officers used tear gas - by the way, they didn't even have gas masks 

when they did that - and physically forced inmates back into their cells. It was a 
truly perilous situation at t~me. 

We now are holding anywhere from 160 to 180 state prisoners daily -

many more times, obviously, than the 40 of a year ago. To again call the situation 

a "tinder box" would be a ludicrous understatement. The fact that overcrowding has 

not already caused significant bloodshed, is sheer luck, and the blame, should a 

tragedy occur, must be placed squarely wit~ the State, which has created a riot

prone atmosphere that is a threat to public safety. 

New overcrowding records are reached and then b~oken as quickly as they 

are established. The Essex County Jail, which was built to hold 550, routinely holds 

over 700 today. It is averaging about 720. Every single cell is taken, inmates also 

sleep in the dining and dayroom areas which have no shower and limited bathroom facilities. 

Cots are set up at night and removed during the day to prevent their destruction and 
ultimate use as weapons. The second floor has a dormitory- capacity of 70. Now, 

we are holding about 170 in that space. The hospital ward and protective custody ward, 

located on the twelth floor) under normal conditions would house 20 inmates. That 

floor now houses 60. 

We haven't been lax in our own efforts to try to deal with the problem 

ourselVes. InVOking emergency procedures, we have prepared sites for housing 48. 

prisoners in state-provided trailers, which involve 200,000 in county expenses. '<'1'ho~e 
trailers are open and occupied today. Also under emergency rules, the county ordered 

pre-fab ~nits costing us 1.5 million dollars which will house an additional 68 inmates. 
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Those have yet to open, but should open very shortly. All of that space~ those necessary 

only to account for the overcrowding created by the state prisoners. Jail personnel 

are currently working through their scheduled days off as well as working double shifts. 

Ov.ertime of the two facilities last year cost us 1.9 million dollars. The personal 

toll on the correction officers and their families because of overtime demands cannot 

be calculated in that kind of dollar figure. They are called upon to make hard sacrifices 

because of the increasing demands in their job, and I know you are going to hear from at 

least one of their representatives later. 

The Governor's June 1981 Executive Order has caused a constant growth in 

the number of state prisoners in county jails. Inevitably, this has created a "trickle

down effect" to the municipal prisons - basically the short-term lock-ups, which are 

only intended to hold people for a very short period of time~causing a particular 

hardshiB which I am sure you have heard about in the state's largest city. As a result, 

Newark filed suit several weeks ago to force Essex County to take the detainees that 

we both recognize are rightfully ours. Those prisoners are our responsibility, but we 

can't accept them until the State takes its prisoners out of our facilities. 

It is useful, I think, to point out a little bit of, history, because we 

were involved in the court cases here which brought about the Governor's Executive Order. 

When the Executive Order was first adopted, the Governor was faced with a series of 

court orders that had sprung up from a variety of counties, requiring the State to 

accept custody of a large number of state prisoners then being held by the counties. 

Had the court orders been implemented, the State, it appears, would have been substantially 

over capacity at approximately 112 percent of their system capacity, while the counties 

would have been just nominally above their capacities at 101 percent. That was the 

situation that the Governor found intolerable, and that was the disparity in overcrowding 

that the Governor found that required alleviation. 

The Executive Order was designed to prevent that disparity by requiring 

the Commissioner of Corrections to make a fair and ~fficient allocation of prisoners 

between State and county institutions. Instead, what has happened - instead of reducing 

the overcrowding disparity between the State and county facilities, the Commissioner 

simply reversed it. Now it is the counties that are grossly overcrowded, and it is the 

State which is just at or slightly above capacity. The latest statewide figures we have 

seen from November 1981 show that the counties are at an average of 121 percent of 

capacity, and the State at an average of 102 percent - hardly a fair and equitable 

situation. 

aome counties - like Essex and Passaic - are in even worse shape._ 
Essex is now at 140 percent of capacity, and if we took in all the prisoners in Newark 

and the other municipal lock-ups, as we really ought to, we would be at 170 percent 

of capacity. 

In short, instead of fairly allocating the burden, the state has simply 

attempted to exempt itself from the problem by placing its concerns foremost aad ignoring 

the needs of the counties. The point of the Executive Order was to reduce the disparity 
the result has been simply to reverse it. ") 

Immediate steps must be taken to alleviate the emergency situation that 

presently exists. I urge that the State take the following actions: 

First, to invoke emergency procedures for purchasing and contracting -

the kinds of procedures that normally make these things take a longtime to get accomplished 

but which we have procedures fo~ getting around. In order to open the Fort Dix pr.ison 

within two weeks, State law provides for emergency procedures to avoid the inevitable 

bureaucratic delays. There is enough evidence that an emergency exists at this point 

for the State to invoke this rule. 
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Number two, the immediate use of armories and vacant state institutions 

for prisoners. This has already been, I understand, put forward by the Commissioner 

this morning, and I will support that plea. 

Third, the purchase of an adequate number of trailer and pre-fabricated 

jail cells to hold the overflow prison population in its emergency circumstances. In 

Essex County, we have placed trailers on the county property near the jail annex in 

a fenceq.-in area; we have not, however, put them inside the jail compound. So, if the 

Commissioner comes back and says there is no room within the jail compounds, that is 

simply a false argument, and it ought to be recognized as such. There are thousands 

of acres of state-owned land that the trailers or pre-fabricated units could be placed 

upon, we have put them on land apart from our prison facility, surrounded it. by high 

fences with barbed wire on top at least to take care of what is an obviously urgent 

situation right away. 
I think it is also wise of Governor Kean to examine the merits of 

selective sentence reduction for non-violent offenders or the acceleration of parole 

eligibility as was just earier mentioned by one of the previous speakers, in order 

to further alleviate overcrowding conditions. 

Also to add to my prepared text here, I think it is important that 

we can push ahead with efforts toward community based corrections - an area that could 

y±eld an awful lot of benefits, but which has frustrated us repeatedly locally. There 

is one important point I think needs to be made about both community corrections and 

about state facilities, and that is that there needs to be a change in the way 

in which we site these facilities. 'lIhe long and laborious process for siting state 

facilities, for siting community-based corrections facilities, is so lonq and becomes 

so politically involved, we ought to find a way of doing it so it can happen more 

efficiently. I would recommend at the very least that the power to do this be placed 

strictly in the hands of the Commissioner of Corrections and be taken out of the hands 

of the legislature. As a former member of the L.egislature, I realize it is a serious 

kind of suggestion to make as it would be a relinquishing of some control, but I think 

it is the only way we are really going to get around the tremendous complications that 

have arisen over the past few years. 

If the State takes these steps to secure additional prison space and 

free up some of the existing space, there should be no state prisoners in county 

institutions. Although the counties would still face some overcrowding, in fact, we 

would still be over capacity in that case, it would be at a far more tolerable level. 

We could conceivably be able to handle that without the kind of danger that exists 

today. 

The State has been aware for more than five years that this problem 

was brewing. The failure to act is inexcusable. The likelihood of violence erupting 

in our jails increases with each day's delay. 
Thank you for permitting me to testify on this crisis of overcrowding. 

I will be happy to answer any questions you might have. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much. Our next witness will be Christopher 

Dietz, Chairman of the State Parole Board. 

C H R I S TOP HER DIE T Z: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. 

My name ::'s Christopher Die.tz, I am the Chairman of the New Jersey State Parole Board. 

The purpose of my testimony is to address the correctional system overcrowding, and in 

particular, to describe the relationship between parole policy and institutional 

populations. 

(, 

33 



I'" 

Others who have studied the issues in depth can better describe all 
the trends leading to the current situation. It becomes clear that population growth 

was not an unforeseen or an unpredictable occurrenc~ although the magnitude of the 

problem may not have been obvious. There are a variety of options that are available 

to the Legislature to deal with the current situation. Many of these will be discussed 

here today. I urge that parole not be used as a tool to regulate population. However, 

while we can, and have,and will continue to assist in seeking solutions, it is clear 

to us that parole policy. must focus primarily on risk assessment rather than the 

management of institutional populations. 
Our role in the criminal justice process is established in the Parole 

Act of 1979. We consider inmates for parole after the punitive aspect of their 

sentences have been completed and then for establishing whether the inmate may safely be 

released to the community to complete his or her term under community supervision. 

However, considerable attention is focused on the impact of parole policy on population. 

The Board has attempted to analyze What, if any, is discernible. Findings indicate 

that parole policy has had a neutral impact on population overall, despite the fact 

that parole policy has influenced the distribution of population to some extent over 

the past several years. 
You have probably noted that there have been cyclical trends in population. 

April 30, 1980, there were 6,618 inma"l7es confined in state facilities. By September 30, 

1980, however, this had declined to a population of 6,039, a decline primarily due 

to an interim impact of the implementation of the Parole Act as I will further explain. 

However, by December of 1981, the total population had risen to an all-time high of 

8,478 inmates. During 1980 and 1981, institutional populations rose as the impact of 

the new Penal Code began to be felt. The proportion of all defendants receiving prison 

terms doubled, while those receiving youth indeterminate senbences remained roughly 

constant at about 10 to 11 percent. Thus, a huge increase in prison admissions occurred. 

During the first six months of 1981, the State courts sentenced as many defendants to 

state prisons as they would have normally sentenced within an entire year. 

Statistics of the Administrative Office of the Court indicate this 

trend will continue. Although the proportion of indeterminate sentences remains roughly 

the same, an increase in the number of defendants sentenced resulted in somewhat more 

indeterminate admissions. As a result, New Jersey now faces a major problem in its 

ability to house inmate populations, a problem it shares with a number of states across 

the nation. 

I would like to examine the parole release levels in New Jersey over 1980 

and 1981. Parole release levels in New Jersey were relatively constant in the period 

from '75 to '79. During this interval, approximately 3,900 to 4,000 inmates were 

paroled annually from state correctional facilities. By 1978, this level had risen to 

4,100 inmates. However, in calendar year 1980, 4,743 parole releases occurred, a 

significant increase over previous years. This release expansion was experienced almost 

exclusively in the prison complex. 

We have examined monthly statistics, and they demonstrate that the 

rise in parole releases was particula~ly significant during the months of May, June, July, 

Augus~ and September of 1980. In fact, even the small rise experienced outside the prison 

complex during this time is likely due to the prison inmates housed in the youth corrections 

complex. 

You should note that this rise in release levels occurred iMnediately 

after the effective date of the new parole Act on April 21, 1980, and appeared tq be 

related to several provisions of the act noted below. Rather than recite them as I did 
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in my statement, I will just breifly explain them to yo,:!, Senator. One provxs~on was, under 

the old system, the Parole Board could set parole dates as far away as one year from 

the date of the hearing, but it would be a date actually given to the individual at 

the time of the hearing. The new provisions of the Parole Act of '79 required that 

the Board, upon making a determination that the individual was safe for return to 

society, must immediately set a date. So, there was an acceleration of those dates. 

It wasn't that they were getting released early, it was to the earliest point that they 

were allowable by law, when the punitive aspect of the sentence was over. 
The Legislature then in another provision said to all multiple offenders, 

because the 2C provisions of the new code wiped out the offenders status concept and 

gave the judges other means of imposing extended terms-- It said to all multiple 
offenders that were then existent in the prisons, if the prosecutor and the judge concur 

that this will not affect their concept of the punative aspect, and will satisfy the punitive 

aspects, specifically, you can get a full step reduction. If they don't concur, if either 

the judge or the prosecutor were to say they oppose the reduction, there would be a half 

step. This was recently tested in the courts, and the Appellate Division upheld the 

constitutionality of this legislative provision. 
The next point that came to the attention of the Board was not within 

the Parole Act, but the effect of the three-judge sentencing panel. What had happened 

was 2C decriminalized offenses and lowered the penalties for some offenses and changed 

the degree of crime for some offenses. For individuals who had been stringently 

sentenced under the old code, they could appeal to a three-member panel -- I believe they 

sat in Newark -- and the judges had the authority to reduce the sentences. '1'0 the deqree 
happened, Senator was, that there was a reduction there, this accelerated. What 

imagine 100 -- as a point of example -- people in prison. 

of events, ten people would hav.e been released every month, 

would have been exhausted. What happened was, there was an 

acceleration came up, there was no means to fill i~ so that 

lowed showed that the very next year we payed the price. 

If during the normal course 

in ten months the 100 people 
acceleration. So, as that 
the statistics that fol

If you were to take the 

4,700 we had in 1981, and then take what Commissioner Fauver talked about, the 3,300, and 

IIIlJall dVt'J:Utj\, LhuJlI (JuL, you ~ll~t. Lht! 4,000 Lhat. Is normally .r::clctlsed every year. Whnt 
he did was he got all the strawberry shortcake at the beginning of the meal, and when it 

came time for dessert there nothing left. So, we are paying for that type of problem right 

now. 
In summary, several distinct factors produced a one-time rise in release 

levels in 1980. A normal rate of 4,100 would have been expected. Instea~ the implementa

tion of the new act increased this by 650, as I pointed out, and the parole rate was expected 

to drop again in 1980, which of course it started to do in October. 
~hile this was partially attributable to the expected decline in former 

levels, other trends were observed. Available data indicated that the prison complex 

release began to stablize in 1981, but a declin~ again in parole~ was experienced in 

the youth complex. Statist~cs Suggest-that.--annmb!i,\~ of releases were running at about 

expected levelS, based upon historical data. In ·the youth complex, the levels in 1981 declined. 

The reason for this temporary decline can be determined. Under the new Parole Act, the 

State Parole Board, ratherthan the institutional classification departments and the boards 

oitrustees, now has jurisdiction over a'll youth cases indeterminate sentences. 

The Board published a schedule I am going to divert from my testimony here for a 

second and try to condense it for you -- and in publishing it, they increased the arcount of time 

a person would have to serve. No longer WOU.Ld a person serve :r:oughly ten to twelve months 

for armed robbery. The mood of our communities, the intent of the courts, and obviously 
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the prosecutor, and in the best interest of making sure the individual could be returned 

and given an opportunity, the Board toughened those standards • We published them, and we 

knew there was going to be an impact, and what happened, again, is there was a period of time 

when the young adults that would have normally been almost in a revolving door 

situation, in and out -- the revolving door stopped and there was an accumulation of young 

folks that had to do more time to understand that society simply was not going to tolerate 

their shenanigans. This carries over, and I am diverting from my t~stimony. 

This also caried over into our parole revocation decisions. There is 

no question that the Board has toughened the parole revocation. But that is so funda

mental to the integrity of the parole process. The Board has consistently sai~ before 

other committees of the State Senate in other years, that parole is an earned trust. 

It is a privileg~, not the forgiveness of a sentence. It is the privilege of serving 

the remainder of your term in the community as a law-abiding, productive citizen. Last 

year we had under oUr supervision, 13,500 people. Of that number, we brought bad, 1, J7!j 

Of the 1,375 that we brought back last year to prison, a little more than 500 had 

committed new crimes. That is roughly 4 percent of the parole population that was out 

there with the privilege of serving the remainder of their term under community 

supervision. A little more than 800 were brought back on technical violations. Now, 
someone could say: "Why do you haveto be so tough on that'?" Those are the individuals 

\'/ho are no longer to lerable risks. We are. not going to wait until they go out 

and hurt somebody. We are not going to wait until they do something. When 

they have demonstrated their return to their former life style, they have demonstrated 

they are no longer worthy of the trust of society. Not to have the Board bring that 

type of person back would critically disable the paroling process in New Jersey, and 

probably irrevicably damage the trust of the public. Some counties recently, one in 

particular, issued an Executive Order, that no parole violators will be allowed 

into their facilities because of this overcrowding. Nothing cripples the integrity 

of the criminal justice process in New Jersey more than that. 

It is my understanding this morning from the Deputy Attorney General 

assigned to advise the Board that steps are being taken to correct this. We understand 
the problems of the counties, and again, speaking apart from my testimony, the 

Board has put a team of three people out in the field. Both the executive director and 

myself have made ourselves available to any county institution. We are identifying people, 
we are holding hearings, and we have assigned hearing officers. The Bureau of the Budget 

certainly has been cooperative in allowing us the necessary staff to go out and do this 

work as quickly as possible. The work of the Earole Board is not to relieve overcrowding, 

it is to identify, by the standards set by the Legislature, those individuals who are 

worthy of trust. As was pointed out earlier, at this very moment in Our system we have 

approximately 1,300 people that already have affirmative parole decisions. We have already 

made the determination that they are safe for society. The statistics shows that we 

have not been that bad. 

Four percent for new crime is not -- I realize if there was a victim in 
the room, they would say it happened to me, you should do some about that. Every effort 

is made to refine that down. But to the degree that you could sayan earlier release of 

those individuals who already have the parole, could instantly resolve this~ you could 

get your 1,200 people almost within ten to fifteen days if appropriate legislation were 

to be sponsored with the Govenor's support. It is:::ll1'option.:r think of all the options 

available to us, in the years that I hav,e been in the criminal justice process as Pal;'ole 

Board Chairman I and the 40,000 case,§'that I have now --'last year it was 35,000; every 

year it increases by 5,000 -- it does the least damage to the credibility. The individual 
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that we would be considering has already earned the trust determination - that determina

tion has been made not because a gun was at the temple of the Parole Board, or the temple 

of State Government of the Executive Branch or the Criminal Justice process itself, because 

of a court intervention, it was because we determined that these people could be released. 

There is no reason in the world-- I can assure you that if these people were to be released within 

a ninety day period or earlier -- and, we are not talking about forgiveness of sentence, we 

are not saying we are cutting the sentence shorr 90 days, all we are suggesting is that 

a provision allow us to accelerate eligibility -- it would have a dramatic impact and 

could provide relief:, but, again,as the New Jersey Association of Corr.ections and other speakers 

have pointed out, these are interim measures. Something has to be done to look at the over
view. 

One of the other things, and the last point -- And, I am going to cOilpletely 
abandon even going back to my statement; I will leave IllY statenent to stand as a matter of 

record, Mr. Chairman. I was recently at Essex County, and an individual appeared for 

a parole hearing. The individual had originally been sentenced to a 364 day term. As such, 

he would not have been eligible for Board consideration, or subject to the Board 

jurisdiction. But because he smuggled drugs into the institution, and a municipal judge 

gave him a 60 day consecutive sentence, he suddenly became eligible for parole considera

tion. Parole has got to be something that you do not get because you are doing something 

wrong. Eligibility even should be something. I think that is an inane concept. 

I think if you are going to have parole, you might as well bring it right 
down to the individuals under one 
cause an individual to have to conmit 

year. There doesn't seem to be any rhyme Qr sense to 

another crime to become eligible for parole. Needless' 
to say, the Board is not granting paroles to people who commit crimes to get eligibility. 
It seems almost ridiculous that that is the way the system is structured right now. 

Are there any questions, Nr. Chairman'? 
SENATOR COnEY: Senator NcNaniman'? 

SENATOR NC MANINON: This is quite interesting. 

SENATOR COnEY: Very interesting testimony'. 

MR. DIETZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you. 

Our next witness will be Senator Hamilton from National Council on 
Crime and Delinquency. 

SEN A TOR W ILL I A M J. HAN I L TON: Mr. Chairman and members of the 

Committee, at the outset, let me take this opportunity to thank you for the privilege 

to appear before you, and to commend all of you - warticularly you, Mr. Chainnan, 

for the leadership you are displaying in calling this hearing, and attempting to come 

to grips with what is one of the most serious problems facing New Jersey today. 

The problem Of prison overcrowding is a persistent one, and probably 
will become a much greater problem before any real relief is forthcoming. It has set 

branch of government against branch of government, level of government against level of 

government. It is emotional; it is expensive. There are no easy solutions, there are 

no quick 'solutions , there are no inexpensive solutions, and there are no risk-free solutions. 

You deserve our thanks and commendation for the effort you are undertaking, and you already 

have that. You also deserve the assistance and the constructive criticism of members of 

the public sector and the private sector interested in correotions'matters, and that is 

why I am here today and undoubtedly why others representing a variety of interests and 
perspectives in the private and public lives of this State are here today. 

Mr. Chairman, I am here on behalf of the National Council on Crime and 

Delinquency, a national, non-profit organization, with its headquarters in Hackensack 

in this State. The National Council on Crime and Delinquency, NCCD, is an organization of 
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tens of thousands of professionals and concerned citizens, having as a principal goal 

to foster community based programs for the prevention, treatment and control of 

delinquency, and crime. NCCD has spoken out in the past on corrections policy in 

---~~- --~------

New Jersey, but the problem you and I, and New Jerse:'l face today, is probably more 
weighty and more difficult than any that NCCD has addressed in New Jersey in the past. 

It implicates the safety of our citizens, it implicates the e~'enditure of our limited 

resources, and it implicates, as well, the manner in which we handle or co.rrect those 

who violate the laws of our State - the ovenlhelming number of whom will someday, sooner 

or later, better or worse, resume living in society. 
The way in which one defines the problem of overcrowding is probably 

based mainly on one's perceptions and value judgements; one' s philosOF~'y of corrections, 

if you will, rather than on some neat, analytical matrix. Those perceptions and 

judgements will probably color, more than anything else, the solutions proposed. A few 

objective facts do stand out. State correctional facilities - maximum security, medium 

security, and minimum security - looked at by any measure of capacity, are seriously -

no, dangerously - overcrowded. County correctional facilities - the county jails and 
county work houses - are also seriously and in many cases dangerously overcrowded. 

In the case of county facilities., it seems clear that the major problem 

is the presence of large numbers of state prisoners already sentenced, who are being 

held in county facilities for a lack of cells in state facilities. Thus, if the problem 

of overcrowding in state facilities were to be solved, the problems of the several counties 

would be greatly reduced, if not eliminated. 
The Report of the Governor's Task Force on prison 0 vercrowding indicates 

that nearly 13,000 persons, a 28 percent increase, were sentenced in the first nine 

months of 1981. To some, that 28 percent increase is an appropriate and justifiable 

response to a perceived wave of crime and lawlessness. To others, the increase 

represents an overreaction to legitimate concerns about criminal activity and the 

minimal absence of, or under utilization of,other resources for handling those convicted 

of crime. 
Whatever viewpoints we may take, I suggest that an examination of a number 

of basic facts, preliminary to the question of what to do about overcrowding, but 

directly relevant to the fact of overcrowding, is appropriate. Most observers have 

related the problem of overcrowding directly to the adoption of the New Jersey criminal 

code, which became effective on September I, 1979. Enacted on August 10, the code had 

been discussed and debated in New Jersey since as early as 1970. If the code truly 

represents a major cause of overcrowding - and I think it does - we ought to be able 
to measure that from experience of the past two and one-half years. What has happened 

since Title 2C became the criminal law of New Jersey? Well, the Task Force report tells 

us that the rate of incarceration, the percentage of convicted offenders who receive 

confinement sentences, has increased 42 percent to 55 percent. Itself, an increase of 

31 percent. The average term of incarceration has increased from 2.2 years to 3.6 years, 

an increase of 61 percent. Those numbers are dramatic. They suggest that unchecked, 

the problem of overcrowding will increase and exacerbate. 
I think it is appropriate to ask, and most appropriate to ask in this 

legislative forum, whether these increases are the result of conscioUS policy decisions 

to dramatically increase rates of incarceration and average sentences. If so, were the 

implications bf such policies on prison space requirements ever contemplated? As some

one who participated in the process, I suggest that no such conscious policy was developed, 

and that implications of increased prison capacity were not perceived. At best a 
visceral 11 get tough on crime" attitude waS probably present. No fiscal note was sought, 

and no planning process was undertaken in response to ~he visceral decisions made. 
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Indeed the need for additional cell space was never mentioned in Trenton, until 

Commissioner Fauver arrived at a Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission meeting 

in May, 1980, requesting a bond issue to provide the funding for one, 400-bed prison. 

making 

For the 

If I a~n correct in my .assessment that precious 'little conscious policy

was present in the enactment of the code, some reassessment is in order now. 

Legislature makes policy, whether or not it makes it consciously, and the 

absence of attention to conscious po licY-Inaking , if forgiveable in the first instance 
'I 

is certainly not justifiable now when it is possible to see clearly the product of 
past visceral decisions. 

Without a change in sentencing policy, more mandated sentences and 

increased gradat;on of offenses are go' to fl d t d ' ~ ~ng ow, an 0 ay s overcrowding will next 

year seem like a tea party. 
The Governor's Task Force reports the following projected prison population 

for our New Jersey system: January, 1981,7,785; two years later, 1983,7,780; two years 

after that, 1985, 9,480; and January 1, 1990, eight years, not ten years from now, 

14,400 convicl..ed and incarcerated persons. At the present rate, during 1982, 

the prison population will increase by roughly 635 prisoners every three months. That 

is one and a half, 400-bed prisons, four times 'this year, or 6, 400-bed prisons needed 

this year. Looked at on the basis of capital cost, a total of 480 million dollars for 

construction will be needed between now and 1990 if costs were to be 60,000 dollars 

a bed - a figure that I submit is demonstrably already J.ow. 

And what of capped operating costs? The Task Force projects additional 

costs from 1982 to 1990 at the present rate of 14,000 dollars per inmate per year as 

follo\~l:l: 1983, almost 57 million additional dollars; 1985, 81 million additional 

dollars; 1990, over 151 million additional dollars. 

Does anyone really think that the taxpayers of this state are prepared 

to pay these sums for prisons that they do not want anywhere near their homes in the 

first place? Are your colleagues prepared to impose taxes to pay for these capital and 

operating expenses in this economy and at a time when social service programs, student 

loans, housing, transportation, and other worthwhile programs are being decimated? 

I believe the answer to both questions is a resounding no. 

r suggest to this Commit·tee, perhaps alone, perhapn jointly with the 

,) 'Udiciary Committee, with or without the corresponding Assembly Committees, you undertake 

a review bf the criminal code, with respect to mandatory sentences, presumptive sentences, 

the degree of some offenses, and similar matters - and that you make a conscious re

appraisal of the policy decisions and implications in the Criminal Code. Some of these 

things you should change, others you undoubtedly will leave intact. In either event, 

both you and the public will have a greater appreciation of the meaning and consequence 

of those provisions and of the prison and other corrections resources you~ decisions 

require. 

In the same v0in, I suggest that Supervisory Treatment or Pre-trial 

Intervention, which is a pre-adjudicative, non-custodial program for least dang.erous 

offenders, is employed with great disparity as among the twenty-one counties. PTI 

is a state-wide program. Some prosecutors and some courts employ it broadly and 

achieve prompt, sure, and most often, effective justice, at the same time conserving 

valuable court, prosecutor and juror time for more serious cases or hardened offenders. 

111- other counties, PTI is rarely used. Data that would identify the counties in which 

PTI is working and why it is widely used may suggest to other counties that PTI be used 

dlld lIuod C'rr{:(!tj.vl~ly to hondle >iOnic numbur of additional offenders. 1 urge that you 

either undertake the accumulation of such data or that you require that it be gathered 

and presented to you. 
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The inquiry into and assessment of Codeaentencing provisions can affect 

the overcrowding problem on the intake side. Other th~~ the intake side, there are at 

least two other elements in the overcrowding equation: capacity and release. 

Others who have testified or will testify today, have or will, I am 

confident, arque strongly against massive construction as the answer to ovcrcrowdjng. 

I will not duplicate those arguments, nor compete with that testimony. 
I believe, based upon having been around this Legislature, that some 

increase in capacity by construction, acquisition, expansion, or renovation, is likely 

to be sought and obtained regardless of what anyone may think of the wisdom of such 

policy. within the broad array of such responses, there are some that, from the point 

of view of cost and policy, are sounder and wiser, both short-term and long-term. 
Two such options bear mentioning. The first is the use of 

Stockade at Fort Dix - and I suspect that you already heard comments on that today. 

Planning has begun and perhaps construction as well. A supplemental appropriations 

bill has been passed. While there are problems of capacity and visitation, and 

concE'.rning the location of the armory, the Fort Dix Stockade does represent availc:tble 

sp~~e - up to 536 beds - capable of renovation at relatively low cost for a short to 

mid-term response. 
The use of Fort Dix will avoid a more costly commitment to building a 

capacity that may not be needed long-term, but would likely be used if available 

then)at the expense of less restrictive and community based rehabilitative programs. 

I urge you to monitor closely the development and use of Fort Dix, using your legislative 

and budget oversight powers. 
The second existing resource worthy of serious consideration is TJtenton 

Psychiatric Hospital. The Vroom Building, on the Trenton campus, now houses some of the 

most violent and dangerous of state prisoners, and probably will be used exclusively 

by the Department of Corrections when the Department of Human Services departs. 
But, a second resource at Trenton psychiatric could be used for housing 

what I think is probably the most unfortunate segment of the prison overpopulation. 

The Governor's Task Force reports a Parole Board estimate of perhaps 500 inmates who 

are or would be pdrolc reduy, but Lor the auticncc of tiuitable cOlrunwlitY-Uiltied lIlenLtll 

health and substance abuse programs to assist in the transition from incarceration to 

freedom. 
What better use of the McCrae Building at Trenton Bsychiatric than to 

house former alcohol and drug dependent prisoners and those with other mental health 

problems~ McCrae is slated for closing, perhaps as early as July of this year. It is 

sturdy, it is secure, and many of the Department of Human Services personnel who might 

lose their jobs if McCrae is merely closed as a psychiatric facility could be retained 

and/or retrained as corrections aides. 
This use of McCrae should be examined, not only for the 346 beds it could 

provide, but more importantly for the inmates who can be afforded an opportunity for 

timely parole release with the counselling and support they require to make it on the 

outside. 
One final capacity-related idea should be mentioned. The Governor's 

Emergency Overcrowding Executive Order has resulted in some 1,100 state prisoners being 

jammed into county jails. As I said earlier, transfer of those prisoners to state 

facilities would greatly alleviate the problems of the counties. If the State cannot 

cure the problems <iif its own making, it can at least compensate the counties for the 

danger and expense to which the counties are put. I would urge that most serious 

consideration b~ given to imposing an additional, if you will, penalty or surcharge 

on the State for each day that a state prisoner remains in a county facility under 
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a governor's emergency overcrowding order. This could provide some fiscal relief to 

the counties and some additional motivation to state officials to act to resolve 

overcrowding with rational measures. 
Mr. Chairman, my final comments relate to the third element in solving 

the overcrowding equation-release. Here I suggest the establishment of a statutory 

system to provide for release of selected prisoners- I know other witnesses have 

mentioned this - prisoners suitable for early release, and that would occur when the 

prison system reaches or exceeds a certain percentage of rated capacity. 

There are those wfuo will attack such an approach as soft or resist it 

as unworkable. On the contrary, I suggest it is appropriate, practical, humane, and 

necessary. 

The Governor's existing clemency power can be used to release prisoners 
on certain conditions. Indeed the Emergency Overcrowding Executive Order, proclaimed 

by Governor Byrne, more recently by Governor Rean, is a form of release or cap control. 

I suggest that such a measure is far more appropriate for legislative fashioning than 

for executive edict. The legislature enacts the criminal laws and appropriates the 

funds for the operations of the prison system. It is the legislature that should provide 

the safety valve when a dangerous overcrowding situation, such as now exists, occurs. 

Moreover, it is not the inaction of the legislature in the face of the 

exercise of the executive power that is the likely area of conflict, it is the power 

of the courts to order release when overcrowding exists that should concern this Committee 

and all of your legislative colleagues. 

Make no mistake that the courts - State or Federal - will act when - I 

say "when", not "if" - requeqted to a.ct and the cir:::umstances require. We witnessed 
last year, a federal court order the release of Alabama State prisoners because of 

overcrowding, and our own Superior Court order release to remedy overcrowding in the 

Union County Jail. If the executive and legislative branches fail to act, the message 

is clear, the judiciary will not similarly fail to act. Yet, the legislature is the part 

of government best able to fashion compromises and balance competing interests. Thus, 

it is the legislature that should act. 
Your willingness to hold this hearing indicates that you and your 

Committee are prepared to do so. As I suggested earlier, a form of cap already exists. 

It <exists on the state system by virtue of the Governor's Executive Order, and near 

chaos in the county system is the result. Now is the time for a legislatively designed 

safety valve - a release mechanism, a capping bill. Such legislation has been enacted 

in other states that face severe prison overcrowding, and it has worked. It matters 

little or not at all whether such legislation is patterned after Minnesota, or Michigan, 

or Delaware. All have functional cap legislation. The details as to how it is triggered, 

and who should be eligible for release can be developed in your committee, taking into 

account past criminal record, sentence remaining, and other relevant considerations. 

I believe there is no greater legislative priority than a corrections 

system cap and overcrowding release bill. I urge you to act now. On behalf of NCCD, 

our sources are available to assist you with such legislation, and with respect to all 

aspects of overcrowding. 

I thank you for letting me share these thoughts with you, and I wish you 

good luck. 
SENATOR CODBY: Senator McManimon? 

SENATOR MC MANIMON: I would just like to take the opportunity to 

compliment Senator Hamilton on this presentation today, and I would definitely urge 

every member of the Legislature of both houses receive a copy of this testimony. I 

think you attacked it directly, Bill. You went right to the heart of it, and it is 
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our responsibility-- I am very happy that our Chairman has called this session today 

becaus,e I think he realizes our responsibility; and by putting this message in the hands 

of eve(\{ legi~,~ator, if he really reads it, he is going to gl.Vt::! some serious 
thought' to it.~" 

SENATOR HAMILTON: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much. Our next witness will be 

Mr. George Conk, Public Interest Lawyers of New Jersey. 
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G E 0 R G E CON K: I would like to thank the Committee for allowing us 

the opportunity to testify today. I would like to thank the Committee for calling 

this hearing. I think it is important and commendable that an initiative on this 

question was taken at such an early date, really at the first possible opportunity. 

I am George Conk and I am Chairperson of Public Interest Lawyers of New 

Jersey. I am here today with Neil Cohen, who is the Legislative Coordinator 

of our Criminal Justice Task Force. I would like to take the opportunity to associate 

ourselves with the recommendations of Senator Hamilton. We also were impressed 

with his presentation and have to confess that his participation in our recent 

Criminal Justice Conference helped us clarify and form our own ideas. We see that 

in the last three months he has further developed his ideas. We are very pleased 

that the Vice Chairman also responded sa positively to what we agree was an impressive 

presentation. 

We appreciate that the Committee and many others have been here for a 

long time. We have a rather lengthy prepared statement which is accompanied by a 

National Crime Survey Report from September 1980, called "Criminal Victimization 

in the U. S." We would appreciate it if those two items could be placed in the record 

rather than burden the Committee with a full recitation. (See appendix for items 

submitted by Mr. Conk.) 

Let me comment briefly on our perspective. We agree with Sena':or Hamilton 

and with Peter Shapiro that the direction we must move is toward a county community

based correction system. We also support the recommendation of the Governor's Task 

Force on Prison Overcrowding. We think they did an impressive job and underlined the 

fact that if we don't act in a planned and careful way, we will be forced to act by 

agencies outside with less sensitivity to our needs . 

We have two fundamental propositions, each of which is addressed to the 

basic perspective that we should not be investing heavily in new prison capacity. It 

is expensive and I think that the results of the referendum on the prison bond 

in New York State have demonstrated that it is not even very popular politically. 

It is particularly going to be unpopular politically for legislators and for the 

Executive to propose massive new spending given the budgetary crisis which the State 

is facing and which it appears as a result of initiatives of the national administration 

is going to grow graver rather than less. 

There is a problem of crime in our society whose gravity no one will 

dispute. There is a prison crisis in our society and we have to ask whether we have 

a prison crisis because we are responding to a crisis growth in crime in our society 

or whether it is a result of changes in the operation of our criminal justice system 

and our laws. \') 

We believe that the crisis is as a result of the new Criminal Code. Our 

organization is substantially made up of defense attorneys: Public Defenders, private 

attorneys, former public Defenders, persons who work in each phase of the criminal 

justice system. We know the system. 

know what is happening in the jails. 

We know what is happening on the street. We 

And we know what is happening in the prisons. 

None of us has any illusions abo,ut what is happening. But we have undertaken a 

study that surprised all of us. Most of us with a general liberal perspective 

assumed that crime was correlated somehow to unemployment rates and things like that. 

What we have discovered, using the best available data, is that it is simply non

responsive tOe economic fluctua1:'ions or anything else that seems to be going on, 

including the operation of the criminal justice system. The study that we have made 

available to the Legislature is a National Crime Survey Report from the Bureau of 

Just.ice Statistics of the United States Department of Justice. The surprising result 
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is that if any trend can be discerned from 1973 to 1979, which was the last long-term 

study for robbery, assault, rape,larceny, household burglary and mvtor vehicle 

theft across the country, that one is a slightly downward one. We are simply not 

contending with a dramatic increase in crime or, in fact, any increase in crime at 

all. We have obtained from the united States Census Bureau, whose statistics 

corroborate those of the United States Department of Justice, statistics which 

indicate that there is no significrult difference for New Jersey at all. So the notion 

that we are in the midst of a national crime wave in which New Jersey is facing an 

increase which exceeds that of the national rate simply doesn't have any basis in 

fact when we use that form of statistic which we think is most reliable, that is, 

victimization studies involving close scientifically designed questioning of randomly 

selected groups of the population. These are studies which are being conducted every 

three months over a period of twenty years. We would be happy to make available 

to you and any interested persons copies of those statistics and facts. 

We have, therefore, come to conclude that the cri~inal problem in our 

socity - the problem of crime - is essentially beyond the capability of the criminal 

justice system and that we can more readily make things worse than we can make things 

better. We have been forced to confront the fact that Title 2C has made things 

worse in that it has created the prison overcrowding crisis without having a measurable 

impact on crime. As a result, we have a series of suggestions for amendment which 

are detailed in our prepared statement. Let me just summarize them briefly. 

First, the Criminal Code created a series of presumptive sentences and 

ordinary terms of imprisonment. In practice, judges have treated them as nearly 

mandatory norms. So if there is a conviction of a second-degree robbery, the 

customary sentence is 7 years and rarely less. If there is a first-degree, the 

presumptive term is 15 years and rarely less. What discretion is exercised - and judges 

here believe they are responding to the public's cry and the Legislature's command -

is discretion in favor of longer terms, specifically the use of the minimum-mandatory 

. sentence, the parole disqualifier, which we feel should be abolished and should be 

abolished forthwith. 
The result of the system is that rather than decreasing sentencing 

disparity it is increasing sentencing disparity. We feel there has to be a return 

to greater use of judicial discretion in sentencing. Therefore, we have proposed, 

first, an elaboration by the judge to be made at the time of sentencing of the nature 

and role of each defendant's participation in a crime. I am talking here from the 

practical experience of an attorney who has tried a number of armed robbery cases in 

the last year. If you have three men involved in an act, one is invariably a by

s'tander, one has the gun and the third has some intermediate level of involvement. 

Those three people should be assessed differently because juries and people at large 

assess the degrees of culpability differently. What we have now typically is that 

all three would receive the same presumptive sentence and, varying widely from judge 

to judge, a minimum-mandatory, which can be up to one-half of the maximum sentence 

permitted for that degree. 
So, we have large numbers of people who are in jail for 5 years, 7 years 

parole disqualified, and the message to them is: "Nothing you do while in prison 

can affect your parole date. If you avoid committing a crime in prison, you are 

going to get out on that set date." There is no incentive to study. There is no 

incentive to work. There is no incentive to participate in any programs. We think 

that is counterproductive. We think that the use of that is particularly counter

productive because it varies so widely from county to county, from judge to judge, 
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from case to case, that it has created tremendous disparities in the system. It is 

a shock if in Morris County a 7- or lO-year minimum-mandatory parole disqualifier 

is irnposed. For those of us who practice in the criminal justice system in Newark, 

it is routine. We don't even notice. We are surprised to learn it is differe~t some

where else. The result of that minimum mandatory creates a class of prisoners with 

no interest in cooperation once in the system and is a key element in the increase 

in the prison popUlation. And you heard Senator Hamilton and others speak about the 

use of the minimum mandatory. It is simply the one single mechanism in the Code which 

is most responsible for the increase in the prison population. 

To eliminate the minimum mandatory is to allow greater discretion to the 

Parole Board. And I think that we can all agree from Mr. Dietz's presentation and 

from our knowledge of his performance as the Chairman of the Parole Board the serious

ness and rigor with which that Board takes its work. If we eliminate the minimum 

mandatory and we allow the parole system to function in its normal way, what we will 

find is large groups of prisoners coming up for parole eligib1ity at, say, 2 1/2 years 

for a second degree, 3 1/2 or 4 years for a first degree, rather than serving out the 

5 or the 7. That period of time between 2 1/2 and 5, say for a second degree, or 3 1/2 

and 7 for a first degree, is the time period within which the Parole Board, based on 

the conduct of the prisoner inside the system, can make an individualized determination 

about the likelihood of that person committing a new crime. 

So we feel that to eliminate that one mechanism, the minimum-mandatory 

sentences, will reduce the number of people being pressed into the system and will 

allow us to judge more wisely and individually the release dates of those who are in 

the system. because sentencing has always been and it should return to being a two-step 

process; the judge, based on his knowledge of the facts of the case and the pre

sentence report,can make a determination for now, for today. Then sometime later 

down the road, that prisoner's behavior within the institution and his adjustment 

can again be assessed by the Parole Board. Right now, by using the minimum mandatory, 

we have eliminated that individualized assessment that the Parole Board makes. 

Our third fundamental proposal is, to be~in to move toward a county-based 

system and a community-based system,that there should be a presumption enacted by the 

Legislature of non-imprisonment in the State Prison complex for third and fourth 

degree offenses. 

type offenses. 

county system. 

Those primarily involve drug-related burglary or non-violent property 

If incarceration is necessary for those offenses, it should be in the 

The State Prison should essentially be reserved for those who have 
committed violent crimes and used deadly weapons. 

Further, we believe that all custodial sentences in the county systems 

should presumptively, not without exception, but presumptively --- the ordinary pattem should 

be that they are served on weekends or inwork release programs in order to minimize the 

disruption of employment, education, family and other social factors. We have simply 

seen too many times as defense attorneys a man callet> in- and it is a typical story - with 

a drug problem and a job, who is at the airport stealing luggage. The numbers could go 

on forever. It is simply pointless to take a man who is managing to hold a job and 

put him in a custodial setting that requires him to lose the job. It is one thing 

to say the man should be in jail on weekends or at night. That can very, very often 

.be supported and justified. But to take a man out of a job when he i.s coming from 

a sector of society where jobs are few and far between, we think is counterproductive. 

We also feel that increased, reliance on the county institutions is very 

valuable because they can best coordinate with the existing county-based health, 
vocational and educational systems. The kinds of programs that Peter Shapiro will be 

down here every day trying to defend can utilize and coordinate with county cor:t;'ection 
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centers, whether they are drug programs, half-way houses, county hospitals, or 

county colleges. Each of them can coordinate with the Probation Departments and 

the County Prisons to move us toward a cheaper, possibly more effective and certainly 

more desirable community-based correction system. 

Finally, I would just like to add that we, of course' " endorse the reCOm

mendation of the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcrowding for an early release 

bill. Chairman Dietz pointed to a population in the system that is appropriate for 

such a bill. Senator Hamilton underlined that. And we feel that the feasibility and 

necessity of that are 50 clear that action on this should be at least nearly' immediate. 

Thank you very much. Neal. 

N E I L M. C 0 HEN: What we have been trying to do is suggest non-budgetary 

solutions to the problems. The political atmosphere is such that sectors of society 

are requiring that money not be thrown after problems. What Senator Hamilton has 

provided in terms of solutions and what we are proposing are non-budgetary solutions. 

You can have six Fort Dix facilities and it is very expensive, as Senator 

Hamilton pointed out. You can build new State facilities and they would cost about $60,000 

a bed. What should be implemented are such solutions as changes in Title 2C. That 

doesn't cost any money. As soon as a facility, I promise you - Mr. Conk and I know \ 

the system as defense attorneys --- as soon as that 600-bed facility is built, there 

is a word that goes out to all the criminal judges in New Jersey and they say to 

themselves, "Well, there are more beds now. So I can sentence and incarceratE;! more 

people and I can give them longer terms." So six monthp after you open the Fort Dix 

facility, it is going to be overcrowded. Courts are going to use the Persistent Offender 

Act more frequently because it only requires that someone have two convictions. The 

Code doesn't require or set forth whether those two convictions be violent offenses. 

The court is going to use the mandatory minimum more often. It is going to use the 

Persistent Offender Act more often. Because as soon as the new Code was implemented, 

the courts said, "Now we can put more people away." And they did. That is why 

there has been an increase in the length of terms and the number of people going 

to State facilities. But you can have six more State facilities and those beds will 

be used up within six months. 

Therefore, the more beds we provide, the more people are going to be 

sentenced. People who should probably not go to jail for such long terms will now 

go because there is more bed space. It is like a Catch 22. So then, look at the 

Code. It doesn't cost any money to modify the statutes or the .sentencing procedure. 

That is a method to reduce prison population. 

When 2C was enacted, a three-judge panel was implemented to look at 

sentencing disparities between people sentenced under Title 2A and people sentenced 

under Title 2C. That might be an alternative, as well as utilizing the Parole 

Board as a method of reducing prison population. 

PTl was mentioned by Senator Hamilton. That is another non-budgetary 

solution. PTI can be greater utilized to take people out ,of the system before 

they get into the system. As Senator Hamilton pointed out, there is great 

disparity from county to county as to the number of people being qualifie¢l and the 

number of people getting into the system and being accepted into PTI. You can 

utilize the money which you would use for bed space by providing counties with 

more funds for probationary supervision. Then more peopl~ can be accepted into 

PTI, standards can be reduced slightly, and the money can be us,ed to monitor PTI 

people - first offenders. That is also a non-budgetary solution. 

What essentjally we are saying is: You have a choice. You can reSPOnd 

several ways. ";lou can say we need money to build bigger institutions b,ecause the 
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voting populous believes a lot of people should be in State Prison. But that 

causes several problems; one is, within the political entities of the counties, 

who is going to have the State faciliity - who wants it in their county? 

Therefore, what we are suggesting is that a review of Title 2C take 

place because I guarantee you - and it is a realistic and an in-court situation 

I have faced all the time as a Public Defender - as soon as you provide more space and 

you provide judges with a sentencing mechanism that is stricter, they are going to 

use that because that becomes the new norm. They forget how they sentenced under 

2A where there was essentially presumpt$-on of probation unless you could show that 

the person should go to jail. Now,essentially there is the presumption of imprison

ment unless you can come forward and show a reason why that person shouldn't go 

to jail. The courts are going to utilize anything that the Legislature provides 

for thom. If it provides stricter sentences, the jails are going to be crowded 

as they are now. The more beds you build, the more beds that are provided, will not 
help the situation. 

I remember being at a meeting of Freeholders in a particular county. They 

were talking about prison overcrowding at the county level. There was a discussion 

as to whether we could place two more beds in this portion of the building or three 

more beds here, or knock out a wall and add six more beds, which didn't deal with 

prison overcrowding because as soon as those beds go there, they are going to be full. 

no, whillt'v<'r thOfHl 8ll~PS un' to inCl"llufJe Lho bed fallility in Nuw JO;Lsc¥, lJIUY <.1L"u nul 90)n9 
to help the situation. It is going to continue to exacerbate it. 

What we are also suggesting is that money be utilized, if it is to be 

utilized --- after you go through non-budgetary solutions, if money is going to be 

utilized, it should be utilized at the county level to provide more services at 

the county level for inmates for mental health and for education. There are a number 

of people in county facilities, not all county facilities, who should be on work 

release, who should work during the day and come back to the cell at night. That is, 

on the one hand, punishment because someone is being deprived of liberty, Which 

is a punishment to anyone from any segment of society, losing a piece of liberty. At 

the same time, they work. If there is restitution somewhere in the person's sentence, 

they are starting to pay back the county or pay back the victim. At least something 

is being done there. The person goes back to the cell at night, but he still 

develops some kind of responsibility working during the day and providing perhaps some 
money to his family who may have to go on welfare because he has been taken 

out of the community and placed in jail. The family has to survive one way or the 
other. Sometimes that survival is not just welfare. 

What we arc suggesting essentially - and I will be very brief - is that thr.re 

are certain solutions that the Legislature can take under consideration that do not 

require an' immense expenditure of money. That can be done by a serious revision 

of the Criminal Code. I know 'that it took a long time for the Criminal Code to 

come into effect. I was down here. I was an aide to Senator Menza. It took a 

long time to get t:he Criminal CodE' together and' have everyone agree on it. But 

there should be a continuing review. There should be a standing committee, I would 

say, in the Assembly and Senate Judiciary Committees to monitor the Code, review how 

it is being implemented, and find out what are the benefits ,and negative aspects of 

certain of its provisions, 50 you don't run into problems 10 or 15 years from now. 

I think that is the essence of the role of the Legislature, to try to come up with 
answers prior to a crisis developing. Thank you. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: 1 don't know whether you had the opportunity to hear 
Edwin Stier, the Director of the Division of Criminal Justice. 
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MR. COHEN: We did not. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I think he hit the nail right on the head when he 

stated that 'lVhen they were first doing Nork on the projected new Code, there was 

a shifting that took place. That has generated the multiplicity of problems that 

we have because it seems that now they are stressing incarcaration more than anything 
else. All this ties in with some of the philosophy that you are projecting and that 
Mr. Hamilton has projected. I thank you very much for your presentation, gentlemen. 

MR. CONK: We will be happy to be of any assistance we can. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you. 

in touch with you. 
If we need anything further, we will get 

John Richard. 

J 0 H N RIC H A R D: Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you. 

Let me state at the outset that these views are my own and that they do 

not necessarily reflect those of the United States District Court. 

I would like to make two points. The first is that the situation in my 

opinion in the county jails is far worse than it is in the State penal system. 

And, second, I have some questions about the present policies of the Corrections 

Department, certainly as they affect Atlantic County. The problems are worse because 

of the different missions of the jails compared to the State penal facilities. 

In the county jails, you have a mixture of population. You have people who are 

charged - not convicxed yet - charged with minor offenses who can't get out on bail. 

Also you have individuals who have been convicted of the worst crimes one can imagine. 

From a management point of view, this is very difficult. The State facilities, on 

the other hand, only contain convicted felons. 

Second, jails of course ar~ short-term facilities. Under the circumstances, 

once again it is very difficult to provide educational programs, recreational programs and 

contact visits. All of these things exist in the State penal facilities. Indeed, 

in Atlantic County, we have a situation now where inmates riot so that they can leave 

the County Jail and go to State Prison. It strikes me as rather absurd, but it does 

happen. 

Third, the State has an extensive classification program. Hard-core inmates 

go to Trenton, etc. Because of the present overcrowded conditions in the jails, this 
is impossible. So once again, we have the person in there on a motor vehicle violation 

next to an individual who has raped seven people. This is not only immoral in my 

opinion; it is also very dangerous. 

I do have some questions also about the policy of the State Department of 

Corrections, certainly as it affects Atlantic County. Commissioner Fauver this 

morning noted the good record of the Department of Corrections. That is quite true. 

But some of this has been accomplished by passing the buck. State facilities are 

not as overcrowded as the jails. Jails are much more overcrowded. We have the 

si tuation in Atlantic Coun'ty, for example, where as part o~ the federal court order, 

the county has agreed to produce a constitutional jail. 'But they can't do it beca.use 

of the State's policy. Indeed, the State Supreme Court recently ruled on this 

particular issue. I don't think that this policy is fair to the county. It is 

certainly not fair to inmates who sleep on the floor next to urinals, people who 

face sexual assaults every evening, etc. I am not sure if this is prudent government 

in any event. 

In conclusion, I would like to state this: The transfer of sentenced felons 

is the State's statutory responsibility. Let me point to the recent Supreme Court 

decision. Justice Pashman in his opinion urges legislative action. He a.lso notes that 
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the Executive Order which the court upheld ~s .... tem~orary. It is not a permanent Solution. It cannot be viewed as such. 

As far as building new facilities ;s c n d I h -
.... 0 cerne, ave no particular opinion 

t~ offc!r on this, but Atlantic is coming up with a new jail - $14 million. And I 
w~ll betray no national secret if I tell you that local 

the money more productively than spending it on a jail. 
and they came up with the money. 

officials would rather spend 

But they found the space 

, It i~_also my, oPinion, that if the Legislature changes the rules of the game, 
Lh0 now Cude ~t m t 1 , us· a so p,rov~de the means to those cllarged ' 

w~th carrying out the 
laws by providing ways to implement the new pol;c~'. 

.... ~ Since two of those who preceded 
me talked about litigation, quite clearly I think, t'ne further ' 

~nvolv'3lTIent of the 
federal courts - the Courts are involved in two of the 

counties at the present time _ 
cannot be ruled out. This is simply my view, but I think it would be better 
the State for 

to solve its own problems before interference by the federal courts or 
anyone else. 

Let me state in co cl d' th n u ~ng, e problem should have been addressed a 
long time ago; it wasn't. Th ' 

, e s~tuation is critical. The situation is explosive. 
fuld I strongly believe that the situation 

ought to be addressed now - right now. 
Thank you very much. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Very good. Thank you very much. 
Mrs. Canright. 

WIN I F RED CAN RIG H T: I appreciate the fact that the common citizen 
is allowed to talk t d o you an that you are willing to listen to us. That is the 

y~u. Sorry that I can't talk to more. 
real privilege of democracy and I thank 

My name is Winifred Canright. The reason that I dare speak on this very 
complicated subject is this: E ' 

ver s~nce Attica and Rahway riots, I have studied 
prison systems and have been 1 

a vo unteer I physio,therapist and teacher-counsellor 
in State prisons in New J 

ersey. I also speak as a representative of the Quaker 
Council on Corrections. 

attitudes 

beliefs. 

Quakers value the privilege of independence. Yet for 300 years their 

have been influenced by George Fox who was frequently jailed fO~ his 
Addressing judges in 1651, he said, "It ;s harmful - .... for prisoners to be 

confined for long periods for all they learn is to do more wicked things." Thirty 

years later in America, William Penn in his Great Law outlined a new avenue of 
corrections based on work programs rather than l' corpora pun~shment. 

Today's leaders in correction say similar things. Norman Haroldson, the 
Director of the Federal Bureau of Prisons, stated'. 

"If a man is not a criminal when 
he enters :rison, he will be when he gets out." When Bob Mulcahy was Commissioner 

of cor~ect~ons, ~e remarked that if he were to hire an architect and a psychologist 
to des~gn an env~ronment that would imbitter people, fill them with hate and 
rebellion, they would come up with something very like a prison. 

It would be easy to pile up a huge stack of quotations 
penologists, all admitting our prisons 

nor reform inmates. I spare you that. 

ways to cram people into our prisons? 

from expert 
are failures. They neither reduce crime 

Instead I simply ask: Why lOok for more 

Reserve space for the dangerous who must 
be there. Let's try to keep 

non-violent people out of Our jails by giving them 
severe enough to meet New Jersey's official policy of just deserts, but 
be served outside the prison walls. 

sentences 

which can 

"'l'hc 
The New Jersey Correctional Master Plan of 1977 wisely recommended: 

lO/:lsL resl:.rictiv(! of tho range of increaSingly Severe disposition should be 

. 
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·'1 ." 
utilized. Incarceration should ll:<= seen as ·the last resort when no other alternative 
is likely to achieve the aim of dieterrence and incapacitation." 

Ii 

I am going to speak br~efly on ways that can be used. They may seem piecemeal 

and a little at a time - a woman,' s way of thinking we have got to do the small 

things. There may be some spl?'dtacular things that can be done to reduce the 

populations of the prison quickly. But I think that the Senate is farseeing enough 

to know that the problems will be with us and we must look for solutions that will 

affect the populations two or five more years in the future. 

Halfway houses~ We believe that an effective way to cut prison populations 

is to ~ckly develop a network of specialized halfway houses, some for the treatment 

of alcoholics who have committed crimes or treatment centers for drug addicts. We 

need halfway inn houses, work-release houses, study-release houses, and most of all 

pre-release houses. 

Here follows a short description of what we have in New Jersey. Integrity 

House at Lincoln Park in Newark is an extremely well run establishment. One section 

is for long-term residential treatment of drug addicts, another is for pre-relellsees 

from the State Prison. The benefits to the community are these: After six months of 

counselling, participants acquire growth in decision-making, develop job skills and 

experience, accumulate clothing and capital, and gradually adjust to normal living. 

These men are far more likely to become productive, crime-free citizens than their 

counterparts who come out of prison with minimal assistance and enough cash to la3t 

for two days if they eat sparingly. Parolees without help are almost always forced 

to get money the only way they know. Crime pays because nothing else pays. The 

financial advantage to the State is this: Instead of paying approximately $39 a 

day to maintain a man in prison, the State pays only $22 per day for the men it sends 

to Integrity House. Some of this is refunded when the man gets a job. 'fhcsc men 

have also become taxpayers to the State, to the Internal Revenue and Social Security. 

The annual savings to Corrections for the transfer to Integrity House, freeing one 

bed in the prison for the year, is $6,205, plus a refund for room and board made by the 

pre-releasee plus taxes. We can take a few savings like that. Putting one man in 

that halfway house can save us a big pile of money as well as be of benefit to the 

man and the safety factor for the society that he is going to re-enter within a few 

months anyway. 

Newark House is the only State ope~ated halfway house for male offenders. 

It is a clean, well-run residence for 50 men. One evening when I visited there, an 

inmate recognized me as an old friend and came over to chat. I asked him what he 

thought of the place. He considered.: "It ain't as good as being home. But I am sure 

glad to be in here. They have done a lot for me." 

Yesterday, I called to update statistics for you, but could not get complete 

figures because it was the day the new Director was replacing Mr. Stevens at 

Newark House. I found out that in November 1981, residents working, most of them 

at minim\un wages, earnod a grosS of $27,500. The net was over $20,000. On an annual 

basis, they are earning about $330,000 a year, instead of sitting in prison cells, with 

payroll deductions of $18,000. Workers paid $2,692 in November for room and board 

at Newark House, saving the State for the year they pay in Corrections $32,204 plus 

taxes - all this instead of costing the State for their incarceration in prison. 

. When Corrections announced that they had acquired and renovated the 

property - that is at Newark House - and would use it for a halfway house, the neighbor

hood was shocked and angry. Belatedly, the State met with them and some compromises' 

were worked out. The block association of neighbors was invited to have representatives 

on the board and the situation was improved. One evening, I was there as a guest 
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at a party involving neighbors and residents of the house and the staff. In 

conversation with the president of the block association, I asked, "Do the neighbors 

mind having the house here?" "Oh, no," he answered. "We feel very much safer 

now that they are here. There is always a policeman around. One evening a woman was 

being mugged and one of the fellows from .the house saw it, came out and saved 

her." 
The cooperation continues. Five block associations have meetings there. 

It is like a social center for the community efforts. They even have health lectures 

and community planning things that are headquartered in the house. It has become a 

great asset to the community. 
I stress that because the excuse that I have been given from the Corrections 

Department who at one time had $2 million assigned to them to develop halfway houses 

and none have been developed --- and the excuse they give is that the communities 

won't accept them. ! know it can be done .\f it is worked at properly. 

There are several very good privately owned houses. Lucy told you about 

some of them. They are very good and very profitable to the State to send inmates 

there, plus a great asset to the men. 

These pilot projects have demonstrated success for years. They help the 

offender, reduce the likelihood of future crime, save the State money during the 

last six months of imprisonment, and empty prison cells. Isn't that just exactly what 

you are looking for? 

To put a dozen halfway houses in different cities, each holding 35 men, 

would empty 420 cells. This would give you more spaces than Mr. Fauver has been 

asking for in a new prison at a tiny fraction of the cost. Elderly buildings can 

be used and renovated for very little, particularly if the State will buck the unions 

and let the men remodel their own places as they have done at the house that I 

described first on Lincoln Place - Integrity House. The inmates have done a beautiful 

job. Things can be done economically if it is really wanted. 

Restitution is an old idea that is gaining acceptance. It seems reason

able that an offender should work to compensate a victim for his or her losses. 

When this is not possible, community services seem more rational than the fiction 

that a man pays a debt to society by sitting in a cell. I am attaching a report of 

the successes and failures of a restitution program in New Jersey prepared for the 

Coalition of Penal Reform by Jeffrey Alport. 

The Quaker Council on Corrections is also giving you a copy of a fascinating 

book, titled "The You-Earn-It Society," to each of the Committee. I will give them 

to you as I leave. We hope you will really enjoy it. It gives you a picture of 

what dan succeed and what is being done in Massachusetts where the program is 

really having an impact. 
Pre-trial intervention has been mentioned by several people. I add only 

a paragraph. The then Chief Justice Richard Hughes in the late '70's recommended 

increased use of pre-trail intervention. If a person is stopped when he is first 

involved in crimes, he is much less likely to enter a criminal career. The Chief 

Justice pointed out that pre-trial intervention in New Jersey has a per capita cost 
of $351 compared to $13,000 for a year in prison. Those figures are a few years. 

old perhaps. 

Concerning proba.tion and parole, both departments should be strengthened. 

Use both to open up prison space. One small suggestion - and I don't know whether 

this should go through the Legislature or not. One step that would make for much 

better acceptance of Probation and Parole Officers by the people involved would be 

!) 
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to change the name ~rom Officer to Parole Counsellor. Then change the function so 

that the idea of counselling predominated over the police funct~ons that are 

attached to the name Officer, which can irritate, aggravate and turn off the street 
kid that is involved.· 

My last paragraphs are on changing the habitual criminal. An important 

Correctional Officer told me that 75 percent of prisoners are repeaters. With real 

effort that number could be reduced, leaving more space. Recently I asked a 

class of prisoners: If you could change two things about this prison, what would 

they be? Don't bother to tell me that you wish you could go knock the front gate 

off its hinges. Surprisingly, 17 out of the 20 answers came in with the wish for 

better prepared food taking a slight J,ead over the other answer. A desire for 

rehabilitative programs and more education and vocational training came in as a strong 

second. They had not been c~hed or prepared for this. It was a spur-of-the-moment 

question. There is a hunger for rehabilitative programs. There is a hunger for 

education and for job-training in our prisons. If those things were granted and used 

to their fullDst capacity, we would have less people who go out on the street, fail, 
get back into crime, and come back into our prisons, filling them up. 

Corrections puts these things on a very low priority. When any space 

restrictions or budget cuts come, they are the programs that suffer. Red carpets can 
be afforded, but rehabilitative programs are another matter. 

I worked with Dr. Frances Cheek who developed and teaches a wonderful 

course in stress control and self control and leads the men to look deeply at themselves; 

for many of them it is the first time they have ever really thought of what they 

are and what they could be. During the course, some of them changed so much that 

we could see the difference even in their physical aspects. One of the men asked 

me, "Where have you been all this time? I have been here for four years wanting 
to get a course that would really help me and there was !lothing." 

There are many men who want and need help to change their lifestyles, but 
rehabilitation has gone out of fashion. So good progra~s are cut off. This program 

of which I have spoken is an example. Dr. Cheek and one secretary are the only paid 

employees. She gives stress training to Correction Officers, to staff, to inmates, 

to management officers, and supervises a course of volunteers who are working in 

all the prisons. Her work will end in June for the lack of funds. This is false 

economy. If this course that she is teaching and supervising and keeping going influences 

one man in each prison to go straight rather than to repeat his crimes, it would save 

enough in prison costs to pay for the course many times over. To keep parolees 
from returning to prison is a good way to cut prison populations. 

When your Committee finishes its deliberations and chooses which ones of 

the many methods to follow to relieve both present and future crowding, we ask 

that you do more than produce the best legislation. We believe that a project, for 

instance, a restitution program, needs not only legislation, but funding, advice and 

supervision by somebody, in which both citizens and professionals participate. These 

things cannot function simply because they are legislated. They have got to have 

push. They have got to have strength - some financing - but they can save many times 
their costs. Thank you very much. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you very much, Mrs. Canright. I really appre9i.ate 
your input. Listening to your remarks, I reflected on one particular paragraph. of 

Senator Hamilton's presentation, which was: "Without change in sentencing policy, 

today's overcrowding will next year seem like a tea party." So we know we have a 
serious problem. 
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MRS. CANFIELD: We really do. We have to look at the future and these 

slower, long-term things. 

SENATOR McI-1ANIMON: Very good. 

Charles Schultz. 

C H A R L E S S C H U L T Z: Senator, first I would like to thank this Committee 

for inviting me. I see the hour is growing late, so I will be brief. 

I am a Correction Officer at the Essex County Jail. I am the PBA State 

Delegate. I have been employed there for nine years. I have listened to many 

distinguished speakers today. They all have some very good ideas. 

As of this morning at 8:00 A.M., the count of the population at the 

Essex County Jail was 1,045. Seven hundred and eighteen are being housed in the 

Essex County jail. Fifty-three females are being house in the Women's Section at 

the Jail Annex and 274 males are being housed at the Jail Annex. Out of that, 172 are 

awaiting transfer to State facilities. I say that if the transfer was to take place 

today, Newark would fill us up by six o'clock this evening. As of eight o'clock 

this morning, Newark had 50 people in their holding facilities waiting to come to 

the Essex County Jail, another 80 in court, of which we usually get about half, 

and then there are those that we receive from the other municipali tieE.. In one day 

we would be back up to 1,045. 

There has to be some solution to the overcrowding. Taking away the State 

prisoners is not the only solution. It will be a help. But ever since the new 

Criminal Code has been in place, the daily population has gone up. The Essex County 

Jail has suffered two major disturbances due to the overcrowded conditions. One was 

in March 1980 and one again in May 19B1. 

We have heard from my boss Peter Shapiro that it is a tinder box. It is. 

The pressure, t e stress, ~s • h . unbearable on the ;nmate population and on the Correction 

Officers. It is only a matte.:!:" of time before it explodes again. It may be happening 

now. It may happen tomorrow. But it will happen. There has to be some alternatives. 

The Essex County Jail is supposed to be a holding facility for detainees that are 

unable to post bond. They are awaiting trial. We are housing approximately 873 
awaiting trial this morning. Maybe it is the court system. Maybe they are too slow. 

That is a large number of men awaiting trial. 

I have heard as an alternative community-based corrections. But that 

is all after you are found guilty. There is nothing dealing with the holding facility, 

itself. You cannot build an additional 1000-bed jail in Essex County. Financially, 

the county could not stand for it. But the overcrowding situation is not all due 

to the State prisoners. It is due partly I would say to the new Criminal Code. 

I heard about the judge who released the inmates from the Union County 

Jail due to the overcrowding. Also in the last week, a judge ordered the release 
of 72 inmates from a county jail in Florida. 

it is becoming a national problem. There is 

South and out West. It has become a national 

with on a national level. 

So it is not only a New Jersey problem; 

overcrowding in all the states - down 

problem and it also has to be dealt 

In closing, I would like to again thank you for this opportunity. If there 

is anything the Essex County Jail PBA can do, we would be glad to help you in any way. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I appreciate your being here today. It is becoming 

more and more apparent that we are going to have to really discuss the violent and non-. 

violent crime structures and maybe the whole sentencing policy is going to have to 

be completely reviewed as to what steps we might take with respect to the non-violent 
crimes. We realize the new Criminal Code has generated a hot potato for us, to be 

very frank. The State already projects a 70 percent increase in incarceration. 
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If this happens and the State is already overcrowded and now th~ counties are peing 

overcrowded, we have to find an avenue to pursue. I think you are going to find 

that the Legislature realizes it is their problem and we are going to have to tackle 

it very shortly. Thank you. 

John Farrell. 

J 0 H N M. FAR R ELL: Mr. Chairman, I too want to express my appreciation to 

you for the opportunit;y of appearing here today. I represent a very important segment of 

the community and I think they have some-thing that they would like to say to you. 

Many of the things we want to say are in this statement and some of them have been 

_expressed before. Because of the shortness of time remaining, I would request that 

if this could be copied or repeated in your summary 

SENATOR McMANIMON: It will be so recorded, 

MR. FARRELL: Thank you. Then I will just very briefly go over the front 

page to tell you who we are and also give you the recommendations at the end. 

My name is John M. Farrell. I am Senior Vice-President of Beneficial 

Management Corporation. I am speaking today as the Chairman of the New Jersey EXlacutives' 

Committee of the National Council on Crime and Delinquency. The Executives' Comraittee 

represents a broad array of New Jersey corporations, which seek -to improve the effective

ness of the State's criminal justice system. 

The primary program objectives of the Executives' Committee are two-·fold: 

First, to encourage the use of cost-effective alternatives to incar.·ceration 

for non-dangerous offenders, thereby lowering the continuing budget burden of the 

State's corrections syst8m to the taxpayer. 

Secondly, to encourage the development of community-based crime prevention 

programs to reduce the incidence of criminal and delinquent activity that create 

enormous losses to the State's residents and businesses. 

Now, the rest of the material has been brought to your attention before, 

except I would like to repeat one sentence that I have in here so you know the gist 

of it. That is in relation to the cost. I say here that money is among our scarcest 

sources at present. That is one of the reasons why we have to save a little bit. 

These are our four suggestions to you: 

The Legislature should pass a statute similar to one which has been 

utilized by Michigan to successfully defuse their prison overcrowding crisis, without 

enormous financial outlays and without endangering public safety. Such an emergency 

overcrowding statute would accelerate parole eligibility by three months, allowing 

the reduction of the incarcerated population in an orderly fashion while selecting 

for release those inmates who would shortly be released in any event. As business 

people, we support the concept of a planned reduction of the overcrowded population. 

Given the magnitude of the problem currently facing the State, such a mechanism 

appears to be the only rational immediate response to the problem at hand, and there 

seems to be no grounds for the often expressed fear that releasing those who are 

near release anyway will present any increased danger to the public. 

Secondly, within the State's prison system right now, there apparently 

are an estimated 500 individuals who have been denied parole release, for the sole 

reason that no suitable residential or non-residential mental health and substance 

abuse programs are available. Funding of these kinds of community programs should be 

accomplished to eliminate this problem in the future, thereby eliminating the need 

for one entire new prison. 

Third, we further recommend that the Legislature apPf'opriate funds where 

applicable for the purpose of establishing viable alternatives to incarceration 
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for those who do not require imprisonment, and who are currently eligible under the 

Criminal Code for non-incarcerative sanctions. We understand the AOC is now investi

gating the feasibility of instituting intensive probation supervision programs in this 

State, as well as a statewide program of community service sentencing. If these 

practical alternative programs are created and adequately fundea, the State will have 

gone a long way towards a planned response to its correctional needs. 

Fourth, while we understand the Legislature's reluctance to consider the 

possibility of revising the mandatory sentencing clauses of the Criminal Code -

although we would contend such a re-examination is essential given the Criminal 

Code's disastrous impact on the prison population - we urge you, most emphatically 

not to give any credence to any further call for increased sentence lengths or additonal 

mandatory sentences. The impact of 2C's harsher provisions is all too evident in the 

current crisis of overcrowding. To increase the severity of those provisions in the 

light of current experience would only exacerbate disastrously an already impossible 
situation. 

That is the gist of this paper. 

Let me add one more recommendation. This will take one minute. About a 
year and a half ago I wrote to Governor Byrne and also to Attorney General John 

Degnan,- suggesting to them that as interested business people we should put together 

a committee of businessmen who would have no purpose whatsoever in getting to the 

bottom of the overcrowding, what constitutes it, why it is there and what can be done 

to correct it, except to save themselves tax money. I think that is still a good idea. 

It would cost the State of New Jersey nothing. These men would give of their time 

and the work necessary to give you a report of that kind. I am a member of enough 

organizations that I could say to you, we could give you these people of the strongest 

calibre that would give you a report that you could work with, that would be founded 

in fact, where there would be no biases and where there would be no personal aggrandize

ment of any kind whatsoever, except serving the State of New Jersey. We live here. 

We love New Jersey. We work here. We support it. We would like to see it get its 

proper place in the sun instead of being pointed to, as we are, as 40 years behind 

the times in our criminal justice system - and we are 40 years behind the times. I 

suggest to you -that we would be very happy to do that for you. Thank you again. 

(See appendix for complete statement submitted 
by Mr. Farrell.) 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you very much, sir. It is quite apparent that 

you and Senator Hamilton have a great deal in common. You both seem to be going 
down the same path. 

MR. FARRELL: I admire him. He is a tremendous individual. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: I kind of think so myself. 

Sheriff Lanzaro. 

W ILL I A M LAN Z A R 0: Senator, good afternoon. My name is William 

Lanzaro. I am the Sheriff of Monmouth County. I know the hour is late and I am 

only sorry that more of the Committee couldn't be here to hear probably the last two 
speakers today, myself and Sheriff Englehardt. 

I have sat here since quarter of ten this morning and listened to various 

speakers tell us what is wrong with different parts of the system. Correct me if 

I am wrong. But I understood that the meeting here today was to address the over
crowding of the county and State prisons. We have heard various people tell us 

that 2C doesn't work and various other reasons why we are having overcrowding and what 

we shOUld do about it, whether we should build additional prisons or should not build 
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aGlditionalprisons. But the need is now. I think Senator Hamilton put it best. He 

said it is a State problem. The State has imposed a problem on us. When I took 

over as Sheriff of Monmouth County last year, we had about 30 State-sentenced inmates 

awaiting transfer to State Prison. Now, as of eight o'clock this ~orning, I have 92 

and I am down from 120 of last week. I have 104 inmates sleeping on the floor. I 

have feedback today that could result in my having a riot on my hands tonight. We 
can't look down the road. We have to look at today. 

There are alternatives. Commissjcmer Fauver says that he doesn't want 

double bunking in the State faciE·ties. But how about the bunking in the county 

jails? I have them double bunked. I have dormitories built for 12 with 24 in there. 

I have them sleeping in the shower area. I have them sleeping in the reception area. 
What am I supposed to do? 

Do you know the immediate solution to the 1000 or the 1100 that are in the 
county jails? Double bunk them in the State Prison. Let them accept their responsi
bility and take them off the backs of the counties. 

There is an alternative. A year ago, I proposed a workfare program. 

In Monmouth County, we have approximately 30 weekend-sentenced inmates, sentenced to 

consecutive terms by the municipal courts. These are people who are working supporting 

their families, your neighbors and mine, that are out in society and are no threat 

to anyone. The municipal judge sentences them to consecutive weekends. They come in 

our jail on Friday night. Also Friday is sentencing day in Monmouth County.. So we 

get roughly 15 to 20 new sentences each Friday. We get our 20 to 25 weekenders. 

Now I don't have to tell you what happens on a weekend in our jail. Of course, the 

thought of going to jail on a weekend makes men half slopped up. So by the time they 
sober up it is Saturday afternoon and they are released on Sunday. This is at a 

cost of approximately $50 a night to the taxpayers of Monmouth County. I have said, 

and the Assignment Judge in our county has now concurred, that there is an alternative. 

Let's put them on a workfare program. Let's encourage the municipal judges to sentence 

them to a county workfare program to be administered by the County Sheriff and it 

would work as such,as I proposed it. We have a county court house where we had B 
CETA workers we recently had to let go because of the cut in CETA funding. We could 

put them in the county court hQuse on weekends working 9,00 to 5:00 where we already 

have the insurance and the supervi.sion. We could put them in the county park system 

in the season, weather permitting, where we already have the insurance and supervision .. 

By the way, the park system is very receptive to this. It would not replace anybody 

that is presently working in the park system because the park system has many trails 

that they would like to clean up and clear. Therefore, I woul~n't have those 25 or 

30 in my jail on the weekend. They would work from 9:00 to 5:00 Saturday and Sunday, 
brown-bagging it,and that would be their sentence. 

There is only one problem - and this is where the Legislature comes in. 
Two-thirds of the weekenders that we get in our jail are mandatory type sentences. 

When you say mandatory, that sounds serious, but not really. An individual is caught 

dri ving without insuranq.e; because of the economics in these times he couldn't afford 

it. So his ;license is l:'e\'pked. He has to $upport his family. He continues to 

drive and now he is caught driving on the revoked list. He is sent to the county 

jail. You can't call that guy an outright criminal. Is it a crime to want to support 

your family? Why can't we put him on a work program? We could also use him evenings. 
There are many areas. Our Assignment Judge this past week came out in favor of a 

community type program because with the exposure that my proposed program has been 

getting, I have had many requests in Monmouth County from municipalities who are 
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hard pressed for funds about cleaning up their municipalities. Mayor Scioffi, who 

was mentioned earlier, in Long Branch will not be able to clean up his beaches this 

summer because of budgetary restraints. He has asked me for help. Judge Shebell 

met with the Municipal Judges' Association last week in Monmouth County and instructed 
them, when possible, to sentence these people to a community type project which 

will be administered through the Probation. Department of Monmouth County under 

the Chief Probation Officer and with the help of the Sheriff's Department. 

Already one municipal judge, as an alternative means, sentenced a defendant last 

week to eight consecutive Sundays washing the police cars in that municipality 

as punishment for throwinq a rock through a windm-l. This is the immediate answer. 
This is what we have to do: community service, workfare, etc. 

If I could get rid of those 30 on the weekend and the municipal judges 
cooperate and have the discretion to put these people on workfare instead of putting 
them in the jail, this would help. 

We have heard mentioned early release. You know it was never the intent of 
a sentencing judge for somebody to be released early. But if it is found after a 

series of meetings that this could be beneficial, why not release them? We heard, 

I think it was Mr. Dietz who said it takes roughly three months from the time it is 

said they could be released until they are released, because of the clearing stages. 
Why not when a date is set for release send them back to the sentencing county 

and put them on a workfare program while they are being processed. They are three 

months earlier out of State Prison. You can now utilize that bed. They will make 
a better adjustment back in society. 

I, as the Sheriff of Monmouth County, am against just taking three months 
of their sentences and letting them go. If the judge meant that in the beginning, 
he would have set the sentence that way. 

Another thing that the State is doing to us --- you know after 15 days, 
we get a per diem on every inmate. It was only in the past year that they have made 

that uniform throughout the State. We now get $39 and change for each inmate after 

15 days, except parole violators. If we have a parole violator and he has had his 

probabl~ cause hearing and if he is there after the 15th day, we get nothing. Now 

i.t used to be --- and when I took over I noticed we had about $80,000 coming on 

parole violators. So when I inquired about it, I got a letter from the Department 

of Corrections. If you read it in depth, it said, look, dummy, if you don't have 

enough sense to send those parole violators at the top of the class, that is your 
problem. That is just what I started doing last March. 

Usually we send inmates by the length of time they have been there. Now 
we put the parole violators at the head of the class. With the Governor's order 

last summer, that has stopped. Now the State comes in and they do the classification 
in the county jails. They pick at random who they want. So where we should be 

getting rid of the long-term sentences, it is not necessarily so. They pick whom 

they want to go. We should have the say. It is our county jail. They are not our 
inmates. But the State is continually making their problem our problem. 

I must say in all fairness to Joe Call and .Ga.ry Hilton and some of 
the others that the Departrnent of Corrections has been most cooperative. I under

stand they have a job to do. Each week they try to take a certain number of inmates 

from you. Two or three weeks go by, then you have to get strong with them and say, 

"Look, you have to get them out of here." And they give you, "Well, we don't have 

any beds." Then we say, "Well, we are going to shut the jail down." All of a sudden 

they find beds. I don't understand this. This goes on and on. Take in Monmouth County, 
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~ith 104 sleeping on the floor. How much longer do you thin$ I can stand it before 

I shut my jail down? Forget about 2C right now. Forget about building new prisoIl!s 

right now. Forget about rehabilitation right now. Let's address the immediate pJ:oblem. 

It is unfortunate this notice - and again I would like to thank the Senators of the 

Committee who are here --- but it is unfortunate that a notice didn't go out to every 

Sheriff. I would lik/: to see another meeting of this Committee with .all of the 

Sheriffs that have jails and even the ones that don't and the Wardens. Get to the 

grassroots. Let's hear from the guys who are in the trenches who have to deal with 

this problem every day. We are the ones affected. We had to reduce our feeding because 

we are afraid of a riot. That is the input that you need. That is when you will get' 

a better handle on this and better ideas. 

Obviously, you are concerned because you called this hearing. And, obviously, 

we are concerned because we sat here all day long waiting to speak. We need your 

help. We realize it is a serious problem. We realize Fort Dix is only a stop-gap 

measure at best. We could sit here all day long discussing whose £ault it is and 

look back. That is not going to cure anything. I think we just have to take a good 

look at where we are coming from and where we are going. 

It is very nice of Commissioner Fauver to sit here and say, "I don't want 

double bunking." It's wonderful. I don't want double bunking either, Commissioner. 

But maybe we have to give and take a little bit. If he just took half of our 

population and double-bunked a little bit, it would help. It is just going to be a 

never-ending problem. We must work at it and work at it together. But I think 

community restitution, putting some of these people out in society, is one of the ways 

that we can reduce the population coming into the county jails. 

I want to thank you very much for the opportunity to speak to you. I know 

th/: hour is late. If there are any questions, feel free to ask them. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Very good, Sheri£f. You can rest assured I will discuss 

with Dick Codey, the Chairman of the Committee, the possibility of having a meeting 

with all the County Sheriffs throughout the State. 

For your own personal information, I would like to clear the air with 

respect to workfare. You are talking to an individual who moved the Workfare Bill, 

which put welfare recipients to work) in the lower House last year. I have no qualms 

whatsoever about workfare. 

MR. LAZARO: Senator, with 25 to 30 coming in each weekend in Monmouth 

County alone, we computed it would save us a quarter of a million dollars, not to mention 

the stress it will take off the officers and the institution. I think this is a good 

approach. You know some of these municipal judges have to be educated. They just 

can't Use the county jail as a dumping ground. I think that is another thing that 

has to be addressed. 

E D WIN 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you. 

Sheriff Englehardt. 

ENG L E H A R D T: First of all, I want to thank this Committee for 

inviting me here today to explain to you what some of our problems are in the Passaic 

County Jail. I will try to make this as fast af;l I can. I appreciate the fact that 

you ~re extending the time beyond four o'clock. I appreciate the opportunity to be 
here. 

I am here today, Senator, to for the record tell this Committee what some 

of the problems are in the county jails of the State of New Jersey, but more particularly 

Passaic County Jail because as the Sheriff of Passaic County, I am totally responsible 

for the operation, custody and control of that jail. 
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Our Passaic County Jail is the most overcrowded county jail in the State of 

New Jersey. We have a jail that was built 25 years ago to house 227 inmantes. 

Our population today is 487. Of the 487, 149 are sentenced State prisoners, 82 of 

which are sleeping on cements floors and mattresses. We have a situation - and you 

have heard this expressed by others - that is a powder keg. You heard Peter Shapiro 

say that and you heard the President of the PBA of the Essex County Jail say that. 

But our situation is even worse because we are more overcrowded. 

It is a serious problem and I feel that some action has to be taken now, 

not three years from now. 

What I would like to do now is give you my feelings on how this problem 

came about and not just be here to complain for the record, but possibly recommend 

whnt r consider a rnther imm0djate solution. 

The law specifically states that the State Department of Corrections shall 

accept their sentenced prisoners in 15 days. Because of the overcrowding in the State 

institutions, our former Governor last June declared an emergency, authorizing the 

Corrections Commissioner to force the counties to hold back shipping their State 

prisoners to State institutions. Also that emergency order authorized the Commissioner 

of Corrections to transfer any inmate from any county jail that is overcrowded to 

another county jail that is not overcrowded. To this day - and that emergency was issued 

last June - not one prisoner was transferred from the Passaic County Jail to any other 

county jail in the State of New Jersey, in spite of the fact that my population is 210 

percent of capacity, the most overtaxed jail in the State of New Jersey. Also in 

that order, it gives the Commissioner of Corrections the opportunity to immediately 

take over any building anywhere in the State to provide beds to ease the overcrowded 

situation. I don't know of any single institution - building, factory, armory, or 

whatever - that has be~n taken over or even acted upon since that emergency order. 

Not one single bed that I know of has been made available as a result of that order. 

That order was nothing more than to protect the Commissioner of Corrections and 

the former Governor of this State from having a tremendous riotous situation on 

their hands in the State of New Jersey. 

I think it is disgraceful and I think it is criminal that because of that 

order the Corrections Commissioner can keep his population at about 100 percent 

of capacity, which is manageable, and force the counties in this State to increase 

their populations - Passaic County particularly - by 210 percent. I don't think 

it is fair. The least they should do is bring their population up to 150 percent 

and bring mine down to 150 percent. If my population, Senator, was 100 percent, 

I wouldn't be sitting here today. 

We don't have any problems in Passaic County housing Passaic County prisoners. 

We can maintain control. We always have. And two years ago, we began negotiations, 

we broke ground and we are in the process of constructing a fourth floor on the 

Passaic County Jail, giving me 200 more beds. But the way the State has been operating, 

the $7 million that the County of Passaic has appropriated to satisfy Passaic County's 

needs -- the State of New Jersey is going to force Passaic County to hold their State 

prisoners. State prisoners are very, very difficult to handle. You must understand 

that county jails are not medium security prisons; county jails are not maximum 

security prisons; county jails are nothing more than holding facilities. They were 

never built or never intended to act is maximum security facilities. When you have 

150 sentenced State prisoners, some to 40 years, some 30 years, some 25 years, forced to 

live in the county jail that is not equipped to handle that type of prisoner, you 

can imagine what kind of a problem I have and the kind of problem my warden has 

and what kind of a problem my men have. 
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Something has to be done and it has to be done quickly because these State 

prisoners are the oneS who are giving us the problems. Those that haven't been 

sentenced yet are no problem. Those who are awaiting trial are no problem. Those 

that are sentenced to the county jail for under a year are no problem because they 

are manageable. They are not going to cause any problems before they are sentenced 

or tried that may affect the outcome of their trial. But those sentenced for long 

periods of time have nothing to lose. They want to get out of the Passaic County 
Jail and they want to go to State prisons. Why? Because they have programs and they 

have opportunities in State prisons that I would never allow in Passaic County. 

The Passaic County Jail is the most dreaded jail in the State and that is the way I 

want it to be. I feel that jails are places of punishment, not places for vacation. 

They go down to State prisons where they can get college degrees, have weekend furlouqhs 

- they go home on weekends and commit the same kinds of crimes they were convicted of -

take day trips down at the shore, have elaborate rehabilitation programs. There 

are millions and millions of dollars going down the drain and rehabilitation doesn't 

work. Our residivism rate in Passaic County is 80 percent in spite of the millions 

and millions of dollars in rehabilitation. We have to have more jails, not country 
clubs. 

I think it is disgraceful the State of New Jersey, Department of Corrections, 

is considering building a new minimum security facility in camde~ at a cost to,the . 

taxpayers of this State of $35 million for approximately 200 prisoners - $35 million 

for an institution they huven'l broken ground for yet., which it-! going Lo Lake' Lwo 
years to build, for 200 prisoners. Why do we need tremendously expensive institutions 

for prisoners? My suggestion is to utilize the existing facilities that are not being 

fully utilized today. When Governor Byrne issued that order last year, I made a 

suggestion - and if they had followed my suggestion, we wouldn't be faced with this 

problem today - that they appropriate two or three million dollars and I will tell them 

the location. I pointed this out in the past. I will tell you why they refused it. 

I say, take the Armory in the City of Paterson. It is in the most crime-ridden 

area in the city of Paterson. They talk about the poor relatives visiting the prisoners. 

They can walk to the jail. Utilize the Armory. The National Guard only uses that 

Armory for one weekend a month. Take three million dollars and convert that in six 

months and they could place 500 maximum-security prisoners in there. They don't need 

65 square feet. They don't need a $35 million complex. That doesn't discourage 

prisoners from committing crime. They are not afraid to go out, commit: crime and 

go back to jail. They are better off in jail than they are at home. Utilize the 

existing buildings and facilities. If prisoners felt they were going to be very, very 

unhappy and dreaded going to jail, in my opinion, they would think twice before they 

committed a crime. 

The State is responsible for the problem today. In 1975, Governor Byrne 

appointed a committee and Commissioner Fauver was a member of this committee. The 

committee spent many hours and God knows how many thousands of dollars. They submitted 

a report in 1977. On page 91 of this report, it specifically states that by 1980 

the State will be 1200 beds short. It is 1981 and the State of New Jersey hasn't built 

one bed. All that money went down the drain. The money is,there. The buildings are 

available. Eliminate these $35 million country clubs. Utili~e the existing buildings. 

That's what we need. 

The Legislature is also partially responsible. I am very much in favor 

of mandatory sentencing to get these criminals off the streets. The public demands 
it; the public deserves it;.. We need those mandatory sentencing laws. But that is only 

--------------

I 
I, 

til 
r 

fl 
Ii 

f, 
I! 
I 
I 

r: } . 
1 
1 • I 

I , 
1 I J 

t 
! 

\ 
I' 
} 
r 
} 
I: 
1 : 
j I 

part of the prob'lem. The Legislature should take the initiative and have the courage 

to pass the companion legislation appropriating funds or finding beds where these Sheriffs 

and Wardens can place these inmates once they are sent to jail as the result of mandatory 
sentencing. 

What I Say is: Fbrget about these $35 million institutions for 200 people. 
Utilize the existing emergency order. Utilize the powers that the Commissioner has. 

Appropriate a fraction of the funds. Open up these armories and put these people who 

are in these overcrowded jails in them. Then you will have plenty of room for the 
crimi.nals who are on the streets about to be incarcerated. 

SENATOR McHANIMON: Thank you very much, Sheriff. 

I would like to make just one statement. Earlier this morning I asked the 
specific question: Is the program being presented by the State a realistic approach 

to the problem of securing those beds Which are so sorely needed? We have heard from 

professionals this morning. We have heard from professionals this afternoon. It is 

ratQer ironic that you sit here and hear differences of opinion expressed by sincere, 

honest people. We are looking to those with expertise' to guide us. That is the purpose 
of this public hea~ing. It is quite apparent that we are all not going to agree in 

the final analysis. But it is also apparent that some positive action has to be taken. 

I think that is the intent of the Chairman of the Committee, Senator Codey, and the 
Committee. That is the sole purpose of this hearing. 

I sincerely appreciate all those who have appeared here today. I believe 

that this will not be the last meeting because I have a feeling that we have a lot of 
homework to do and we are going to have to do it fast. 

MR. ENGLEHARDT: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you. 
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PUBLIC HEARING - FEBRUARY 18, 1982 
SENATE HEALTH, INSTITUTION AND HELFARE CQt·1t'1ITTEE 

William H. Fduver, Commissioner 
Department of Corrections 

During the past year, New Jersey1s Correctional Institutions have been 

experiencing a serious and ever-increasing overcrowding situation. Both State 

and County facilities have been operating well beyond the capacities for which 

they were designed. Current population projections, mutually developed by the 

Adm~nistrative Office of the Courts and this Department, indicate that the 

overcrowding problem will not be alleviated in the immediate future. 

There are three primary reasons for the overcrowding situation: 1) The 

effects of the New Code of Criminal Justice; 2) The effects of the new Parole 

Act; and 3) The impact of the State Speedy Trial program. 

The new code of Criminal Justice, which appears to be viewed by the 

sentencing courts as a more harsh and severe sentencing code, has resulted in 

more offenders being committed to state institutions and for longer periods of 

time. Compared to commitments under Title 2A, the former criminal code, 

commitments to the. State Prison System were up by a staggering 70%. Moreover, 

the median term imposed by the courts also increased from five to seven years. 

In addition, the imposition of mandatory minimum parole ineligibilJty terms 

will increase an offender's actual length of incarceration, further contributing 

to the overcrowding situation. 

Similarly, commitments to State Youth Correctional institutions and 

County correctional facilities have also increased by 10% and 16% respectively 

under the new Criminal Code. 
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Besides more offenders being sentenced to custodial terms, the overcrowding 

situation has been further exacerbated by a significant reduction in the 

number of parole releases from the Youth Correctional Complex. Since the 

enactment of the new Parole Act of 1979, Youth Correctional parole releases 

have dropped by 30%. Moreover, additional increases in correctional population~i 

can be partially attributed to the State Speedy Trial program which acts to 

move cases more expeditiously to disposition. 

Resident Population Trends 

During the last sixteen months, state correctional commitments have 

. increased by 2721 inmates from a total of 6,199 on September 30, 1980 to a 

record hi gh total of 8920 on January 31, 1982. Thi s forty-four .p'hrcent 

increase is reflected 'j n corresponding increases within each of the major 

categorje-s of inmates in the Pri son Complex (determinate sentences), Youth/Adult 

Complex (indeterminate sentences)" Juvenile Offenders {under 18 years ,of age), 

and offenders awaiting entirance into the state receptfonun:it (countyja;j~ 

waiting list). Reference is made to page 1 of the attached report. 

J\s of February, 1982, approximately seventy percent -of ,all ipr.ison ,of<f,enders 

resident :in state facilities werE! convicted ofcr;fmes .against ;pe,rsohinclud,ing 

'Nurdet, 'Rape, Assaul t , Robbery, and Sexual Abuse. 'Reference is mad,e to page .3 

,of the a ttached report. 
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Mandatory Minimum Terms 

Since the enactment of the new code of Criminal Justice, 26% of all new 

prison offenders have been received \'/ith mandatory minimum parole ineligibility 

tems. Parole ineligibil ity terms are not reduced by IIgood time", work or 

minimum custody credits and can be imposed for up to one half of the maximum 

term. 

Of the 806 prison offenders received with parole ineligibility terms, 

almost eight out of ten were sentenced with minimum terms in excess of three 

years. A three year parole ineligibility term is comparable to a 12 - 15 year 

term under Title 2A, the former Criminal Code. In many instances, the actual 

amount of "time served" will almost double. Instead of being considered for 

parole at one fourth or one fifth of their maximum sentence, most offenders 

with mandatory minimum terms will stay in prison until one half of their 

maximum. Reference is made to page 4 of the attached report. 

New State Bedspaces 

In order to help alleviate the severe overcrowding problem, the Department 

has created almost 500 temporary bedspaces through the use of trailers, classrooms, 

and recreation areas. The detailed breakdown of these temporary measures has 

been provided in material already submitted to the Committee. Within the next 

three to six months, over 1,000 additional bedspaces will be brought into use. 

Long te~m plans, which may require both extensive capital expenditures and/or 

the development of systemwide alternatives to resolve this problem are now 

being formulated. 
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I am Lucy Mackenzie, Director of the Citizen Action Division of the New 

Jersey Association on Correction. The Association is a citizens organi

zation concerned with the enormous economic, socin] and human costs of 

crime in Netv Jersey. We have been working for more than twenty years to 

improve the effectiveness of New Jersey's criminal justice system, through 

our Citizen Action Division, and to provide services to offenders and ex

offenders which will help them return to their communities as self-sufficient 

citizens through our Morrow Projects Division. These services include half

way houses in Trenton and New Brunswick whose residents are state prisoners 

nearing parole and county prisoners sentenced directly to the house upon 

conviction. 

Because the problem of prison and jail overcrowding in Net" Jersey must be 

faced immediately, the Association regards this hearing as extremely important. 

During the past year, we have been involved in the efforts of many agencies 

to devise strategies to meet the growing emergency. We have consistently 

advocated a comprehensive approach to the overcrowding problem, rather than 

the single solution of new prison construction. We were therefore pleased 

with the methodical approach taken by the Task Force on Prison Overcrowding, 

and we support most of the recommendations contained in its December report. 

It offers several short-term solutions tvhich meri t the c'loRest nttention of 

the Governor and the Legislature. 
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The most significant sentence of the report states: "The present problem 

is not a temporary aberration; it is overwhelming and profound, and all 

information presently available indicates that it is permanent in nature." 

The situation is truly overwhelming. Although corrections facilities should 

operate at no more than 92% of operational capacity, for reasons of safety 

and efficiency, the medium and maximum security facilities of New Jersey are 

nOH operating at 102% of capacity. If state inmates housed in jails are 

included, the figure is 124%. At the same time, the county jail population 

has reached 121% of operational capacity, including more than a thousand 

state prisoners. County officials, trying desperately to cope with an impossible 

situation, are seething with resentment against the state, which is spending 

a million. dollars a month to keep its prisoners in the county jails. Meanwhile, 

at the bottom of the pecking order are municipal jails such as the Newark 

facility, where a cell in police headquarters measuring 4~ by 7 feet is being 

used to hold up to nine prisoners, and where inmates are forced to go days 

on end without bathing. The majority of these prisoners have not been con

victed; they are in this hideous situation only because they cannot afford 

bail. 

The population of the state prison complex alone (maximum and medium security 

facilities) will quadruple by 1990, and the cost to incarcerate these people 

will rise from $20 million to $151 million. Capital needs for bed spaces 

could be $480 million, not including the inflation factor, the renovation of 

existing substandard facilities, or debt service. The interest on bonds alone 

would double the $480 million. Another crucial factor is the virtual impos

sibility of finding prison sites acceptable to both the State and the community 

involved. 

No one imagines that the State of NeH Jersey, faced with increasing needs and 

diminishing resources, ~vill spend this amount of money for prisons and jails. 

Other solutions must be found. -First, however, we must understand the cause 

of this dramatic increase in the incarcerated population. Analysts from the 

Administrative Office of the Courts point to the Code of Criminal Justice 

~vhich became effective on September 1, 1979, resulting in a dramatic change 

in statewide sentencing practices. The impact of this change has been profound. 

8i np ly stated, mort'. of fenders CITe? hC'ing sentenced to jail, and they are going 
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for longer periods of time, producing what Senator Codey has correctly 

described as "a po;vder-keg situation." 

Still to corne is an additional population increase resulting from the 1981 

law requiring both extended and mandatory terms for certain crimes involving 

the use or possession of a firearm. 

On January 31, the editors of the Bergen Record said the unsayable. That 

day's editorial stated: 

"There's one thing that can be done right away; repeal or 
suspend those laws that call for mandatory and minimum 
sentences for certain crimes .•.•. 

What's happened here is a breakdown in the system, as shocking 
and as predictable as the collapse of an overlo,aded bridge 
or water main. To deal with the crime wave, we passed 
tougher laws. It seemed logical and even necessary at the 
time, but few of us stopped to think what would happen when 
those laws started putting out more prisoners than the 
system could handle. Now that day has arrived, and it's time to 
face a painful truth: Until the prisons are no longer full to 
bursting ... until the state has found other ways, like work
release and community-service sentences, to punish criminals ••. 
we're going to have to do without mandatory sentences. 
It's that simple." 

The Association on Correction finds the Record's logic unassailable, and 

we support its recommendation. It is time for a reappraisal of sentencing, 

in the cold light of reality. 

With or without the repeal or suspension of mandatory sentences, common 

sense requires that other measures be taken to deal with the emergency. 

The Task Force on Prison Overcrowding makes the following constructive 

suggestions. 

1. An estimated 500 individuals are being denied parole only because 

of the lack of suitable residential and non-residential mental 

health and substance abuse programs. That is more than the 

projected population of the new Camden prison. Every effort 

should be made to locate and appropriate funds for more community 

facilities. 
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2. The Legislature should appropriate funds for the establishment 

of alternatives to incarceration. "A strong argument can be 

made that if practical alternatives to incarceration are created, 

judges may feel that they can responsibly make more use of probation ••. 

Additionally, the cost of handling an offender on probation or 

parole is much less than the expense of incarceration." 

Among the most widely used alternatives to incarceration are: 

Community service and restitution. Restitution requires the 

offender to reimburse the victim for damage done, while community 

service requires the offender to perform work, free of charge, 

for public and private agencies in the community. This kind of 

sentence can serve several purposes: to compensate the victim; 

to provide community services which otherwise would go undone; 

to link the punishment with the crime; and to save taxpayer 

dollars and relieve overcrowding. Good programs now exist in 

a few counties, but most are federally funded and in danger of 

elimination. 

MO 
Halfway houses. There are presently available l50-~halfway 

house beds, located in Trenton, Camden, Ne,v Brunswick and Newark, 

with the state, the counties and the federal government competing 

for the spaces. The per (Hem cost at a half\vay house is far less 

than the per diem in a county jail, and the halfway house alter

native helps to smo~th the transition from prison to life outside 

for the offender. A survey conducted by the Association in mid-

1981 revealed that the operators of existing facilities are willing 

and able to expand their operations. They cannot do so, however, 

without assurance that the additional beds will be filled. 

The present state budget allows the Department of Corrections 

to spend $175,000 for community halfway house beds. Many other 

states depend heavily upon this alternative. Ohio has 21 half'vay 

housps for 625 offend0rs, with a state appropriation of $3.6 million. 

Mleh1gnn lIUR 2200 offl'ndcrs in 100 halftvay houses across the state. 

13x 



Other alternatives, such as intensive supervision and house 

arrest, are now under examination as part of a statewide study 

of probation initiated by the Chief Justice. Recommendations 

will be made at a June conference. 

-5-

3. Patole should be available for inmates serving less than one year. 

;" Legislative action is needed to implement this recommendation. 
", . 

4. The Legislature should pass a statute which would permit the early 

release of prisoners nearing the end of their sentences, in the 

event of serious overcrowding. Such a statute, which would be' 

triggered only by a declaration of emergency by the Commissioner 

of Corrections and the Governor upon a finding of set'ious and 

protracted prison overcrowding, would accelerate parole eligi

bility by ninety days. Eligibility would not mean automatic 

release; the existing standards for parole would still have to be 

met. Such a statute has been adopted by several other states, and 

in Michigan approximately 800 pr.isoners were granted early release 

in May, 1981 without adverse public reaction. 

This is a very reasonable response to the problem of gross over

cro'(.Jding. Overcrowding is not a temporary. mildly uncomfortable 

condition; it gives rise to problems and circumstances so horrible 

as to be unimaginable to those who only read about them. 

The public cannot imagine the strain upon inmates and correctional 

.. o~t.ic:ers which results from such conditions as now exist in many of 

New Jsrsey's prisons and jails. We have no right, either legal Or 
morell, to inflict such conditions upon the keepers or the kept. 

Those in the best positi9n to know have said, repeatedly, that we' 
, :"'. 

af:¢' living on borrowed time. Under the circumstance'$~ early tel~ase 
seems eminently sensible. 

Thera is' more to be said about overcrm-lding tha;n time permits. ~ The ~dminis .... 

trative Office of the Courts has devoted a great deal of ti~e and ~ttentibn to 

the·:subiect, and has initiated such programs as the state Speedy 'trial Ptogr-a111 

and the'f~n"Pefcent Bail Program. I wo'uld sugg~St' that the; .ci:il'im1i.¢.~~(£ lUeet 
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with the AOe to learn the full extent of their \-lOrk in this area. This 

agency probably has the best overall view in state government of the problem 

of overcrowding and of possible remedies. 

It \';Quld make the task of this committee easier if the 120 members of the 

Legislature were well informed about the crisis in corrections. To this end, 

I have suggested to the Assembly Majority Leader that a briefing be held 

for legislators, with the assistance of the Department,of Corrections and 

the AOC. He likes the idea, and I now make the same suggestion to you with 

regard to the Senate. 

This conmd.ttee hearing, we hope, is a sign that the State's resources will 

now be brought to bear upon the problem of overcrowding. The Association 

on Correction is anxious to share the information we have acquired over 

the past Yl~ar, and we look forward to working with the committee in the 

months to come. \,Te thank you for the opportunity to share our vie\-ls '-lith 
you today. 
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-----------------------------------------------------

Ny name is Christopher V. Dietz and I am Chairman of the New Jersey State 

Parole Board. The purpose of my testimony is to address the issue of correctional 

system overcrowding and, in particular, to describe the relation!)hip bctwc,xm parole 

policy and institutional lupulations. 

Others who have studied the iGsups in depth can better describe all the trends 

leading to the current situation. It becomes clear that population growth was not an 

unforseen nor an unpredictable occurence allhough the milgnitude of the problem may not 

have been obvious. 

There are a variety of options that are available to the I~gislature to deal 

with the cllrrent situ;"'ttion. Many of these will be discussed here today. I would 

urge that parole not be used as a tool to W9u1ilte lx)pulaLion. However, white we 

can, have, and will continue to assist in necking solutions, it is clear to us lhat 

parole policy must focus primarily on risk assessment rather than management of institu

tional populations. Our role in the criminal justice system is established in the 

Parole Act of 1979. We consider inmates for parole after the punitive aspects of their 

sentence has been completed and then for establishing whether the inmate may safely 

be released to the community to complete his or her term under community supervision. 

However, considerable attention has focused on the impact of parole policy on 

popUlation. The Board has attempted to analyze what, if any impact is discernable. 

Findings inc'licate that parole rx>licy hus had a neutral impact on population oV0rall, 

despite the fact that parole policy has influenced the distribution of population to 

some ext~nt and over the last several years. 

16x 
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You have probably noted that there have been cyclical trends in population. 

f 1980 th S 6,618 l'nmates confined in state facilities. By On April 30 0 ere wa 

h ' h d d l' d t population'of 6,039, a decline September 30 of 1980 however t lS a ec lne 0 a 

due primarily to an interim impact of the implementation of the Parole Act as we 

will further explain. However, by December of 1981, total population haa risen 

to an all time high of 8,478 inmates. 

During 1980 and 1981, institutional population rose as the impact of the new 

Penal Code began to be felt. The proportion of all defendants receiving prison 

terms doubled, while those receiving youth indeterminate sentences re~ained roughly 

constant at about 10% to 11 % of those sentenced. Thus, a huge increase in prison 

admissions occurred. During the first six months of 1981, the state's courts 

sentenced as many defendants to state prison as they would normally sentence in an 

entire year. Statistics of the Administrative Office of the .. Courts indicate this 

trend will continue. AJ.though the proportion of indeterminate sentences remained 

roughly the same, an increase in the number of defendants sentenced resulted in 

somewhat more indeterminate admissions. l\s a result, New Jersey no\'I faces a major 

problem in its ability to house inmate population, a problem it shares with a number 

of states. 

I would like to examine parole release levels in New Jersey over 1980 m1d 1981. 

Parole release levels in New Jersey were relatively consistent in the period from 

1975 to 1979. During this interval, approximately 3,900 - 4,000 in'1lates were paroled 

annually from state correctional facilities. By 1978, this level had risen to about 

4,100 inmates. Rowever y in calendar year 1980, 4,743 parole releases occurred, a 

significant increase over previous years. rl'his release expansion was experienced 

almost exclusively in the prison complex. 

\ 

17x 
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EXHIBIT 

Parole Release Rates - Prison Complex 

1978 1979 1980 

Total 4,100 4,092 4,743 

Prison Complex 1,359 1,271 1,835 

Other Institutions 2,741 2,821 2,908 

We have examined monthly statistics and they demonstrate that the rise in 

parole releases was particularly siunificant during the months ~f May, June, July, 

August, and September of 1980. In fact, even the small rise experienced outside the 

prison complex during this time is likely due to prison inmates housed in the Youth 

Correctional Ccrnplex. Figures in my report indicate this. 

EXHIBIT 

1980 Release Rates 

Monthly Averages (1980) 

Jan.-Apr. May - Sept. Oct. -Dec. 

Total 336 490 317 

Prison Ccrnplex 105 218 109 

Others 231 272 208 

You should note that this rise in release levels occurred immediately after the 

effective date of the new Parole Act on April 21, 1980 and appear to be related to 
.... 

several prov~sions of the Act as noted below: 

Under the Act's provisions, parole release, if approved by the 
Board must be effective "as soon as practicable after the 
(parole) eligibility date" (N.J.S.A. 30:4-123.55(b) and (d). 
This required the Board to facilitate release of those approved 
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for parole as close to actual nl i.gi.bil il:y llS pOGsi.ble. 
Under pr(~v ious prllctice, the 80,lrd gnnera lly es tabl i shed 
parole rC]Cllse elutes approximately l:hrn8 to six months 
(somcti.mns ]onCj(~r) aftnr a pi.lrole headng. Since hearings 
wnre ~:;ch0duled one month p)-ior to purole eligibility, this 
provision, rnsull:ing in rec1uc:tion of an av(~ra<Je of 2-3 months 
in Lime !_H~rved, l"c!!>llited in 300,--100 additi.onal pul:ole 
releases in 1980. 

Mu It ipl e of fenders, cornpris il1g ilPpl:OX ima tn ly 25% of the inrna te 
popu1 a Lion under 'j'i t: Ie '?.A, n~CI:! ived a minor reduction in 
their eligibility dat:es under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 
30:4-123.5l(j). 'Phe Board implemented this provision during 
May and June of 1980. A review of hearing caseloads indicates 
that approximately 100 additional parole releases resulted. 

During 1980, the three'-judge rc'scntencing Panel re:5entenced 
a significant number of prison inmutcs under 'Title 2C. The 
precise effect of I:his acti.on on parole relcases is not 
available. However, a number of illma~es.were made eligible 
for parole release in 1980 that would normally not have been 
eligible. 

The j mplementa t ion of I-he mon i toring system genera ted the 
i.elentificaLion of Pdl.-olc-eligiblc illllldl-es, ,1llel ,lS a rc!sult, a 
]0% inctc,l::;e in IIlC! pInole o[ Iho!;c ()li<Jibl(~ OcclIl"l"ed. It is 
estimated l'hat pC:l-hl1ps 100-200 addilional pdl"oles were affecb>el. 

In SllinlOdry, Sl!vol",ll di.stinet fucLors produced a one-time rjse in 

release levels in 1980 above and beyond the norm. A normal rate of 

4,100 paroles would have been exp8cted; instead, the implementation of 

the new Act increasc::d this by approxirnt.ll·ely 650. However, each factor 

contributing to this illcrclll~e was a "one -!,llot", and i he parole rdLe 

was expected to drop again in ~980. 

During 1981, overall parole release levels did, in fact, drop from 

the previous 1980 levels. While this was partially attributable to the 

expected decline to former levels, other trends were observed. Available 

data indicate that prison complex releases began to stabilize in 1981, 

but that a decline in release levels was noticeable in the Youth 

Correctional Complex. 

EXHIBIT -,--
Parole Release Rates - Youth Complex 

Prison Complex 

Youth Complex 

.!.9 7 8 

1,359 

2,270 

1,271 

2,276 

19x 

1980 

1,835 

2,171 

1,278 

1,550 
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statistics suggest that a number of releases were running at about 

expected levels based upon historical data. In the Youth Complex, 

however, the level during 1981 declined. 

The reasons for this temporary decline can be determined. Under 

the new Parole Act, the state Parole Board, rather than the Institutional 

Classification Departments and the Board of Trustees, has parole 

jurisdiction over youth cases. Current Board policy favors a significant 

increase in the amount of time served for young adult sentences. 

Consequently, the number of parole releases has declined and will continue 

to remain low until the average time served by indeterminate cases has 

stabilized. It currently appears that the typical youth inmate will 

serve about 14-15 months. 

Since no comparative data for the period prior to the new Parole 

Act exists, it is impossible to determine the absolute reasons for this 

increase. It is clear, however, that the Parole Board is treating 

aggravating factors such as prior record, weapons, or parole/probation 

failures more seriously than previously, and time reductions for program 

participation are realistically applied. Evidence also exists that 

sentences have increased in length due to new presumptive terms and 

that defendants' records and offenses have gradually grown more s~rious. 

Overall, it appears that current parole policy has impacted on 

population distributions, particularly where the Board is responsible for 

establishing eligibility terms, but the impact is temporary. Increased 

overall population figures appear to be more directly related to 
,. 

sentencing trends rather than parole release rates. The major trends 

have included a slight decline in the average time served in the prison 

complex and an increase in average time served in the youth complex. An 

additional 650 inmates were released in 1980, but trends were adjusting 
20x 

to their former levels in 1981. In terms of policy implications, the 

formerly large gap bet~een time served in the pri$on and in the youth 

complex has narrowed, although the gap is still present. 
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The overall conclusion that we draw from this analysis is that 

Board policy, in general, has had a temporary impact on population 

that will be neutral over the long run. This is not to suggest, however, 

that we, as a puhlic agency, are insensitive to the grave issues we 

face together. I would like to describe several pro-active initiatives 

we are currently undertaking. We think ways do exist that would enable 

us to increase releases and yet maintain public safety--but we cannot 

do this alone. 

The Parole Act of 1979 contains several provisions of note. The 

Board has the authority to parole inmates directly to residential 

facilities funded directly or indirectly by the State. This would 

hypothetically occur in the case of an individual who has served the 

punitive aspect of his sentence and who might be safely released if some 

type of institutional placement might be found. Given the serious 

conditions of overcrowding and the fact that a significant number of 

individuals are likely candidates for release to residential facilities 

insuring public safety, the Board had placed a high priority on 

exercising this option. 

The major problem, however, is that the resources to implement such 

an initiative are lacking. In cooperation with other public agencies, 

the Board is attempting to identify the specific resources to insure that 

the parole ·to residential facilities process becomes a reality in the 

near future. Our first focus has been on those inmates who appear to 

require placement in mental health facili.ties. Planning with the 

Division of Health and Mental Hygiene has been underway for the past 

several months. Even more advantageous possibilities should be consi-

dered as in the development of sheltered workshop placements for others. 

The Parole Act also authorizes the Board to provide early release 

in a limited number of cases. Inmates who have made "exceptional 

progress" or adjustment during their poriod of incarceration often go 
21x 
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unrecognized. The Board is author~.zed to recognize inmates who have 

made exceptional progress for the purpose of early release consideration. 

T~e development of an exceptional progress initiative was postulated as 

a goal for fiscal year 1982, and the Board has taken the necessary steps 

to develop procedures for exceptional progress reviews. We are 

presently reviewing applications for the exceptional progress cases. 

Some of you may also be familiar with a concept termed "contract 

parole". The basic concept is that the Parole Board, the Department of 

Corrections, and an inmate may enter into a contractual arrangement 

providing for an early release date if the inmate agrees to achieve 

certain goals by some pre-determined time. This "earned parole" concept 

could prove to have great utility, and we have asked the Department of 

Corrections to enter dialogue with us to determine if such a program 

might be developed. 

As you are aware, there has been some discussion of utilizing early 

release as a mechanism for temporarily easing the overcrowding situations. 

In fact, the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcrowding chaired by 

former Attorney General George F. Kugler, Jr. had recommended this 

approach. While this concept deserves your consideration, it is a 

decision I am sure you will weigh heavily. I would like to assure you, 

however, that the approach would only work, as was recognized by the Task 

Force, if the same stringent requirements were used in the granting of 

parole as are currently employed. Reduction of time would only occur for 

those approved for parole, and then only for 90 days. 

There are also other options that deserve your consideration. You 

have examined the very serious and potentially dangerous backup of state 

inmates in county facilities. All indications are that the situation 

will become worse instead of better. Some of these state inmates housed 

in county facilities are parole violators who have either violated the 
22x 

conditions of parole or have committed new crimes. It would be a grave 
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mistake to assume that temporary relief could be realized by cutting back 

on the return of the parole violator to custody. To do so would 

jeapordize the very foundations of parole and undermine the credibility 

of the criminal justice system. A far more suitable alternative might 

be to extend some type of parole eligibility status to county inInates 

who are serving short terms for relatively minor offenses. While this 

might involve modification of existing law and development of a review 

mechanism at the county level, the approach makes some sense. 

In summary, I corne not with the answers to prison overcrowding, but 

only with some indications of the options that deserve discussion. 

Overall, I think that the Board has reacted to the challenge of 

overcrowding by assuming a practical stance, yet one which assures that 

the legitimacy of the parole process remains intact and public protection 

remains paramount. We applaud your efforts to deal with this most 

difficult situation and welcome an opportunity to assist in any way 

possible. 

23x 
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Senator Cooey and Members of the Cannittee: 

We wish to thank you for this opportunity to present you 1:I;e f:mts 
of the thinking and experience of the rrenbers of ~ o~CU:J.za~on ~o 
are deeply involved in the operation of New Jersey s crJJlUnal Justice 
system. M::lst recently 100 a~b?rneys fn:m around the S~~ attend~ 
our conference "Crisis in Criminal Justice: The New CrlJ1U.J1al Cooe . 
'lWo Years I.a ter "in which we assessed theimpact of the Cooe on the workJJ1gs 
of the criminal justice and prison systems. 

Through the efforts of the Criminal Disposition Cannission, created 
by the legislature, and particularly through the ex611plary effo~ of 
Judge Leo Yanoff, its chair, the fundairental facts about the Cooe s 
impact on b'1e state prison cmplex are new well knOtm ::a us all. OUr 
problems are similar to those faced by o~ states wluch have adopted 
similar chan<;Jes in sentencing patterns; this has been carefully and 
throughly addressed in the impressive report issued by the Governor'~ 

\ Task Force on Prison Overcrowding, chaired by former Attorney Genera 
George F. Kugler. 

\¥ 'sh to make clear that we share the view which Chief Justice Rc:be:t 
N ~ :lentz expressed in his address to the New Jersey State Bar Assocl.a
tion on April 9, 1981. He there declared: 

"I do not believe that public confidence in our system 
of justice, fran a long range point of view, can be . 
based on bulging prisons. I would lTUlch r~th~ that l.t 
be based on canpassionate laws, on equal Just~ce,. on 
the el:imination of pc;werty, on the reform of a pnson 
system that apparently guarantees recidiv~sm, an';" on " 
its ability to bring peace to an interracial socl.ety. 

The prcblems of crirre and conuption in our society - in. our hares, 
in our public places, in relations CIiOCl11g and between busJJ1esses and 
consurrers and even by public officials are grave and deep-rooted: 
Today's hearing and the prison system which is today under scru~y 
focus on "street cr.iIre"; those crirres of property or personal Vl.c;>lence 
which cmprise the overwhelming majority of the cases processed JJ1 our 
criminal justice system. 

We are attorneys experienced in the day to day workings of our criminal. 
justice system. We see it all - the policeman on the beat, ~ county 
jails, the criminal trial coorts the state pri~n ~lex. We have 
learned this: the problem of crime in our socl.ety l.S far beyond the 
capacity of our criminal justice system - police, courts, prosecutors 
and prisons - to solve. 
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The persistence of the prcblem is due not to ):1amstrung courts because 
our courts are not hamstrung; it is due not to lenient judges because 
our judges are not lenient; our judges have strictly adhered to what 
they believe is the legislature's command and the public's cry for severity; 
it is not dne to policemen whose hands have been tied lx:.cause the police 
have all the . force, authority and cooperation fran out offiCials 
and our citizens which they require. The problem of crirre in our society 
originates in social, econanic and cultural structures so deep that 
the changes necessary to begin to reverse the prcblem are not on the 
inmediate political agenda. 

We lTUlst therefore face the fundamental fact: The problem of crime in 
our society will not be solved by tinkering with the operations of the 
criminal justice system. We can rrore readily make things worse than 
we can make things better. It is our contention that the present crisis 
is a result of such tinkering which has made things worse, without impacting 
in any measurable degree upon the underlying problem. 

We lTUlSt also make clear two fundamental premises: (1) The notion, so 
widely trumpeted at the highest levels of our national and state governments 
and in our !redia, that we are in the midst of a crime wave greMing stead
ily in intensity am.oss our nation is simply false. The United States 
Department of Justice study, Criminal Victimization in the U. S., Sep-
tember 1980, deronstrates that there is no increase in the number or 
victimizations across the country in the period 1973 to 1979 for those 
crimes about which public concern is the greatest: robbery, assault, 
rape, larceny, household/burglary, rrotor vehicle theft. In fact, the 
only trend that can be discerned for those offenses is a slightly do.-mward one. 

We lTUlst therefore accept this j act: our prisons are' bulging because 
~have changed our laws, not be-cause we have suffered a great increase 
in crirre. 

This brings us to the next essential assumption: (2) Neither rrore prisons 
nor rrore J?Olice can solve our problem without pr::lhibitive expense or 
the creation of an apparatus of repression so fearsome that it would 
func1am=ntally undermine the civil liberties upon whiclJ dem:x:racy depends. 
As Judge David L. Bazelon, Senior Circuit Judge of the United States 
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia, last week declared at 
Vanderbilt University, only a garrison state "akin to rrartial law" or 
ac(;'eptance of refonns in our society arrnmting to "a revolution ill the 
way we govern ourselves" could reach b'1e roots of crime in "the culture 
of poverty and discrimination still tolerated in every American city." 

We believe that the Legislature must consider in its carrning term ways 
to ease the crisis which we have seen developing in our prison system. 
We therefore propose that the l'3gislature make the following changes 
in the Code of Criminal Justice: 

I Every Judge at the time of sentencing a defendant to a custodial 
tenn in state p:ison c:anplex shall make a detailed statarent, in open 
court, elaborating heM he/she applied the criteria for withholding or 
lmposjng a sentence of imprisOl'1In8l1t, set forth in the 2C:44-1, which 
should be arrended to canpel the Judge to take into account the nature 
and rol:;) of each individual defendant's actions, including: (A) whether 
the victim actually sustained physical injury whJ.ch was intended by 
the ';!ctor; (B) whether the defendant personally was anred with, used 
or Wl.elded a weapon or personally used physical force; (C) whether the 
defendant threatened to use force, verbally or by display of a weapon; 
(0) whether the defeOOant rrerely aided and abetted the crime; (E) whether 
the defendant provided the means for camrl.ssion of a crime· (F) whether 
the crine was cmpleted or IlErely attempted or abandoned p~ior to cmple
tion. 

The legislature should make clear its intent that custcnarily sentences 
should vary fran person to person; in order to deronstrate to all _ 
the victim, the public and defendant - that society's judgnent does 
depend on the individual culpability of the defendant and the nature 
of the haxm actually inflicted. This will help to restore the proper 
exercise of judicial discretion which has been unduly restricted by 
the way the criminal ccx:1e is camonly understocx:1 by criminal trial judges. 

25x 
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We knON" as defense attorneys that juries nBke the kinds of distinctions 
which we are encouraging. People understand that a crime in which 
violence is actually used or a weapon is fired differs fran and should 
be sentenced differently fran those in wfIich violence is merely threat
ened or possible. 

II Minimum Mandatory Sentences - carrronly known as parole dis-
qualifiers - have aggravated arbitrary disparities in sentencing. The 
Legislature, in enacting the Code, hoped to eliminate disparities in 
sentencing not based on the specific facts of each case. It was hoped 
that "presumptive sentences" and "ordinary tenns" of inprisornnent v.uuld 
accanplish this. 

In fact, the use of parole disqualifiers, which allON" a Judge to sentence 
a defendant to up to one-half of the max:iJruJm sentence for first and 
second degree crimes without possibility of parole, has aggravated the 
situation. The use of this mechanism varies so widely fran judge to 
judge, fran case to case, fran county to county that we nON" see a disparity 
in senten~ing far greater and far rrore arbitrary than that which the 
legislatute sought to reduce in 1979. The message to a prisoner is 
that no matter hON" he spends his time in prison, his tirre served will 
not be affected. If he studies or not; if he v.urks or not; if he shON"s 
positive social attitudes or not, he will serve the sarre sentence due 
to the use of IPaIldatory minimum. The prisoner in the next cell, serving 
time for a similar crime, without a mandatory minimum has an incentive 
to v.urk, to study, to learn inproved social relations. Such arbitrariness, 
such disparity, encourages recidivism, not ccrrection. 

We therefore call for the elimination fran the Code of the mandatory 
minimum, parole disqualifiers for first and second degree offenses. 
The nON" inconsistent, often casual reliance on its provisions should be 
eliminated and the rrore cOrisidered, carefully articulated, individualized 
sentencing process sought by our first proposal should be enacted . 
. ' 
Sentencing nust be a two step process - the first is a carefully tailored 
sentence by the trial court, informed by the facts known at the tirre 
of conviction; the second sta'Je of sentencing is conducted by the parole 
board, after the opportunity ilaS been given to the prisoner to denon
strate, within an institution.)l context, such favorable factors as \>.Ulld 
persuade the parole board, (tIle independence of which nust be assured) 
of his favorable adjusbrent and the :likelihocd of return to society without 
repetition of the criminal behavior which sent him to state prison. 

We propose as a means of eliminating any inequity that any prisoner 
currently serving a rrendatory mirrimum, have that minimum lifted and 
his case, if his otherwise earliest parole date has already been reached, 
furrediately reviewed by the parole board or by a special parole panel 
similar to the resentencing panel established when the Code was enacted. 
A post-sentence report should be routinely prepared by the probation 
department or the parole authorities and provided to the prisoner, his 
attorney and the resentencing authority. 

III A preS'Ullption of non-inprisororent in state prison for third 
and fourth degree offenses should be enacted. To the extent that cus
talial sentences are warranted in third and fourth degree offenses (and 
~ feel they should be markedly reduced in favor of greater reliance 
on probationary reocrlies), that tirre should be served in county insti
tutions. The state prison canplex should be reserved for those who 
have ccmnitted serious crirres of violence and use deadly weapons. We 
nust nove to.vard a county-based corrections system. 

The Legislature should further provide that in all third and foorth 
degree cases where a custodial sentence is :i.trq;losed to a county institution 
there shall be a preS\lllq?tion that the time should be served on weekends 
or ~ a v.urk-release program in order to minimize the disruption of 
fanuly, anplClj!lreI1t, educational and other positive social factors. Such 
a plan nust be coupled with adequate funding of half-way houses, drug, 
a1.chohol, family and psychiatric treatrrent programs to address the prd>lems 
of ndjustment and personality developre.nt which accatpany these offenders. 

26x 
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A County-based corrections system can best be coordinated with the 
County educational, vocational, health and social service institutions 
and agencies. 

rv We> 191 flO wiHh 1;0 m,ke> rlf'19r l-h19l- WI"' C"ndorRf' thE' £'!11f'I-Cfpncy 
ove.rcrtk'ding stLltute, similar to that enacted in Michlyall, as Lll1JL'tl 
by the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcl:UJlding. Its feasibility 
and necessity are so clear that action on this at least should be 
:i.rnrediate. 
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Criminal Victiniiz,ation ill the U .. s. 
Summary Findings 'of 1978-79 Changes in Clime 
and of Trends Since 1973 
Nati~nal Crime SUlVey Report SD-NCS-N-18, NCJ·62993 September 1980 

Comonon house:10ld thefts were relatively more 
numerous in 1979 than a year earlier, but stability 
gener91ly characterized both the incidence of crime 
and the rales at which offenses were reported to the 
police.. Accorjing to latest results from the I~ational 
C;,rime Survey (NCS), significant vIctimization rate 
changes were evident for t!1e two most prevalent kinds 
o,f measured crime--household larceny and personal 
larceqy without victim-offender contact--between 1978 
and 1979. The changes were in opposite directions. 
A,n increase of 1.3 million residential larcenies 
brought about a 12-percent rise in the rate for that 
crime, while 630,000 fewer noncontact personal lar
cenies caused a 5-percent drop in the rate for that 
offense. I Rates for rape, personal robbery, assault, 
;>ersonal larceny with contact, household burglary, 
and motor vehicle theft did not change significantly 
hetween the 2 years {Table I}. 

Detailed NCS results in a forthcoming report will 
show that the 1979 increase in household larceny was 
fairly widespread, significantly affecting homeowners 
al,d renters alike. as well as households at all income 
levels. 2 The rise in the rate for that crime also was 
significant among white households and those headed 
by persons between the ages of lO and 64. Although 
seeming to move upward, thelarccny rates for black 
and {of Hispanic households did not change signifi
cantly. 

The reduced incidence of personal larceny with
,lUt contact was also found among a number of sub
groups. Thus, whites and males had lower 1979 rates 
for that crime, and there was some indication that fe
males also had a lower larceny rale; the rale among 
hlacks did not change signific:antly. Although the 
lownward direction in rates for noncontact pcrsonal 
larcenies seemed to apply to all of the age and inc~m~ 

IAll changes or differences discussed in this report 
.Ire statistically significant at a confidence level of 95 
'~rcent, unless qualified by the phrase "some indica

lIOn," which denotes significance at a 90-percent lev
(·l. According to NCS classification, the two crimes 
I"r which there was significant change in 1979 differ 
IT,om ohe another solely on the basis of their place of 
"ccurren!;e. 

'Tht. larceny rate was significantly higher iut" 

"useholds WIth annual incomes ranging from $7,500 
$14(999, as weJl as for those in the $15,000 and 

·'.er bracket: there was some indication that it was 
!SO higher among those with incomes of less than 

,7,500. 
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groups examined, the declines were only significant 
among persons age 25-34 and those earning $15,000 
or more annually. Hispanics and non-Jlispanics 
alike experienced the crime at a lower rate. 

Changes betwt'en 1978 and 1979 in the i~dcncl:" 
of personal and household larcenies were not attended 
by variations in the rates at which those crimcs wert" 
reported to thc police. As in ) 978, only about) in 
every 4 of each of those types of crime was made 
known to the authorities during 1979. For other 
cri:nes measured by the NCS, there also were no sig.., 
nincant changes in the police repol :ing rates between· 
1978 and 1979 (Table l). 

Household larceny reached a peak in 1979--134 
per I, OOO--a figure that was 25-percent higher thOln 
that recorded in 1973, when NCS annual estimatt'!> 
first became available (see chart). With respect to 
personal larceny without contact, the 1979 drop pldcco 
ihe figure at a level not significantly different from its 
1973 low. 

Turning to post-1973 trends for other NCS
measured crime.s, the 1979 rate for simple assault was 
higher than those for 1976 and earlier years, but the 
apparent increase in the 1979,rate over the 1977 and 
1978 figures was not statistically significant; parallel 
results held for the overall assault rate, but no di rec
tion emerged for aggravated assault (Table 3). SIm
ilarly, no trends were evident in the rates for rape or 
personal larceny with victim-offender contact. The 

Trend. in victimizatioD rates for selr.cted crimes, 1973·79 
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r"I.' lor. r,..r: ... n.d rllhb .. ri'. Wllldl h;,rl droppt'd J H pt..:-
CCIlI uctwl·t,'n 1'174 and J'I7r .• "ppl·arc·d to have halted 
I t!o decline:, allhlJugh ttlt· mt,,1 rec.ent clfange was not 
statistically signifIcant. 

, .Although the 1978-79 change in the rate for res
IdentIal burglary was not statistically significant the 
latt'st figurl'--84 per 1,000 houlit'hClld",--ouggelt:d a' 
continuation of &n overall decllnc tha~ has laken place 
since 1914, when the raIl' was 93 per 1,000. The 
mofor vehicle theft rate dropped sharply between 1975 
and 1976, but there has been no other measurable 
year-to-year change in the incidence of that c.rime. 

-- ~~ 

'I/lt' "17'1 1.01 (', huwl'vc r, Wd 10 !> i l!lIiflldnll}" IUWI' r It .. ", 
that for 1975. 

NCS data are collected by means of inlerviews 
with persons age 12 and over in a representative sam
ple of approximately 60,000 households across the 
Nation. The survey is designed and ca.-ried out Cor 
the Bureau of Justice Statistics by the U. S. Bureau 
of the CenSU6. Data In this report, another in a 
series to examine trr.mds in crime, are preliminary 
and subject to revision. Future reports will contain 
a,descr~ption of the. survey methodology, including a 
d\SCUSSlon of sampling error, as well as definitions 
and other technical information. 

Table 1. Personal and household crimes: Number of victimizations 
and victimization rates, by type of crime, 1973-79 Ii 

(Rate per 1,000) 

Sector and type of crime 
,\ 

1973 ~. 1974 1975 1976 1917 1978 
;/,-\--

• l!jH 
Personal sector .-

Crimes of violence 
Number 5,351,000 5,510,000 5,573,000 5,599,000 5,902,000 5,941,000 6,159,000 Rate 32.6 33.0 32.8 32.6 33.9 33.7 34.5 Rape , . 
Number 156,000 163,000 154,000 145,000 154,000 Rate 171,000 192,OPO 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.9 Robbery 1.0 1.1 
Number 1,108,000 1,199,000 1,147,000 1, 111,000 1,083,00P 1,038,000 Rate 1,116,000 

6.7 7.2 6.8 6.5 6.2 5.9 6.3 Assault ,.. 
Number 

, 
..J 

Rate 
4,087,000 4,148,000 4,272,000 4,344,000 4,664,000 4,732,000 4,851,000 

24.? 24.8 25.2 25.3 26.8 26.9 27.2 Aggravated assault I 
Number 1,655,000 1,735,000 1 ,631 ,000. 1,695,000 1,738,000 Rate 1,708,000 1,769,000 10.1 10.4 9.6 9.9 10.0 9.7 9.9 Simple assault 
Number 2,432,000 2,413,000 2,641,000 2,648,000 2,926,000 Rate 3,024,000 '3, ORZ • (100 

Crimes of theft 
14.8 14.4 15.6 15.4 16.8 17.2 17 • .1 

Number 14,971,000 15,889,000 16,294,000 16,519,000 16,933,000 Rate 17 ,050,000 16,38"2,000 
Personal larceny with 

91.1 95.1 96.0 96.1 97.3 96.8 91.9 
contact 

Number ~ 

504',000 520,000 524,000 497,000 461,000 '549,000 Rate 3.1 3.1 
511,000 

Personal larceny without 
3.1 2.9 2.7 3.1 l.9 

Ci)ntact 
Number 14,466,000 15,369,000 15,770,00Q 16,022,000 16,472,000 16,501,000 Rate 15,871 ,000 88.0 92.0 92.9 93.2 94.6 93.6 89.0 

Total population age 12 
and over 164,363,000 167,058,000 169,671,000 171,901,000 174,093,000 176,215,000 178.184.000 

tiousehold,sector 
Household burglary 

Number 6,458,700 6,120,600 6,743,700 6,663,400 6,764,900 6,704,000 6,685,400 Rate 91.7 . 93.1 91.7 88.9 88.5 86.0 Household larceny 84. I 
Number 7,537,300 8,933,100 9,223,000 9,300.900 9,418,300 9,351,900 Rate 107.0 123.8 125.4 124.1 

10,630,100 
Motor vehicle theft 123.3 119.9 133.7 

Number 1,343,9'00 1,358,400 
Aate 

1,433,000 1,234,600 1,296,800 1,365,100 1,392,800 . 19.1 18.8 19.5 16.5 17.0 17 .5 17 .5 
Totalnumber of ho~seholcls 70,442,400 72,162,900 73,559,600 74,956,100 76,412,300 17,980,400 79,498;600-. 
NOTE: . Detail may not add to tOlal

c 
sho~n because or rounding. 
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T:ab1c 2; pCfwHaJ l.nd hous('Jl!lld t, 

by .. type'of crime, 1978-7~ 

Sect.or alld tYPI: of crimI' 

Personal sector 
Crimes of violence 

Rape 
Robbery 
Assault 

Aggravated assault 
Simple assault 

Crimes of theft 
Personal larceny with contact 
Personal larceny without contact 

Household sector 
Household burglary 
Household larceny 
MOlor vehicle theft 

., .'" Chnnt;c in police reponing rntes. 
// 

.;.: 

Pt'rccnt of vlctimi~ation6 
T('J>urtcd to thl' pulice 

1978 1979 

44.2 
48.8 
50.5 
4Z.7 
52.7 
31.0 
24.6 
33.7 
24.3 

47.1 
24.5 
66.1 

45.1 
50.5 
55.5 
42.4 
51.3 
37.4 
24.0 
35.6 
2.3.6 

47.6 
25.1 
68.2 

INone of the changes was statistically signiHcant at minimum confidence l:vel of 90 percent. 

Table 3. Personal and household cri;rnes: Comparison ofcbanges 
, in victimization rates, by type of cnmet 1973-79 

if 

~' 

1973-19 1975 0 79 1916-79 1971 1974-79 -
Sector and type of crime 

Personal sector 
CrimeS' of violence 

Rape 
Robbery 
Assault 

Aggravated assault 
Simple assault 

Crimes of theft 
Personal larceny with contact 
Personal larceny wi thoul contact 

Household sector 
Household burglary 

• Household larceny 
Motl)r vehicle theft 

*+6.1 
+13.7 
Ei:.l) 
*+9.4 
-1.5 

<irT6:"'8~ 
+0.9 
-6.5 
+1.1 

---; 
1.~-B.31 

t.!+ZS:O\ 
-8,2 

I'· 

**+4.1 
+10.2 

*-12.8 
* .. 9.6 

-4.5 
*+19.7 
*-1:4 

":7.7 
*-3.2 

*-9.7 
*+B.O 

,I} -6.9 

. .., . . h 95 Tcent confidf;nce level. 
*Statistically sIgmflCant at t e pe". rllevel 
**StatisticallY significant at the 90 percent con Itle~Ce • 

Cl 

*+6.0 +1.9 
.. 2.8.6 +2.1.3 
-3.1 +0.6 

*+7.7 +1.6 
+0.6 -0.6 

*+12..2 +2..9 
*-4.4 *":5.5 
-0.1 .. 8.3 

*-4.5 .-5 .. 9 

**+5.2 
+18.7 
-7.4 

*+8.1 
+~.Z 

*+11.1 
*":4.3 
-7.1 

*-4.2 

"'-5.4 * .. 5.0 
*+7.8 *+8.S 

+6:4 +3.2 

*-B •. 3 
*+6.6 

*".10.1 

Q 

''; , 

Percent 
change,' 

+1.9 
.3.6 
.9.8 
-0.5 
-2..8 
.1.1 

~ ,., 
-Z.5 ... 
+5.6 ! 

j 

-2..9 t I 
! 
1 .. 
I +1.0 l 

+2..8 
.. 3.3 

1978--79' 
''I).. 't 

.. 2.4 
+11.3 

. " .. 6.3 
.1 .. 3 
.. 2.4 
.. 0,8 

*-5.0 
-8.0 

*-4.9 

-2.2 
*+11.5 

.. 0.1 

'. 

.. 

I 
Glossary 

Age-The appropriate age category is 
deter.minedby each respondent's age as of 
the fast day of the month preceding the 
interview. 

Aggravated assault-Attack with· a 
weapon, irrespective of whether or not there 
was injury, and attack without a weapon 
resulting either in serious injury (e.g .• broken 

,bones, loss of teeth, internal injuries. loss of 
'consciousness) or in undetermined injury re-

quiring 2 or more days of hospitalization. 
Also inchldes attempted assault with a 
weapon. 
, Annual family income-Includes the 
income of the househJld head and ali other 
related persons residli.& in the ~ame ho~se-
hold unit. Covers ttie 12 months preceding 
the interview and includes wages,salaries, 
net income from business or farm, pensions. 
interest. dividends, rent, and any other 
form of monetary income. The income of 
persons unrelated to the head of household 
is excluded. 

Assault-An unlawful physical attack, 
whether aggravated or simple. upon a per
son. Includes a'ttempted assaults with or 
without a weapon. Excludes rape and at
tempted rape, as well as attacks involving 
theft or attempted theft, which are classified 
8S robbery. Severity of crimes in this gen
eral category range from minor threats to 
incidents that bring the victim near death. 

Attempted forcible .entry-A form of . 
burglary in which force is used in an at
tempt to gain entry. 

Durglary-Unla'wful or forcible entry of 
a residence, usually, but not necessarily, at
tended by theft. Includes attempted forcible 
entry. The entry may be by force. such as 
picking a lock. breaking"a window, or slash
ing a screen, or it may be through nn un
locked door or an open window. As long 
as the person cntering had no legal right to 
be present in the structure, a burglary has 
occurred. Furthermore, the structure need 
not be thc hOllse itself for a household bur
glary to take place. Illegal entry of a ga
rage, shed, or any other structure on the 
premises also constitutes household burglary. 
In fact, burglary does not necessarily have 
to occur on the premises. If the breaking 
and ent~ring occ1:'rred in a hotel or in a 
vacation residence, it would still be classi
fied as a burglary for the household w/tose 
member or members were staying there at 
the time. 

Celltral city-The largest city (or "'tWin 
cities") of a standard metropolitan statisti
cal area (SMSA). defined below. 

EihnleUy-A distinction betwj:en His
panic and non~Hispanic respondents. regard-
IC5Il of race. . 

Forcible entry ...... A form ofburglaJyin 
which force is used to gain entry (e.g., by 
breaking a window or slashing 8$i:reen) .. 

"tid of hOllsehold-For classification 
pUrpo5Cs. only one illdividualper hoti~hold 
ClD be the head person. In husband-wife 

households, thc h\l~hand arbitrarily is consid
ered to be thc ht::ld. In other households, 
the head person i~ the individu,al so regarded 
byits members; generally that person is the 
chief breadwinner. 

Hispanic-Persons who report them
selves as Mexican-American. Chicanos, 
Mexicans,Mexicanos, Puerto Ricans, 
Cubans, Central or South Americans, or 
other Spanish culture or origin. regardless 
of race. 

Household-Consists of the occupants 
of separate living quarters meeting either of 
the following criteria: (I) Persons, whether 

'present or temporarily absent, whose usual 
place of residence is the housing unit in 
question, or (2) Persons staying in the hous
ing unit who have no usual pillte of resi
dence elsewhere. 

Household crimes-Burglary or larceny 
of a residence, or motor vehicle theft, crimes 
that do not involve personal confrontation. 
Includes both completed and attempted acts. 

. Household larceny-Theft or. attempted 
theft of property or cash from a residente 
or its immediate vicinity. For a household 
larceny to occur within the home itself, the 
thief must be someone with a right to be 
there, such as a maid, a delivery person, or 
a guest. Forcible entry, attempted forcible 
entry, or unlawful entry are not involved. 

Incident-A specific criminal act involv
ing one or more victims and offenders. In 
situations Where a persomH crime occurred 
during the course of a commercial crime; it 
is assumed that the incident was primarily 
directed against the business. and, therefore, 
it is not counted as an incident of personal 
crime. However, details of the outcome of 
the event as they relate to the victimiu:d 
individual are reflected in data on personal 
viclimil.ations . 

Larceny-Theft or attempted theft of 
property or cash without force. A basic dis
tinction is made betwcenpel'sonal larceny 
and household larceny. 

Marital status-Each household member 
is assigned to one of the following categor
ies: (I) Married, which includes persons in 
common-law unions and those parted tem
porarily for reaSOns other than marital dis:
cord (employment, military service. etc.): 
(2) Separated and divorced. Separated in
clude~ married persons who have a legal 
separation or have parted because of mari
tal discord: (3) Widowed; and (4) Ne~er 
married, which includes those whose only 
m;miage has been annulled lind those liv
'ing together (excluding common-law 
unions) . 

Metropolitan area-Abbreviation for 
"Standard metropolilan staJis.licalarea 
(SMSA)," defined below. 

Molor vehlclt-Includes automobiles, 
trucks, motoreycles.and any other motOr
ized vehicles legally allowed on public roads 
and highways. 

Motor vehiCle theft-S~aling ot unau
thorized taking ora motor vehicle;"includ
ingattempts at such acts; 
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Nonmetropolltan area-A locality not 
situated within an ,SMSA. The category 
covers a variety of localities, ranging from 
sparsely inhabited rural areas to cities of 
fewer than 50,000 population. 

Non-Hispanlc-Persons who report 
their culture or origin as other than "His
panic," ~efined above. The distinction is 
made regardless of race. 

Nonstranger-With respect to crimes 
entailing direct contact between victim and 
offender. victimizations (or incidents) are 
classified as having involved nonslrangers if 
victim and offender either are related, well 
known to, or casually acquainted with one 
another. In crimes involving a mix of stran
ger and nonstranger offenders, the events 
are classified'under nonstranger. The distinc
tion between stranger and nonstranger 
crimes is not made for personal larceny with
out conta!:t. an offense in which victims 
rarely see the offender. 

Offender-The perpetrator of a crime; 
the term generally is applied in relation to 
crimes entailing contact between victim and 
offender. _ 

Offense-A crime; with respect to per
sonal crimes. the two terms can be used 
intc:rchangeably irrespective of whether the 
applicable unit of measure is 8 victimization 
or an incident. 

Outside centrai cities-See "Surburban 
area," below. 

. 
Personal crimes-Rape, r01:/bery of 

persons, assault, personal larceny -with con
tact, or personal larceny without contact. 
Includes both comple"ted and attempted acts. 

Personal crimes of theft-Theft or at
tempted theft of property or cash by stealth, 
either with contact (but without force or 
threat of force) or without direct contact 
between victim and .offendeJ;. Equivalent to -
personal larceny. 

Persohld crimes of violence-Rape. 
robbery of persons, or assault. Includes both 
completed and attempted acts. Always in
volves contact between the victim and 
offender. 

Personal larceny-Equivalent to per': 
sonal crimes of theft. A distinction is made 
between personal larceny with contact and 
personal larceny without contact. 

Personal larceny with con tad-Theft of 
purse, wallet, or cash by stealth directly· 
from the person of the victim. but without 
force or the threat of force. AlsQ includes 
attempted pUrScsnatching. • 

Personal larceny· Without corltact-Theft 
or attempted theft. without direct contact 
between victim and offender, of property or 
cash from any place other than the vic,~.im·s 
horile or· its immediate vicinity. The prop
erty need not be strictly personal in nature; 
the act is distinguished from household lar
ceny solely byplacc of occurrencc.Exam
pIes· of personal,larceny witho.utcQntact 
include the theft of a briefcase orumbreUa 
from a restaurant, a portable radio from the 
be.\I,~h, clothing from an automobile parked 
ina sboppingccnt~r. a bicycle ,from a 
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• 
• . ~choolground. food from a shopping cart 

11'1 front of a supermarket. etc. In rare cases, 
the victim sees ~he offender during the 
commission of the act. 

Physical injury-The term is applicable 
to each of the three personal crimes of vio
lence, although data on the proportion of 
rapes resulting in victim injury were not 
available during the preparation of this 
report. For personal robbery and attempted 
robbery with injury, a distinction is made 
between injuries from ~seriousft and ~minor" 
assault. Examples of injuries from serious 
assault include broken bones. loss of teeth, 
intl!rnal injuries. and loss of consciousness, 
or undetermined injuries requiring 2 or 
more days of hospitalization; injuries from 
minor assault include bruises. black eyes. 
cuts. scratches, and swelling. or undeter
mined injuries requiring less than 2 days of 
hospitali7.ation. For assaults resulting in vic
tim injury, the de~ree of harm governs clas
sification of the event. The same elements 
of injury applicable to robbery with injury 
from serious assault also remin to aggra
vated assault with injury: similarly. the same 
types of injuries applicable to robbery with 
injury from minor assault arc relevant to 
simple assault with injury. 

Race-Determined by the interviewer 
upon observation, and asked only about 
persons not related to the head of house
hold who were not present at the time of 
interview. The racial categories distinguished 
are white, black. and other. The category 
"other" consists mainly of American Indians 
and persons of Asian ancestry. 

Rape-Carnal knowledge through the 
use of force or the threat of force, including 
attempts. Statutory rape (without force) is 
excluded. Includes both heterosexual and 
homosexual rape. 

Rate of victimization-See "Victimiza
-tion rate, ft below. 

Robbery-Completed or attempted theft, 
directly from a person, of property or cash 
by force or threat of force. with or without 
a weapon. 

Robbery with injury-Completed or at
tempted theft from a person, accompanied 
by an attack, either with or without a wea
pon, rl!sulting in injury. An injury is classi
fied as resulting from a serious assault, 
irrespective of the extent of injury, if a 
weapon was used in the commission of the 
crime or. if not, when the extent of the 
injur), was either serious (e.g., broken 
bones, loss of teeth, internal injuries, loss of 

. 'Consciousness) or undetermined but requir
'ing 2 or more days of hospitalization. An 
injury is classified as resulting from a minor 
assault when the extent of the injury was 
minor (e.g., bruises, black eyes, cuts, 

, scratches, swelling) or undetermined but re
quiring less than 2 days of hospitalization. 
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Robbery without injury-Theft or at
tempted theft from a pt!r~on, accompanied 
by force or the threat of force, either with 
or withoul a weapon, but not resulting in 
injury. 

Simple BS...aull-Attack without a weapon 
resulting either in minor injury (e.g., bruises, 
black eyes, cuts, scratches. swelling) or in 
undetermined injury requiring less than 2 
days of hospitali7.ation. Also includes at
tempted assault without a weapon, 
'. Standard metropolitan statistical area 
(SMSA)-Except in the New England 
States. a standard metropolitan statistical 
area is a county or group of contiguous 
counties that contains at least one city of 
50,000 inhabitants or more, or "twin cities" 
with a combined population of at least 
50,000. In addition to the county, or coun
ties, containing such a city or cities, contig
uous counties arc included in an SMSA if, 
according to certain criteria, they arc 
socially and economically integrated with 
the central city. In the New England States, 
SMSAs consist of towns and cities instead 
of counties. Each SMSA must include at 
least one central city. and the complete title 
of an SMSA identifies the central city or 
cities. 

Stranger-With respect to crimes entail
ing direct contact between victim and of
fender. victimizations (or incidents) arc 
classified as involving strangers if the victim 
so stated, or did not sec or recognize the 
offender, or knew the offender only by sight. 
In crimes involving a mix of stranger and 
nonstrangcr offenders. the events are classi
fied under nonstranger. The distinction 
between stranger and nonstranger crimes is 
not made for personal larceny without con
tact, an offense in which victims rarely see 
the offender. 

Suburban area -The county, or coun
ties, containing a central city, plus any con
tiguous counties that are linked socially and 
economically to the central city, On data 
tables, suburban areas are categorized as 
those portions of metropolitan areas situated 
Moutside central cities." 

Tenure-Two forms of household ten
ancy are distinguished: (I) Owned, which 
includes dwellings being bought through 
mortgage, and (2) Rented, which also in
cludes rent-free quarters belonging to a 
party other than the occupant and situations 
where rental paymelits arc in kind or in 
services. 

Unlawful entry-A form of burglary com
mitted by someone having no legal right to 
be on the premises even though force is not 
used. 

Victim-The recipient of a criminal act; 
usually used in relation to personal crimes, 
but also applicable to households. 

Vldimlzation-A specific criminal act as 
it affects a single victim, whether a person 
or household. In criminal acts against per
sons, the number of victimizations i.5 deter-

mined by the number of victims of such 
acts; ordinarily. the number of victimiza
tions is somewhat higher than the number 
of incidents because more than one individ
ual is victimized dUring certain incidents, as 
well as because personal victimizations that 
occurred in conjunction with commercial 
crimes are not counted as incidents of per
sonal crime. Each criminal act against a 
household is assumed to involve a single 
victim, the affected household. 

Victimization rate-For crimes against 
persons, the victimi7.ation rate, a mC.1SUfC 
of occurrence among population groups 'at 
risk, is computed on the basis of the number 
of victimizations per 1,000 resident popula
tion age 12 and over. For crimes against 
households. victimization rates are calcula
ted on the basis of the number of incidents 
per 1.000 households. 

Viclimiu-To perpetrate a crime against 
a person or household. 

-
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Victimizntion 

age 12 and over, 

N.J. N.J. 
1974 --- 1975 

i (J) cnce 19.7 (33.0) 20.1 (32.8) 

:;bbery 5.9 ( 7.2) 6.3 .( 6.8) 

,saul t 13.6 (24.8) 13.4 (25.2) 

l']ravated 
'..!:!;auLt 4.2 (10.4) 4.0 ( 9.6j . 

! "'I)l.e . 
,'~:;" ul t 9.4 (14.4) 9.4 (15.6) 

U.S. rates in parentheses 

Source: Robert Tenari, U.S. census ~ureau 
(292) 763-1735 

i:.1\ .. 

' .. 

Ne' .... 

N.J. 
1976 

23.0 

6.3 

16.2 

6.0 

10.2 

·c 

" 

rate per 1,000 f.or persons 

Jersey COlllpil red'with United states" :;.1 , 
! 
~ 
" ;, 

N.J. N.J. N,J. u 

~ 1977 1978 1979 , ., 
.. J 

(32.6Y (33.9) (33.7) (34.5) 
(I 

19.3 23.2 23.0 II 
U 

( 6.51 5.5 6.2) 6.0 ( 5.9) 5.9 ( 6.3) 

X 
M 

(25.3) 12.9 (26·.8) 16.7 (26.9) 16.2 (27.2) M 

0 

( 9.9) 4.8 (10.0) 5.4 9.7) 6.4 ( 9:9) 

(" 

(I5.i) 8.1 (16.8) 11.3 (17.2) 9.B (17.3) 
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN M. FARRELL, NEW JERSEY 
EXECUTIVES' COMMITTEE, BEFORE THE SENATE 
INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE 
ON THE "CRISIS OF OVERCROWDING IN TEE 
STATE PRISONS AND LOCAL JAILS" - FEB. 18, 1982 
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JAMES W. RAYHILL' Delinquency. The Executives' Committee represents a 
General Counsel and Secretary 

MILTON G. RECTOR broad array of New Jersey corporations, which seek to 
President 

BOARDOFDIRECTORS improve the effectiveness of the state's criminal justice 
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system. 

The primary program objectives of the Executives' Com-

mittee are two-fold: 

1) to encourage the use of cost-effective alternatives 

to incarceration for non-dangerous offenders, ther~by low

ering the continuing budget burden of the state's correc

tions system to the taxpayer; and 

2) to encourage the development of community-based 

crime prevention programs to reduce the incidence of 

criminal and delinquent activity that create enormous 

losses to the state's residents and businesses. 

The crisis of overcrowding in our state prisons and 

county jails is clearly one of the most pressing problems 

with which our state officials must deal. The bulging 

'Eueallvoeommlll .. M •• ben prisons, and the predictions that the. problem will con
r} 
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN M. FARRELL -2- February 18, 1982 

tinue to escalate into the foreseeable future, makes other problems 

in the criminal justice area pale by comparison. 

Even the most cursory review of the numbers involved leads to the 

inescapable conclusion that dramatic steps must be taken in very 

short order.-- this is not a problem which will disappear if we ig

nore it long enough! I would like to review some of those numbers 

at this time: 

· According to the December 3 report of Governor Byrne's official 

Task Force on Prison Overcrowding, chaired by former State Attorney 

General George F. Kugler, Jr., the number of persons sentenced to the 

state prison complex since the passage of 2-C has increased by 70%, 

with the additional impact of a 61% increase in actual length of stay. 

• A report in last Sunday's New York Times indicated that, while 

the state prisons can accommodate perhaps 7500 inmates, the prison 

population right now is 8920. Of that figure, 7794 are actually being 

housed in the state prisons, while another 1108 are backed up in the 

county jails, as the result of the Governor's Emergency Proclamation. 

• The number of state-ready prisoners backed up in the county 

jails has risen by more than 160 over the past month alone. The re

sult of this enforced overcrOWding on the county level has been the 
temporary . 
shutting down of the Essex and Passaic jails, refusing to accept any 

further prisoners from the municipal courts. (In Essex, one further 

result has been a lawsuit by the City of Newark, naming both the 

county and. state as defendants.) 

• According to the official projections of the Administrative of

fice of the Courts, the state prison population could double by 1983, 
,. 
and tri~le by 1990! 

While it is almost'~ impossible to grasp the Significance of these 
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figures, the immediate problem was well expressed in 'the report of 

the Task Force on Prison Overcrowding, when they noted that: liTHE 

MORE URGENT MESSAGE IS THAT DURING 1982 THE PRISON POPULATION WILL 

INCREASE BY APPROXIMATELY 635 INMATES EVERY THREE MONTHS. II (emphasis 

added. ) 

In practical terms, what do those figures mean? The bottom line 

is: it is absolutely imB:9ssible for the State, of New Jersey to build 
,/' 

// 

its way out of the current overcrowding crisis. At present there 

are plans on the drawing board fora new 400-bed prison to be con-

structed in Camden -- from funds voted in -the bond referendum of 

November 1980. That prison cannot be ready until at least 1985, and 

it will obviously open overcrowded. With the kinds of numbers that 

we are seeing now, and with the projections of the AOC and the Task 

Force, we estimate that we would have to be able to build 10 new 400-

bed prisons by the end of this year if we are only to alleviate the 

current population crunch, and what can be expected by the end of 1982. 

(That figure is derived from adding the 635 increase every three 

months, plus the current population over capacity, with the addition 

of state prisoners held iln the overcrowded-county jails == a.total of 

approximately 4000.) 

It is of course perfectly obvious that it is impossible to con-

struct one prison by the end of the year, much less ten -- even were 

we to determine that course of actio~ would be the most desirable, 

and affordable. And we of the Executives' Committee believe that 
II 

course, if possible, would be neither desirable nor affordable. 

In view of the overwhelming evidence that indicates that heavy 

reliance on incarceration andl,engthy se,ntences,. have no discernible 
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TESTlMONY OF JOHN M. FARRELL -4- February 18, 1982 

positive effect either on the incidence of crime or the rate of 

recidivism, we believe the policy of responsibly limiting the use 

of institutions should become paramount in justice planning by the 

state. While it is clear that -there will continue to be a need for 

institutionalization of dangerous and particularly violent offenders, 

every effort must be made to develop non-incarcerative sanctions and 

programs for the many offenders who do not fall within that category. 

This conclusion is reinforced when we examine the costs of con-

tinually expanding the state corrections system. Construction costs 

for each new prison cell run anywhere from $60,000 to $80,000 per cell, 

and operating costs per prisoner are estimated (probably conservatively) 

to be more than $14,000 every single year. Utilizing the current 

population figures and projections through the end of this decade, 

the Task Force on Prison OvercrJwding conservatively estimated (since 

they considered the low construction figure of $60,OOQ) that capital 

needs for buildings could amount to $480 million by 1990, and annual 

operating costs for the Deparment of Corrections would amount to more 

than $150 million per year. 
continued 

As businessmen and women, we cannot countenance the/expenditure 

of these kinds of sums, to expand a demonstrably ineffective system 

and especially in light of current economic realities. Money is 

among our scarcest reqources at present. In light of massive cutbacks 

in social service program funding, it would be unconscionable to grant 

ever increasing slices of the budget pie to the correctional apparatus. 

The members of the New Jersey Executives' Committee would there

fore recommend that several proposals ,made by Governor Byrne's Task 

Force be acted upon immediately: 

37x 



TESTIMONY OF JOHN M. FARRELL -5- February 18, 1982 

1) The legislature should pass a statute similar to one which 

has been utilized by Michigan to successfully defuse their prison 

overcrowding crisis -- without enormous financial outlays, and 

without endangering public safety. Such an emergency overcrowding 

statute would accelerate parole eligibility by three months, allow

ing the reduction of the incarcerated population in an orderly fashion 

while selecting for release those inmates who would shortly be re

leased in any event. As businesspeople, we support the concept of a 

planned reduction of the overcrowded population. Given the magni

tude of the problem currently facing the state, such a mechanism ap

pears to be the only rational immediate response to the problem at 

hand, and there seem to be no grounds for the often expressed fear 

that releasing those who are near release anyway will present any 

increased danger to the public. 

2) Within the state's prison system right now, there apparently 

are an estimated 500 individuals who have been denied parole release, 

for the sole reason that' -no su~table residential or non-residen-

tial mental health and substance abuse programs are available. Fund

ing of these kinds of community programs should be accomplished, 

to eliminate this problem in the future, thereby eliminating the need 

for one entire new prison. 

3) We further recommend that the legislature appropriate funds 

where applicable for the purpose of establishing viable alternatives 

to incarceration for those who do not require imprisonment, and who 

are currently eligible under the criminal code for non-incarcerative 

sanctions. We understand the AOC is now investigating the feasibility 

of instituting Intensive Probation Supervision programs in this state, 

as well as a statewide program of community service sente;ncing. If 
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these practical alternative programs are created, and adequately 

funded, the state will have gone a long way towards a planned re-

sponse to its correctional needs. 

4) While we understand the legislature's reluctance to consider 

the possibility of revising the mandatory sentencing clauses of 

the criminal code (although we would contend such a re-examination 

is essential, given the criminal code's disastrous impac·t on the 

prison population), we urge you, most emphatically, not to give any 

credence to any further call for increased sentence lengths or addi

tional mandatory sentences. The impact of 2-C's hars~er provisions 

is all too evident in the current crisis of overcrowding; to in-

creas~ the severity of those provisions in the light of current ex

perience would only exacerbate disastrously an already impossible 

situation. 
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JOSEPH A. FECONDA 
DIRECTOR 

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX 
DEPARTMENT OF AOU.L T CORRECTIONS 

COURT HOUSE, ROOM 504 
NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY 08903 

T45·~305 

745·4'22 

Senator Richard J. Codey 
Chairman, Committee On 
Institutions, Health and Welfare 
CN-042 
State House 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Dear Senator Codey: 

February 16, 1982 

The crisis of overcrowding in our county and the state 
correctional institutions continues to escalate. The pressures 
of overcrowded conditions and unabated,crisis management has 
strained m~my of our institutions beyond the breaking point. 
These conditions are an undeniable receipt for a major disaster. 
It is critical that definitive leadership be exerted in order to 
contain and manage the crisis. It is widely hoped that the present 
hearings wj 11 lead to action which \'1ill effectively address the 
emergency conditions. 

Tn order to assist the conunittee's investigation of the 
correctional population crisis, I attach herein two documents which 
had previollsly been prepared. 

'rhe first addyesses the ;issue of crisis management itself. 
The separate state and county correctional administration have 
failed to work together in addressing the crisis. Together the 
result has been anadversarial relationship with each jurisdiction 
pitted against the other. The adversarial positions taken and in-

/(

' creasingly engaged establish only short-term relief '~md cannot form 
lasting solutions. Further, and more importantly, the bitternesS 
which results from such adversity will create side effeci:~!' which will 
impede the correctional community for years to come. 

No one element of the correctional system can, act u~ilat
erally to maintain its own best interest without dire consequences. 
The state must not continue its policy of pJ;'e-determing capacit~ and 
closing its doors while inmates backup in;cClunty institutions. The 

Ii 
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Senator Richard J. Codey 
February 16, 1982 
Page 2 

counties cannot close their doors without dramatic disruption to the 
local criminal justice systems, however, in the present ad.versial 
atmosphere more counties may engage in such action on the same un
ilaterally self-serving basis presently exercised by the state. 

This problem will not go away by itself. The extremity of 
the problem necessitates new working rapport between the state and 
the counties. As the second document indicates, the state could make 
a greater contribution to crisis response by short-term use of selective 
double bunking. 

The state could take greater direct responsibility for their 
inmates and also provide decisive leadership for a cooperative crisis 
response management coalition to establish comprehensive use of 
existing space in all institutions. This would minimize advl!rsarial 
leadership and create a cooperative atmosphere which will be a necessary 
aspect of any potentially successful approach to relieving the present 
crisis. 

It is our sincere hope that the positions established in 
these documents will be of assistance to the work of the committee. 

JAF:jmm 
Enclosures 

cc: Freeholder Donald J. Wernik 

Very truly yours, 

i:::t:~DA7::::: 
Adult Correct.fons Department 

John J. Hoagland, Esq.» County Counsel 
John T. McHugh, County Administrator 
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IMPOOVING HELATIONSI {IPS BE'lWEEN 
STATE AND <XlUNTY <XlRRECl'IONAL OPEAA'I'IONS 

Our criminal justico syBt(~m is facing unpnxx.·ntr.:d I,roblc/ls. 

The jails and prisons am ·filled ooyond cnpacity. 'Phe new vcinu l1~ll 

I.' :hi.!, p.'lttcl.llS of stricter sentencin,], and change's in our m.mt:al health 

systems have all resulted in a dr-anntic (kt(~ricn"l.l.tion in jn~·ti.tutio~l<d 

condi. tiop,!S and severe overcra.vding. At the snm:; tim:!, nC!w EO tandards , . . 

and regulations h we been pronlUlgated Mel a continui ng wave of prisoflurs I 

rights litigation all servB to overwhelm the instit.utional administrators. 

'l'his crisis of conbinecl problems, haNever, doc's not l~XCllS(: our absollltn 

i\ ':i,J.m~:;ibnity to o[x.3rato effective cOl~ctional im;titutions. 'the 

;~! ·nt i.ll ~:rimjnu.l must kl1c,...., tlhlL pl.lnisl1r.imt \Vill r' .. l1cM th(~ crim:. 

,. 

th,' [I jilt tIl 1>..'lieV\' tJldl oUt" j.li I:; "lid 1'1 i:;'lIl~; WIll d"CX)l\q)(I:.11 l!i,':., 

In or~k:r to cnsure that those b,micc:onclitions arc! lqJhcld, thl~ slate· 

n:llst t~lk0 .• '1 110W and dynamic ]earJorship t'G.lle. 

In UIl' past, the lasks of county i:u1d st;nh ' c(Wl"ucti. ,r,;d 

. , 
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such as public intoxication have been decriminalized and in other 

cases, alternatives to incarceration have been established. These 

trends, in canbination with the incarceratioh of greater:- nurrbers of 

serious offenders, have produced dramatic shifts in sentencing patterns. 

NON the counties hold inmates sentenced on far ITDrc serious charges, 

and in this, the oounty institutions are neM significantly rore 

similar to the state institutions. Although this developing similarity 

might have produced closer working rapport be~n state an::} county 

institutions, in fact, there has been a serious deterioration of mutual 

CXX)peration. 

'I'he inpact of the multiple problems whim face thc.~ corrcc.tionCl,l 

institutions has been to stretch the administrltors' resources above 

and l:x?yond the breaking p:>int. Overcra.vding strains every elerrcnt 0f 

facility and staff resources, ClI1d mmy insti tut.ions arc literally 

operating uncbr ennrgency conditions. Unfortlulatcly though, all t.(Xl 

often the institutions have persucd self-serving res£X>nscs to their 

individual crises. The result of such narI:"O.l1 leadership has been 

increased friction and factionalization. The state institutions havt: 

rlttenpted to r.elieve their overcrcMding problcns at the m:r.x:nso. (Jf' th\~' 

(..·"OIUlty institutions bi .al1o.ving illITat{.'s sen!X'nced to state institutbL.s 

to l,mguish in·the,county iails. ~brcover, the state hns sturtcd 

pli1.c.l11g their inmates in a county jail. For t1 cir part, the CC)WltiC~; 

'\),IVU l."'o!.-)~)(mdt:·d in equally l.'onft:ontational anll self-~:erving c1ctiow). 

A m.urixw pf coun'ties have turned to the courts to ~d2 the statt::. 'I'h .. : 

n:'c:mt pr(~ss conference,held on th.~' State lIouse Sh:ps wherein ojU;1ty 

officia 1.s concbrnned the state for i tssclf-scl""ving pmctiu..:s :;1..(!aj.:s 

for its("!1f. 
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There is an atmosphere of ck-:!speration in, the jail and pri son 

administrations. There is a sense ,that the current problems and 

trends will oontinue to escalate and tJ1at nothing will he "done to 

rDvcrse tile constant escal.:ltion of tl1t\!;l~ damJuluus <'ondi I' iom;. '11Hnr' 

is a feeling -that no change in the l1iln:tJ,V lx>licies und the 5('1 f-

servinq practices will OCCllr until SOliD disaster focuses tile pnblic's 

attention on these dangerous conditions. 

'1'here is no real need, hOJJGv(!r, for Ne'N Jersey to oXIJC.!ric·no"'! 

.:m l\ttica or a New Mlexico State Prison reb211ion. 'rherc is no real 

. 

need. to feel thatcnnditions are irrevoctlbly pointed towilrds dj silster. 

b.!L"\-.\:cn tilt: st..l.l:c and county irv~til::.ulions mlli:;t be cstabli ~;hc:<1. 'I'llu 

j'llIollqh mlllu..I.l ('ffort, we r.an i(1:~nLj ty l'lIe availabl<.' b-'d npa1v thnl\i'jl.r,,,t 

1"11(' insf1t-utjons and develop a full ntil";7.aHon pIon whichw;(,':; t!t,·!:(· 

resouro.::s to their bcst'·mlVcmtagc. 'i'he local jails ITaY n.!ffi3,i n at 

C"1p.Jci t1' levels in order to reduce the prcsslli;e throughout the sy!,'t"eJn. 

Ilo..;rcver, tJ1e jails -\<JOuld be rore ubleto cope with capilcity housinq 

bCC9usC the state institutions would take thc! rrosttmublcsonu irur.1D:.·!". 

:hv tot.ll mUll!>.:I- of inmat:c~:; in til,· i,dl~), \,111' t-bc~y n·I.~,ttll' i. ':0\;,'1-

.'1I:;l,I','!' IlIIlll.tlL' drain ant,I.'!!'! ,1IId 1';lIY:'lil.-'dl pl.IIIL /1':;(,1':/'\ ;;. ','II' 

ll) cope wi th cilpaci ty hous i n9 lev(!l s. 
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M:,)re inportant tl1an even the inproved usc of physical rc.'SOllrccs, 

tl1e establishrrent of such a partnership would instill a dramatic iIrpact 

upon the administrators themselves. No longer would the individual 

institutions feel isolated and helpless. New directions and major 

decisions would be made on the basis of mutual support and corrm:>n goals 

ratl1er than tJuough self-serving unilateral action. The Stilte muld 

provide the catalytic leadership for such a coalition and could either 

v-.ork through existing groups such as tl1e Wardens' and Sheriffs' Associiltions 

or Uu'Ough sctre new vehicle created exprcssedly for this ptlrfX)se . 

\"'i thin the context of such state leucbrship and a new cnalition, each 

administrator would acknowledge the role that they could best plilY and 

eX! x,)r1 l!l1ce the support that they, in turll, could e:q:x:?ct. Such a [.os i ti '\Ie 

, atn);:')sphm-c would alleviilte thl~ sense of despair whi ch present ly exists. 

Such il plan w,?uld :n: .. '<lllin) inmcdiate action in the cstablisb;rent 

of a now leafurship role for. \-h0. State IX'partm::>nt of C'orn:cti on!). Thi 5 

plan l!.; not, hONevcr, a distant utopian posnibili.ty. '1'he C!r1ilblin~1 

h!gislLltion for transfers frcm county to st.."1te institutions already 

exists (N.JSA 30;4-85.1). Under a priority mandate, the next (]1.:lrrUnistratior: 

o")uld haw' ~1.1ch a mutually COC>lx'I'nti V0 vC'l1ture ini \- iat0.c1 wj thi n thn:"', 

mmths and firmly established wHJ1in six to nine llt}nths" 'l'hi~ \',";;111; 

Q 

1\.':illlll'l\,H ,lnd .in allcvial:inlJ l'hl' (~u\'n~nt );('IlSl' of il\1pc'lIrlil.(t ".::"" !(:I_ 

o 

45x 



SELEcrIVE .USE OF roUBLE BUI'lKING 
AS A SHORl'-TERvi RESPONSE TO TIIE OVERClU'IDING CRISIS 

DvercrrMding in the jails and prisons of New Jersey has 

reached crisis proportions. Though not a popular issoo with the 

public~ overcrowding has Jong been recognized as a foundational 

caUse in virtually every m:tjor prison disaster. We must acknowledge 

the seriousness of the issue and the urgent need for. neaningful and 

effective response. The state institutions are so overcrowded that 

they are unable t.o acrept new inmates in a tiIrely manner. The sarre 

for<X!s whidl create the overcrowding in the state institutions have 

worked t.o fill the county jails and in addition, "the counties must 

OJntinu::~ to hold the state's inllutes IIDtil their tlnasfers can 

eventually be arranged. l?ourtecn of the county institutions have b:.:(:n 

operating above their legitirrate maximum capacity and ~n one caseD a 

jail has had to operate. at; 160 pera:mt of capacity. In order to 

respond to this crisis, the state must take dramatic steps and oonsider 

c::.::1:r~ alt.crnatives such as the llse of double bunking. 

The need for additional bed spare throughout the munty 'jill L; 

and state prisons has beenthol:Oughly docum:mted.Millions of do niJn; 

willbc required for the construction and subseqoont op:lration of th, 
e. 

... 'l:!,trlh~tion but the or:Jt:ning of ;my ll(~W :in.'3ti tubon rC'nninl? ~;rIJrL; '/('il:' .. 
;> 

.11 ! i10 f'lturl". We are, therefore, pY.l~ssec1 to develop interi.r.1 pl.Jns 

\'.'hi d1 c.ln r(~spond im~diately to rhis urgent problem. rl'he c."orrm:l".icr; d 
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institutions must be able to remain responsive to the needs of the 

courts for the sentencing of serious offenders. At no time can VIe 

allalT violent offenders to avoid incarreration due to the lack of 

avail able rells. On the other hand, hCJilever, we mllst maintain the 

safety of the public and the security of the institutions in a 

rranner which is consistent with both the overall goals of effective 

corre<:::tional programning and wi th cost-effective fiscal considerations. 

New Jersey's state institutions operate UIlcer standards 

whid'l generally m:tintain single occupancy in cells. This is a proper 

sb:lI1dard and should be supported under J1lormal circunstances. However, 

\oJv must recognize the seriousness of the pmscnl~ crisis, and we must 

ilTplcm:mt provisions which all€'viate the potential for major disruptions. 

'Po 1'3i 1 to act .in a responsible manner, in these mnd:i tions would l.:.e 

a hn:~;tdl of the public trust. In the re<X'.nt Rhoades vs. Chaprcan ruling, 

!=h0 United States Suprerre Court established that where an inmate has 

aco..)ss to proper institutional programming and servires, there is no 

oolmt:itutional guarantee of single oocupancy cells. Thus, though single 

occupancy conditions would be preferable, New Jersey could explore a 

limited and sj::rictly controlled use of double bunking which could sePJC 

,1l~ ,111 interim provision whidl \oJQuld alleviate the current population 

\~rt~5is. If the state institutions muld identify even as few as one 

out elf L'!V(>iy fifteen rells as being appropriate for double bunkin-j, 

'~lnd \lddi tionnl 450 <X!lls (the equi.va'lent of a new inst I tution) cc il.c1 

\:01,' mlCk' dwd.lublo wi.thin a ffi.'ltt;(:!r of four Lo eight WC(- :s. Such i.l:\ 

of pn'slmt ci rct.nnstanccs. 
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Since the selection of appropriate inmates would be 

absolutely critical to ;the success of sud1 a plan, a specialized 

classification process would be required. The prine candidates would 

be those inmates who already renonstrate their res[-Qnsibility through 

regular participation in institutional prograrrming and jab assignrrcnts. 

Sud1 inmatc~s regularly spend little tme in their cells beyond 

sleeping hours. Additionally, responsive grievance procedures would 

be nl.:untained in order to aca::nmt for the additional tensions which 

an"! incumbent with such a procedure. 

Idmtifying appropriate in.rrate3 and cell-s, h~ver, is only an 

ini ti<ll aspect of such a plan. A careful review of institutional 

pn)visions would be necessary and where any element of the institution 

:i!; <11 n::ady strained, additional stnff or physical resources would h<lVCl 

to l~ established. 'l'he security staff may need to be strengthened and 

th-, praJram staff would necessarily have to be e><panded. The adequacy of 

80;.::in1 and educational prograrrs, nedical servioos, recreation and food 
,\ 

SOlvi<:.l:!s are all critical to the adequacy of the inplementation of 

tilis crisis reSponse provision. Double bunking must not: be viewed as 

a panncea or ~. "quick-fix." If this were to be the case, the leadership 

\\'Ou1d be cbsigni;ng a 'tine banb rather than defusing one. Staff and 

resources 1.U1<]lEstionably m\.1Stbe added and the budgetary ramifimtions 

must IX! addressed in order to adt..XIuatcly deal with the increased 

\\orklo,ld and the additional tensions' introduced by double bunki nq.. 

[):)\.IDle bunking is not in itself desirable, but pr,?r.crly 

impkm::mted as a shorb-term practi~, it may serve as an effectiv(') 
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crisis response by providing manageable relief fran overcrowding 

wi thin a cost effective context. In this way, New Jersey's need 

for correctional incarceration of offenders can be rret on an interim 

basis with respect to the security of the institutions and the effective

ness of correctional prograrnning. .Failure to nove in the direction 

of such a planned inplerrentation would result in the continuation of 

ovcrcrONding, the inefficient use of available resources, and the 

escalation of tensions; in short, a fonnula for major disturbanres. 

'rhus, in light of this grim alternative, the selective irrplenentation 

or (buble btmking in New Jersey's correctional institutions on a 
• 

sl1m-t-tenn basis is a provision which is worthy of consideration as 

a 111::!ans of addressing the present crisis. 
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